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Significant Events in 2020
2020F B AR

August 8 A

SD Limited and SD Asset Management Limited
officially became the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition of their entire issued share capital,
and renamed as GCINT (HK) Limited and
GCINT Asset Management Limited, enabling the
Company to grow into an enterprise that delivers a
comprehensive range of financial services.

June 6 8

- Canada Can-Elite Energy Limited, a wholly-owned
e Ly subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
& E\,E,!,]{Tﬂ fifth modification agreement with China United
Coalbed Methane Corporation Limited to the

Hunan Shuo Hua Environmental production sharing contract.

ahd 'I\.Jew Materials Limited The Company was officially relocated to the 45th
Liability Company, a wholly- floor of Times Square in Causeway Bay, suggesting
The Company was renamed owned subsidiary of the that Golden Century International Group is

from “International Standard Company, was established to standing at a new height and a new starting point,
Resources Holdings commence the development of and beginning a new prosperous journey.

Limited” to “Golden Century the comprehensive healthcare

International Holdings Group business. 0..IIIIIl.l......l......l.l...l
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September 9 A
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Mr. Pan Jibiao, an Executive
Director, was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the
Company to lead the Group
in the reorganization and the
development of diversified
businesses.

The Company officially moved
into the insurance intermediary
business upon completion of the
subscription of 90% of the issued
share capital of United Able
International Limited, which was
then renamed as GCINT Wealth
Management Limited.
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November 11 8

The Su’nan coalbed methane
project in Anhui was officially
resumed, which will establish
the industrial advantages of
the Su’nan and provide clean
energy locally in Su’nan and
even in East China where
clean energy is in short

supply.
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The Company’s official
website was changed from
“www.goldencenturyintl.com” to
“www.gci.com.hk”.

The “Listed Company Awards of
Excellence 2020” awarded by
Hong Kong Economic Journal to
us was a high recognition of the
Group’s comprehensive strength,
business development and stringent
governance by the capital market
and the industry.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Director(s)”) of Golden
Century International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of the Group
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020” or the “Year”).

The global economy was hit by COVID-19 in 2020. According to the World
Economic Outlook report published by OECD, global GDP fell by 4.2%
in 2020, while China was the only economy to achieve positive growth in
2020 at a rate of approximately 1.8%. As an enterprise engaged in a diverse
range of industries, the Group coped with the challenges through a proactive
approach by making strategic planning so as to maintain its business growth.
For the purpose of defining its business strategies and development directions
in a more precise way, the Company was officially renamed as Golden
Century International Holdings Group Limited on 18 March 2020 to reflect
that the Group aims to build a global corporate platform with “industry +

finance” as a dual-driver approach.

COALBED METHANE BUSINESS

In terms of industry, the Group continued to focus on its coalbed methane
business (CBM) and embarked on new business — comprehensive healthcare
— to strengthen the competitiveness of its industry business. Canada Can-
Elite Energy Limited (Can-Elite), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the fifth modification agreement regarding the production
sharing contract with China United Coalbed Methane Corporation Limited on
10 August 2020. Moreover, Can-Elite entered into an engineering technical
service contract with major industry player Beijing Sino-Welking Energy
Technology Service Co. Ltd. to continue with the CBM project in Su’nan
Block, Anhui Province.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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COMPREHENSIVE HEALTHCARE BUSINESS

Meanwhile, the Group officially made a move into the new comprehensive
healthcare business in May 2020. At the present stage, it mainly
manufactures and sells medical devices and pandemic-prevention supplies
and products to meet the huge demand for related products in the market
due to the pandemic. With the global concerns about environmental and
health issues, we believe CBM, an alternative energy source, as well as
medical devices and pandemic-prevention supplies and products, are not to
be overlooked as these dual-track industry business initiatives will generate
more stable returns for the Group. The Group will continue to support the
exploration and development of CBM with cutting-edge technology, push
forward achievements stage by stage, and work out proactively plans for the
comprehensive healthcare industry to explore market potential.

FINANCIAL AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

With respect to its financial business, the Group successfully acquired GCINT
(HK) Limited (formerly known as SD Limited), GCINT Asset Management
Limited (formerly known as SD Asset Management Limited) and GCINT
Wealth Management Limited (formerly known as United Able International
Limited) during the Year, enabling it to hold a diverse range of licences for
various financial services, including Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising
on futures contracts), Type 9 (asset management) and licence for insurance
broker company. These would further expand the Group’s financial business
and strength, build an all-round financial platform to provide customers with
one-stop financial products as well as create, manage and pass on wealth
effectively. Despite a slackening global economy due to the pandemic, it is
expected to be brought under control globally as vaccination programmes get
underway gradually. The Group is fully confident that the economy will pick
up during the “post-pandemic era”. In particular, the Guangdong — Hong
Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”), which is expected
to become the engine of global economic growth, will be one of the Group's
key targets for development. The Group will continue to look for potential
opportunities in the financial market by taking advantage of the Greater Bay
Area with its superior economy and a prime geographical location. Going
forward, the Group plans to apply for a Mainland QFLP licence to further
invest in the domestic market, consolidate its strength and create organic
growth.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will continue with its “industry + finance” dual-
driver approach as its core philosophy to integrate quality resources in the
industry and seize market opportunities. With industry as the cornerstone on
which the Group takes root, it will work out plans for the financial market in
the Greater Bay Area, amplify its advantages as well as invest in and expand
the new real economy. The Group will strive to achieve maximum profit
and returns for its shareholders by taking a cautious approach, aligning itself
to the current situation, keeping abreast of national policies, continuously
enhancing its business and improving its debt level.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders for their ongoing trust and support to the Group over
the past year. | would also like to thank our dedicated directors, management
staff and all employees for their ongoing professionalism and valuable
contributions during the tough periods of 2020. | look forward to working
with you together to strive to improve our performance in the future and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) hereby presents the
audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$69,766,000, which was
about nine times of the total revenue in the year of 2019 (HK$7,587,000).
The substantial increase was mainly attributable to the revenues generated
from the sales of medical devices and pandemic-prevention supplies and
products under the new comprehensive healthcare business commenced
during the Year. The revenue generated from the comprehensive healthcare
business for the Year was HK$60,399,000. However, there was a decline
in the electronic components business with a significant decrease by
7.28% from HK$7,587,000 to HK$7,035,000. The contributions from the
financial business and wealth management business were HK$809,000 and
HK$1,523,000 respectively. It was also noted that none of revenues came
from the CBM exploration and exploitation business during the Year (2019:
Nil).

Gross Profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of HK$5,151,000 which indicated an
increase of about 513.21% when compared with that of last year (i.e.
HK$840,000). The increase was mainly attributable to the comprehensive
healthcare business.

Other Income

The other income increased by about 484.94% from HK$591,000 of last
year to HK$3,457,000 of the Year. The increase was mainly attributable to
the income of sublease office area to an independent third party and the
subsidies from the Hong Kong Government.

Other Gains and Losses

The gains significantly increased by about 142.27% from HK$29,889,000 of
last year to HK$72,412,000 of the Year. The increase was mainly attributable
to increase in gain on fair value change of convertible notes — embedded
derivatives by HK$32,250,000 to HK$61,599,000 during the Year.

Administrative Expenses

The Group recorded the administrative expenses of HK$63,081,000 which
indicated an increase of about 41.69% from HK$44,521,000 of last year. The
increment was mainly attributable to the increase in office rental expenses,
depreciation of right-of-use assets and staff cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Profit (loss) from Operations

The Group turned around from the loss of HK$454,961,000 in last year to
a profit of HK$6,056,000 during the Year. The significant improvement was
attributable to the increases of gross profit by HK$4,311,000, the increase
in other incomes by HK$2,866,000, the increase in other gains and losses
by HK$42,523,000, an aggregate amount of HK$412,888,000 on decrease
in amortization of production sharing contract and impairment loss on
production sharing contract (please refer to note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements), decrease in impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of HK$10,515,000, and inclusion of gain on bargain purchase
of HK$6,474,000 (please refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements) which were partially offset by the increase in administrative
expenses of HK$18,560,000.

Finance Costs

The finance costs incurred during the Year were HK$70,794,000 (2019:
HK$50,772,000), which were mainly imputed interest on convertible notes
(please refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements), interests on
loan from Century Gold Millennium International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Ultimate Holding Company”) and Mr. Pan Jibiao, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company (the “Ultimate Controlling Party”), and borrowings.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the spread of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) cast uncertainties on
the global economy. However, the Company remained cautiously optimistic
about the industry prospects and business expansion. On 18 March 2020, the
Company officially renamed itself as “Golden Century International Holdings
Group Limited” and redrew its business strategies and direction to proactively
cope with changes and challenges in the market and fully develop the global
platform integrating industry and finance.

During the Year, in addition to vigorously expanding and developing the
businesses of clean energy, finance, proprietary investment, and electronic
components, the Group embarked on new businesses of comprehensive
healthcare and wealth management in response to the market trends and
demands to reinforce the Group’s diversified industrial development strategy.
Accordingly, the Group re-classified its businesses in the segment result
into (a) coalbed methane business; (b) comprehensive3 healthcare business;
(c) financial business; (d) wealth management business; (e) proprietary
investment business; and (f) electronic components business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group'’s previous treasury business includes securities trading, securities

brokerage and money lending. For the Year, the Group continues to engage

in the above businesses but has re-organised the segments of the treasury

business into the financial business and the proprietary investment business.

(@

Coalbed Methane (“CBM”) Business

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Can-Elite
Energy Limited (“Can-Elite”), entered into the production sharing
contract (the “PSC”) with China United Coalbed Methane Corporation
Limited (“China United”), a state-owned company which is wholly-
owned by China National Offshore Oil Corporation authorised by the
government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) to
partner with foreign companies to explore, develop and produce CBM
assets. Pursuant to the PSC, Can-Elite is the operator of the Anhui CBM
assets and holds 70% of participating interests in the PSC for a term of
30 years starting from 2008.

The Group explores, develops and produces CBM in Anhui Province
with a total exploration area of 567.843 square kilometres (the “Contract
Area”). As at 31 December 2020, the CBM operation was still in
exploration stage with a total of 43 exploration wells and no revenue
was generated.

The Contract Area is divided into Area A (part of Luling Block with
an area of 23.686 square kilometres that has its proven reserves
submitted) (“Area A”) and Area B (primary part of Su’nan Block with
an area of 544.157 square kilometres, with the proven reserve yet to
be submitted) (“Area B”). Area A can start production as soon as the
overall development proposal has been filed by relevant government
authorities of the PRC. On 10 August 2020, Can-Elite and China United
entered into the fifth modification agreement regarding the PSC (the
“Fifth Modification Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties to the
Fifth Modification Agreement agreed to further extend the exploration
period of Area B for two years from the original expiry date to 31 March
2022.
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On 31 December 2019, the Ministry of Natural Resources has published
the “Opinions on Several Matters Concerning Promoting the Reform of
Mineral Resources Administration (for Trial Implementation)” (No. 7
2019 of the Ministry of Natural Resources) (the “Opinions”). Article 7 of
the Opinion sets out the adjustments to the term of prospecting rights,
pursuant to which the initial registration term of the prospecting rights
can be extended for five years by application. In the application for
extension of the registration of the prospecting rights, the area set out in
the initial exploration permit should be reduced by 25%.

During the Year, Can-Elite and China United submitted an application
for extension of the registration of the prospecting rights (the “Extension
Application”) to the relevant governmental authorities of the PRC. In the
Extension Application, the original area set out in the initial exploration
permit was reduced by 25% from 567.843 square kilometres to 428.553
square kilometres pursuant to Article 7 of the Opinions. As at the date
of this report, the Extension Application has not yet been approved.

The CBM business is one of the industrial businesses that the Group
focuses on. The CBM project located in Su’nan, Anhui entered into a
new construction stage during the Year. On 28 October 2020, Can-Elite
entered into an engineering technical service contract in relation to the
exploration- development integrated project with Beijing Sino-Welking
Energy Technology Service Co. Ltd. for the provision of data analysis,
technical solutions preparation, construction plan implementation,
data collection and overall technical report preparation in connection
with CBM operations. For exploration and deep-zone development, the
project used innovative top-drive drilling devices, one of the prevailing
major technologies in the field of oil drilling that represents the highest
level and development direction of special equipment for mechanics-
electronics-hydraulics integrated oil drilling in the oil drilling industry.

During the Year, most of the preparation and planning works for the
CBM project were delayed due to the outbreak of COVID-19. However,
thanks to the Group’s anti-pandemic efforts and arrangements, the CBM
project was able to officially resume development and exploration in
November 2020 after the pandemic was brought under control in the
PRC.

During the Year, one new horizontal well was drilled in Area A and
three vertical exploration wells were restored in Area B. It is further
reported by the exploration team that subsequent to the Year, the three
restored exploration wells have begun to produce methane gas and it is
expected that these wells have entered into a gas production stage with
a potential to achieve scalable production. Based on this, the Directors
are in the process of gathering certain information about the progress of
such development, and it is the intention of the Board to provide further
update to its shareholders of any further significant development of the
CBM business in terms of its business and financial performance as and
when appropriate.
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As at 31 December 2020, despite a gain on fair value change
of the embedded derivative portion of the convertible notes of
HK$61,599,000 (2019: HK$32,250,000), a loss of HK$27,152,000 for
CBM business (2019: HK$473,628,000) was recorded mainly due to
the amortisation of the PSC of HK$5,035,000 (2019: HK$15,701,000),
the imputed interest on convertible notes of HK$51,478,000 (2019:
HK$44,095,000), depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of HK$8,065,000 (2019: HK$9,087,000), impairment
loss of HK$1,946,000 (2019: HK$12,461,000) on property, plant and
equipment and impairment loss of HK$11,376,000 on the PSC in 2020
(2019: HK$413,598,000).

CBM is a strategic resource to which the state attaches great importance,
and is included in the long-term strategy for promoting the revolution
on energy production and consumption. The Group has been fostering
the development of the CBM business with technological innovations,
and supporting the progress of the CBM project with funds, resources
and policies to align with the sustainability principles and trends of
the state. With the global warming, society is more concerned with
environmental protection. CBM is an environmentally friendly and
highly efficient natural gas energy that effectively reduces greenhouse
gas emissions and enhances environmental benefits. The demand for
it will increase exponentially in the future. Going forward, the Group
will continue to promote the development of the CBM business and
accelerate the achievement of phased results of the CBM project to
contribute to society, environment, and economy and perform its
corporate social responsibility.

BEERWR DT

RZBEZZTF+ZA=+—8  BEHSF
HBREEANSTET AL D 2 AFEE
)z W 2561,599,0008 L ( =T — N4 ¢
32,250,000/8 7T ) + MEBE B R E DA Bk
527,152,000 8 T2 EBE(ZT—NF :
473,628,000/ ) + W EERREB
Ema KA R 2 #855,035000%8 T( =%
— L% : 15,701,000/870) ~ A/ EE 2
HEF B 51,478,000 L ( —F— N4 :
44,095,000 7T ) ~ Y% - R EHRERE
FEEEHTES,065,0008T( —T— N4 ¢
9,087,000 7T) * % - HR LR EREE
$81,946,000/8 70 (==& — /L4 : 12,461,000
BIL)ARRZZE_EFERDKE RS
JEE 111,376,000 7T ( —F — fL4F ¢
413,598,000/ 7T ) FTER

RERBERSEMINBBEER WK
AHEBEREENEBEE N RIMBE - M
SE - ERNURHRAIF SR ERER
ZER UNES BREBRLANX
HRERBEBHE  URABEFKAHEER
MRAIMEBE - BEEERRR(C HEEIE
REGRE  MRAERITRFEALSEHRAR
R - BRURERERBHN  REREX
& RREEZBRESTE LM - RER
Xm%%?&iﬂ@@ﬁ%%gﬁf IR E
RIABRSERENKR - BEE  BER
i%/;”é“‘f’ﬁﬁd,ﬁﬁ BIThEMEZEE -

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

—_
U1



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

—_—
(@)

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

(b) Comprehensive Healthcare Business

(0

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, the global demand
for personal protective gears and equipment has increased rapidly.
In particular, the demand for meltblown fabrics used for the filtration
layer in face masks had skyrocketed. In light of this, the Group officially
embarked on the new business segment in manufacturing and selling
medical devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products in
May 2020, and the management of the Group has proceeded to rename
the categorized business as “Comprehensive Healthcare” with a view
to further reflecting the business strategies of the company thereafter.
Leveraging its strength in the procurement network in the PRC, the
Group procured raw materials and machines for appropriate medical
products. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group derived
revenue of HK$60,399,000 from this business, mainly from the sales of
meltblown fabrics used for the filtration layer in face masks and sales
of related equipment and raw material. During the Year, the Group
acquired 10 meltblown fabrics production lines at a total amount
of RMB23,000,000. Due to the pandemic, the commencement of
production was delayed. However, four of the production lines began
trial production in early January 2021.

COVID-19 not only boosted the demand for medical care across the
globe, but also raised the health awareness of the public. According to
the Healthy China 2030 Blueprint issued by the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of China and the State Council of the PRC, it is
expected that by 2030, the medical devices and pandemic-prevention
supplies and products industry will have a market size of over RMB16
trillion, officially becoming an “emerging industry” with tremendous
economic value and development potential. Going forward, the Group
will continue to expand the comprehensive healthcare business to seize
new opportunities in the market and generate new sustainable business
growth for the Group.

Financial Business
The financial business includes securities brokerage, money lending,
consultancy and referral service.

During the Year, the Group actively expanded the financial business,
and capitalised on Hong Kong’s prominent position in international
finance to explore relevant financial services. In August 2020, the
Group successfully acquired the entire issued share capital of SD
Limited and SD Asset Management Limited, and then officially renamed
them as GCINT (HK) Limited (“GCINT (HK)") (£ EE R & 5 (F )
B B A 7 ) and GCINT Asset Management Limited (“GCINT Asset
Management”) (& 12 Bl X & & & 2 5 R 2 7)), respectively. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Group successfully obtained Type 1,
2,4, 5 and 9 licenses from the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong to provide customers with a number of financial services
such as securities, futures, investment advice, and asset management,
enabling the Group to build a comprehensive financial service platform.
In addition, the Group also holds a money lenders license under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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(i)  Securities Brokerage, Consultancy and Referral Service

Due to the time and total cost for re-activation of business, the
Group finally decided to cease the business of GCINT Limited
during the Year. Going forward, the Group will develop its
financial services business via the brands GCINT (HK) and
GCINT Asset Management. During the Year, the Group launched
a trading mobile application (& £ % &) to provide a one-stop
platform and system for customers in the mainland China and
Hong Kong. Furthermore, the Group has established a wholly-
owned subsidiary, 2 BB ZROFRIDERAF in Shenzhen
to grasp the business opportunities in the mainland China with
an aim to provide a momentum for the development of financial
service business. For the Year, the business recorded revenue of
HK$809,000 (2019: Nil) and segment loss of HK$5,131,000 (2019:
profit of HK$180,000).

(i) Money Lending
The Group conducts its money lending business by providing
both secured and unsecured loans to corporate and individual
customers. During the Year, due to the reallocation of funds,
the Group did not distribute any amount of funds to the money
lending business. As a result, for the Year, no revenue was
generated from this business (i.e. interest income) (2019: Nil).

Wealth Management Business

In order to develop itself into a conglomerate offering wealth and
financial solutions, the Group completed the subscription of 90% of the
enlarged issued share capital of United Able International Limited in
September 2020, which was subsequently renamed as GCINT Wealth
Management Limited (“GCINT Wealth Management”).

With an insurance brokerage company licence issued by the Insurance
Authority in Hong Kong as well as being a member of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, GCINT Wealth Management
strives to provide customers with diverse premium insurance products
and wealth management services. For the Year, the business recorded
revenue of HK$1,523,000 and segment profit of HK$1,038,000.

The measures put forward by the Hong Kong Government in the Chief
Executive’s 2020 Policy Address, including supporting Hong Kong's
insurance industry in establishing after-sales service centres in the cities
in the mainland China of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”) and promoting the “unilateral
recognition” policy to facilitate Hong Kong private cars travelling to
Guangdong via the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao- Bridge, are conducive
to a booming wealth management market.
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(e)

®

Proprietary Investment Business
The proprietary investment business includes securities trading.

As a result of various factors including the pandemic, presidential
election of the United States (“US”), and Sino-US relations, the stock
market became volatile during the Year. For the Year, the business
recorded a loss of HK$4,258,000 (2019: loss of HK$555,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any securities
investments exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group.

Electronic Components Business

The demand of the global consumables market remained weak due
to the impact of COVID-19. The Group’s electronic components
business was also affected as a result. For the Year, the revenue from
the electronic components segment decreased by 7.28% year-on-
year to HK$7,035,000. The segment loss amounted to HK$733,000,
representing a decrease of 47.53% as compared to last year. The Group
will regularly review the range of products distributed to cope with
the increasingly difficult business environment by formulating strategic
plans to generate stable revenue and return. However, as the dynamics
of the pandemic remain uncertain globally, the situation is not expected
to improve in the short run. As such, the management of the Group
will continue to pay close attention to the prospect of this business
and may consider the possibility of including but not limited to scaling
down or disposal of this business segment in the coming future so as to
concentrate resources on the core businesses of the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to

HK$34,411,000 (2019: HK$10,509,000), which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The net current liabilities of the Group

were approximately HK$369,227,000 (2019: the net current liabilities
of HK$63,713,000). As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bonds of

HK$9,996,000 (2019: HK$14,966,000), loan from the Ultimate Holding
Company of HK$107,655,000 (2019: HK$10,000,000), loan from the
Ultimate Controlling Party of HK$68,220,000 (2019: Nil) and convertible
notes (liability and embedded derivatives portion) of HK$358,179,000 (2019:
HK$378,955,000).
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets amounting to
HK$361,908,000 (2019: HK$190,954,000) and total liabilities of
HK$745,016,000 (2019: HK$518,688,000). The gearing ratio of the
Group, calculated as total liabilities over total assets, was 205.86% as at 31
December 2020 (2019: 271.63%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital deficiency attributable to the
Shareholders of HK$378,259,000 (2019: HK$322,830,000).

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operations from net
proceeds from operations, exercise of warrants, loans from the Ultimate
Holding Company and the Ultimate Controlling Party.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 24 August 2018, the Company entered into the convertible notes
restructuring agreement with New Alexander Limited (“New Alexander”),
pursuant to which New Alexander agreed to a consensual restructuring of its
rights and obligations under the existing convertible notes due 31 December
2018 (the “Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement”). Upon completion
of the stipulated conditions precedent to the Convertible Notes Restructuring
Agreement, new convertible notes due 31 December 2021 would be issued
for the settlement of the existing convertible notes. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 October 2018, the special mandate for the issue of the new
convertible notes with principal amount of HK$365,000,000 and bearing
interest at 2% per annum due 31 December 2021 (the “Convertible Notes”)
upon completion of the Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement and issue
and allotment of the conversion shares were approved. All the conditions
precedent under the Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement were
fulfilled and the completion took place on 6 November 2018.
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On 30 September 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company as purchaser
and New Alexander as vendor entered into a transfer agreement dated 30
September 2019 (the “CN Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the transfer
of the Convertible Notes, pursuant to which the Ultimate Holding Company
conditionally agreed to acquire and New Alexander conditionally agreed
to sell the Convertible Notes issued by the Company in the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into
a total of 3,041,666,666 new shares upon full conversion at the conversion
price of HK$0.12 per share, at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.102 per share of the Company). The
CN Transfer Agreement was completed on 1 April 2020. On 30 June 2020,
the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 were
converted into 83,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company. There were
Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$355,000,000 remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

WARRANTS

On 16 October 2019, a total of 143,755,385 bonus warrants were issued by
the Company on the basis of one warrant for every five shares held on 30
September 2019, being the record date for ascertaining the entitlements of
Shareholders to the bonus warrant issue. The holders of these bonus warrants
are entitled to subscribe in cash for 143,755,385 new shares of the Company
at an initial subscription price of HK$0.04 per share at any time during the
period commencing from 16 October 2019 to 15 October 2020 (both dates
inclusive). If all bonus warrants are exercised, net proceeds of approximately
HK$5,750,000 will be raised. During the Year, 124,045,930 new ordinary
shares of the Company were issued upon the exercise of 124,045,930 units
of these bonus warrants. Net proceeds of approximately HK$4,962,000 were
raised upon the exercise of the bonus warrants and were used as the general
working capital of the Group.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars; the existing currency peg of Hong Kong dollars with United States
dollars will likely continue in the near future, so the exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuation is minimal.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENCIES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other contingencies as at 31 December 2020.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no charges on assets.

LITIGATION

As at the date of this report, there was no material litigation, arbitration or
claim of material importance in which the Company is engaged or pending
or which was threatened against the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other material event after the reporting period.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 90 employees, of which 30 were
in Hong Kong and 60 were in the PRC. Employee remuneration policy of the
Group is reviewed periodically and is determined based on performance of
the Group and employees’ responsibilities, qualifications and performances.
Remuneration packages comprise basic salary, discretionary bonus,
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong and the
state-managed employee pension schemes for employees in the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other material acquisitions and disposals.

PROSPECTS

The year 2020 has been a very challenging year due to COVID-19. The
Group responded positively and achieved innovations and charted plans in
various business activities during the Year amid such challenges, maintaining
an optimistic industry outlook. Under the new economic development
model, the Group will continue to create new corporate opportunities on the
back of its diverse industry plans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

As global environmental problems deteriorate, analyses by the US National
Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) and National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) have pointed out that the global average
temperature has risen by more than 2 degrees Fahrenheit, mainly as a result
of increased emissions of carbon dioxide produced by human activities
and other greenhouse gases. The development and use of new energy will
become a major future trend, and the market demand for natural gas will
see an ongoing increase. As a clean and alternative new energy, CBM is a
strategic energy source attracting great national attention. The Group will
continue to focus on its CBM business and vigorously promote the large-
scale exploration and development of CBM in Su’nan through rendering
technological support, and strive to make achievements stage by stage as
it moves forward. Meanwhile, the Group also continues to pay attention to
the market of comprehensive healthcare, and proactively formulates plans
for seizing market opportunities to drive sustainable growth in the Group’s
business revenue. In addition, the Group will continue to aggressively
evaluate development in various industries so as to strengthen the Group’s
industry expansion.

Looking forward into 2021, the rollout of vaccines will drive the gradual
recovery and rebound of the economy. The Group will continue to focus
on its financial business and proactively build a premium financial service
platform, improving and enhancing its operational performance continuously.
Meanwhile, the Greater Bay Area will be one of the Group's targets for
development to seize new market opportunities amid China’s economic
transition. The Greater Bay Area is a major economic zone developed
under the reform and opening up of the PRC in the new era. Its constituent
cities have three major ports among the top ten ports globally. Improved
connectivity between cities has created synergy, as demonstrated by the
powerful economic strength of achieving turnaround in gross domestic
product (GDP) growth of seven cities in the Pearl River Delta during the third
quarter of 2020 even under the impact of the pandemic. The Group will
vigorously formulate plans for making a presence in the Greater Bay Area
and actively explore the area’s development potential. Meanwhile, the Group
plans to apply for a Qualified Foreign Limited Partner (QFLP) licence in the
mainland China to gain exposure to the domestic private equity and venture
capital investment markets to drive new revenue growth for the group. Going
forward, the Group will continue to deepen its “industry + finance” dual-
driver approach and integration of industry and finance, further cultivate its
business in the Greater Bay Area, strengthen its strategic plans worldwide and
strive to build Golden Century International into a global industry and finance
platform offering one-stop financial solutions, marking the Group’s global
footprint and creating greater value and better returns for the shareholders of
the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEBR[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Jibiao, aged 47, was appointed as the chairman and an executive
director of the Company in December 2019 and as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in September 2020. He completed a PhD program
in law from China University of Political Science and Law in the PRC in
2015. He completed a degree of Master program in Finance from Hong
Kong Finance and Economics College in Hong Kong in 2020. He was a legal
consultant of Shenzhen Jinze Shiye Development Company Limited* during
the period from 1996 to 2004, and was a general manager of Guangzhou
Jinxi Credit Guarantee Company Limited* during the period from 2004
to 2009. Mr. Pan is a founder and has been a director of Yongzhou Jinxi
Guarantee Company Limited* since 2009. He is also a founder and has been
a director of Hunan Shengda Jinxi Financial Services Company Limited* since
2071. Mr. Pan has twenty years of management and investment experience
in financial and treasury services in the PRC.

SHAO Yanxia, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in April 2020. Ms. Shao was graduated from Shandong University
of Finance in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001.
She received her master’s degree in business administration from Central
South University, the PRC, in May 2011. Ms. Shao has extensive experience
in the areas of corporate management and investment. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Shao worked for Founder Securities (Hong Kong) Limited as an
executive director of channel sales department from May 2015 to September
2019, where she was responsible for managing the operation in Hong
Kong. Ms. Shao was also a licensed representative of (i) Founder Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited which was licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) to carry
on Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) regulated activities during April 2016 to
September 2019; and (ii) Founder Futures (Hong Kong) Limited which was
licensed under the SFO to carry on Type 2 (Dealing in Futures Contracts)
regulated activities during September 2017 to September 2019. Before joining
the Hong Kong branch, Ms. Shao had worked for Founder Securities Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 601901).

* For identification purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English translation
of the Chinese names. In the event of any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

SHIU Shu Ming, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2020. Mr. Shiu holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly known as City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong) in 1993 and is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a licensed person registered under the SFO
to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities.
He has more than 20 years’ experience in corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, initial public offerings and fund raising exercises in various
ventures and projects with a deal portfolio covering private entities, China
state owned enterprises and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia. Mr. Shiu is currently the responsible
officer of Euto Capital Partners Limited. From May 2014 to April 2015, Mr.
Shiu was a responsible officer of Upbest Assets Management Limited and
Upbest Securities Company Limited which are wholly owned subsidiaries
of Upbest Group Limited (stock code: 0335), a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
From November 2010 to September 2013, Mr. Shiu was a responsible
officer of Grand Vinco Capital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Vinco
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8340), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Yim Por Bonnie, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in July 2011. He is also the chairman
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan
is a solicitor and notary public (practicing) in Hong Kong who was admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1992. He
is currently a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong as well as the Hong
Kong Society of Notaries. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor’s Degree of Laws
in 1988 and a Master’s Degree of Laws in 1993 and has been practicing as
a solicitor in the commercial field in Hong Kong since 1991. He established
his own firm, Messrs. Yeung & Chan, Solicitors in 1996 and is now the
sole proprietor of the firm. He has been a part time lecturer and tutor of the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in The University of Hong Kong since 2002
and was admitted as an adjunct lecturer of the HKU School of Professional
and Continuing Education in 2009.

LAI Kin Keung, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in April 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lai received his Doctor of Philosophy
degree in civil engineering from Michigan State University, United States
of American, in September 1977. He is currently a professor at the College
of Economics, Shenzhen University, the PRC and an honorary professor at
the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems Engineering, the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1157) since June
2015 and an independent director of Bank of Communications Schroders in
Shanghai since October 2018. Mr. Lai was an independent non-executive
director of Minshang Creative Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Food Wise Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1632) from November 2016 to July 2018. Mr. Lai was teaching
at the City University of Hong Kong from July 1985 to August 2016 where his
last post was the chair professor of management science between September
2003 and August 2016. Mr. Lai was also the dean of the College of Business
Administration of Hunan University, the PRC, from February 2005 to
February 2008.
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EENEREEAEHN

YEUNG Chi Wai, age 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in April 2020. He is also a chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Yeung has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, finance and audit. He is the founder and director of Edwin
Yeung & Company (CPA) Limited, which was incorporated in 2008. Mr.
Yeung has currently been an independent non-executive directors of China
Outfitters Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1146) since June 2011, and Wah Sun Handbags
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2683) since January 2018. Mr. Yeung has been
a director of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association
Limited since September 2019. He is a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Shandong Province and a member of
the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), an independent statutory body
established by the Government of Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung has been an
associate of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants since 1988.
He became an associate member and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1989 and 1996, respectively.
He is also a member of the Disciplinary Panel of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has been a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1993, a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 2005 and
a fellow member of CPA Australia since 2010. He was the president of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in 2008. He was awarded the
Medal of Honour by the Government of the Hong Kong in 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LEE Kin Fai, aged 48, is the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. He holds a master’s degree in business
administration from The University of Manchester in United Kingdom
obtained in 2007. He was admitted as a certified public accountant in
1998 and is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the areas of financial
management and company secretarial affairs.

HUEN Ting Cheung, aged 34, is the Joint Company Secretary of the
Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Edinburgh
Napier University in United Kingdom obtained in January 2010 and is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a licensed person registered under Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to carry out Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity. Mr. Huen has extensive experience
in the areas of accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Huen has been
a responsible officer of Euto Capital Partners Limited, a licensed corporation
under the SFO to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity, since August 2019. From July 2015 to August 2019, Mr. Huen was a
licensed representative of Euto Capital Partners Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

FUNG, Fai Dennis, aged 56, has been appointed as the Chief People Officer
since April, 2020. Mr. Fung has over 20 years’ experience in compensation
strategy, people development and incentive plan design.

Mr. Fung has provided management advisory services to senior executives
and the board of directors of difference entities in China financial markets
since 2000. Prior to joining our Group, he served as the director for China
Business to Mclagan Partners, providing strategic planning in human
resources for international clients operating in the China financial markets. In
addition, Mr. Fung has been the vice president, Compensation and Benefits
for Societe Generale Corporate & Investment Banking during 2007 to 2010.

Mr. Fung obtained a Bachelor of Statistics degree from the University
of Minnesota, the United States in 1991, a Master of Science degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick, the
United Kingdom in 1997, and a Fintech Certificate from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, the United States in 2016.

LI Jianhao, aged 42, has been appointed as the Chief Investment Officer in
October, 2020. Mr. Li has over 15 years’ experience in the financial industry
focusing on private equity, investment banking and legal services.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li was the managing partner for a domestic
private equity fund, focusing on multi-asset investment management,
investment vehicles including securities, bonds, and insurance products,
fund size was over RMB3 billion. He also serviced in South China Financial
Holdings in Hong Kong, Shenwan Hongyuan Securities, and Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd in Beijing in his earlier career years.

Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering degree from the
Shandong University in the PRC in 2001, a Master of Law degree from the
Beijing University in the PRC in 2004, and a master’s degree in business
administration from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Director(s)”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as International
Standard Resources Holdings Group Limited) (“Company”) is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices and believes that maintaining high standard of corporate
governance practices is crucial to the development of the Company
and essential for maintaining and promoting investor’s confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns.

During the Year, the Company had complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with an exception of
code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of which will be explained below.

In order to protect and enhance the benefits of the shareholders, the Board
and its executive management will continue to monitor and review the
governance policies so as to ensure that such policies comply with the
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities transactions on exactly the terms and required standard contained
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all the Directors, they confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to make decision on the
objectives, strategic plans, budgets and management structure of the
Company; to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”); to supervise the
management of the business and affairs with the objective of enhancing the
Company and its shareholders” value with the proper delegation of power
to the management for its day-to-day operation; to implement the Board’s
decision by implementing the budgets and strategic plans and developing the
organisation of the Company.

The Board has reviewed, inter alia, the performance and formulated business
strategy of the Group during the Year. Also, the Board has reviewed and
approved the annual and interim results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Composition

The Board reviews and approves corporate matters such as business strategies
and investments as well as the general administration and management of
the Group. The Board as at the date of this report consists of two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”):

Executive Directors
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Yanxia

Non-Executive Director
Shiu Shu Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lai Kin Keung

Yeung Chi Wai

Chan Yim Por Bonnie
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The Directors as aforesaid, accompanied by their respective biographical
details, are listed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report and that the INEDs are expressly
identified in all the Company’s publication such as announcement, circular
or relevant corporate communications in which the names of directors of the
Company as disclosed.

Out of the three INEDs, Mr. Yeung Chi Wai possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and related financial management
expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Each of the
INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all INEDs are
independent.

The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and
experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company and that the current Board size is adequate
for its present operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company. All Directors are updated from
time to time with development in the laws and regulations applicable to the
Company.

The Board has regularly reviewed the contribution required from the
Directors to perform their responsibilities to the Company, and whether they
are spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis at approximately quarterly
intervals and on an ad hoc basis, as required by business needs. The articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) allow Board meetings to be
conducted by way of telephone or otherwise orally and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and signed by all Directors
from time to time when necessary unless any matters in which a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest. Notices of regular Board
meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings
while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings so as to
ensure that each of them had an opportunity to attend the meetings. Agendas
and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the appointed date of Board meetings and at least 3 days
before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. Sufficient
information was also supplied by the management to the Board to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make decisions, which are made in the best
interests of the Company. Separate independent professional advice would
be provided to the Directors, upon reasonable request, to assist them to
discharge their duties. The Company has also arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors. Minutes of Board
meetings recorded in sufficient detail of matters considered and the decisions
reached were kept by the company secretary and available for inspection by
the Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings and general
meeting during the Year is set out below:

A 'm:w\p H®
1 E)I:l*ﬁm

FAREENEZRERRBRAGNHFLE

Name of Directors

;o
Attendance/Number of
BRHER RHY
Extraordinary Annual
Board General General
Meetings Meetings Meeting

EEHA EERER RERSRIAS REBFERS

Mr. Pan Jibiao BAER TS 36/36 2/2 1/1

Ms. Shao Yanxia (note 1) BRYBEE A (MfatT) 26/26 1/1 1/1

Mr. Lo Tsz Fung Philip (note 2) ErFE S (Hat2) 25/25 1/1 1/1

Mr. Tam Tak Wah (note 3) BIRESR L (M3) 14/15 1/1 0/0

Mr. Cheng Wai Keung (note 4) BRE R Sk (AT at4) 11/11 11 0/0

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (note 5) RRARRR S A (Hfat5) 18/18 1/1 1/1

Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRA K e 13/13 1/1 1/1

Mr. Lai Kin Keung (note 6) RER A (Mite) 8/8 1/1 1/1

Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (note 7) B EEE (M) 8/8 1/1 1/1

Mr. Chan Tsz Kit (note 8) BRF e A (7t 8) 4/4 1/1 0/0

Mr. Wang Li (note 9) FHEAEH9) 4/4 1/1 0/0

Notes: i3

(1) Ms. Shao Yanxia was appointed as the executive Director on 6 April 2020. (1) AUEZLTR_Z_ZFNANBEZTANITE
.

(2)  Mr. Lo Tsz Fung Philip resigned as the executive Director on 1 July 2020. 2) EFEEER-_ZT_TFELA-—HBINTES -

(3)  Mr. Tam Tak Wah resigned as the executive Director on 4 May 2020. (3) EEEAEVR_Z_TFRAANEBIHRTES -

(4)  Mr. Cheng Wai Keung resigned as the executive Director on 6 April 2020. (4) EEBEER T _TFIANHEIWNTES -

(50 Mr. Shiu Shu Ming was appointed as the non-executive Director on 18 March 2020. (5) BRBPEENR-Z_TF=AT/\BEZERIENT
Ex-o

(6)  Mr. Lai Kin Keung was appointed as the independent non-executive Director on  (6) HEJREEN T -_TFINA/NHEZTAELIEHR

6 April 2020. TES -
(7)  Mr. Yeung Chi Wai was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 6 April (7)) HBEEEENRZFE_TFMNA/NBEZTAELIEHR
2020. TEE -

(8)  Mr. Chan Tze Kit resigned as independent non-executive Director on 6 April 2020. 8) BRTGEEAENR-_ZE-_TFNA A NBETBEIIFRNITE
=.

(99 Mr. Wang Li resigned as independent non-executive Director on 6 April 2020. 9 FTHEEAR-_T_ZTFNANBEHEBELIERTE

Mr. Lo Tsz Fung Philip, Mr. Tam Tak Wah, Mr. Cheng Wai Keung, Mr. Chan
Tsz Kit and Mr. Wang Li resigned due to their other career development and
to devote more time on their family commitments.

o
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The chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of INEDs in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between executive Directors and INEDs. During the Year, the
chairman held a meeting with the INEDs without the presence of executive
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1)

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The divisions of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the Year, Mr. Lyu Guoping has ceased to be the CEO of the Company
with effect from 1 September 2020. Following Mr. Lyu Guoping’s cessation
to be the CEO, Mr. Pan Jibiao was appointed as the CEO of the Company.
This constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.2.1.

However, the chairman and CEO, Mr. Pan Jibiao, who is also an executive
Director, has led the Board and ensured that the Board works together as a
group and that decisions of the Board are taken on a well-informed basis and
in the best interest of the Company and all important issues are discussed in
a timely manner. Mr. Pan Jibiao also manages the strategic development of
business and operation of the Group while the Group develops its business
with his leadership in the Board.

Non-executive Directors (Deviation from Code Provision A.4.1)

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie is the
only independent non-executive Director who is not appointed for a specific
term while Mr. Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi Wai both entered into
the service agreements with the Company for a term of three years. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.4.1. However, more than
one-third of the Directors (including executive and non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting under
the Articles of Associations of the Company. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the corporate
governance practices of the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Articles. The Board as a whole is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of INEDs.

Under the code provision A.4.2 and in accordance with the Articles, directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
board should be subject to election by shareholders at the next AGM after
their appointment.
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Attendance of Non-executive Directors at General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should give the board
and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. Generally, they should also attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

At the respective general meetings of the Company, there were executive
Directors and INEDs present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments
shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, expertise, skills and know-how. The ultimate decision shall be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Policy
and review the Board composition under diversified perspectives annually
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the businesses of the Company. As
at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors. Three of them
are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and control of the management
process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether
considered in terms of gender, nationality, professional background and
skills.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development Programme

All Directors are provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses of the
Company as well as their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. Moreover, Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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TERERRE

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the

ARFSBEREF2ERETXER - BEY
EHMENMBRIXEE - RAFE > 2BEFH
REETRAREMHERERREEREZ &

Year, all Directors are provided with updates on the latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Some Directors also attended seminars and/or conferences
and/or talks organised by professional bodies on topics including corporate
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mzEMEERER
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governance, Listing Rules updates, legal supervising or financial updates. & ° RIFEEARENLE  EEREE_ZT=

A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended 31

December 2020 according to the records provided by the Directors is as

follows:

EE+ A=t RIFERRE

FEBEINT -

Types of Training

Name of Directors EEpns EIIEE
Mr. Pan Jibiao i e B
Ms. Shao Yanxia (appointed on 6 April 2020) AR ER 2 £+

(R -TFMANBEERE) B
Mr. Lo Tsz Fung Philip (resigned on 1 July 2020) EfrErt

(R=Z=ZTFLA—HEE) A B
Mr. Tam Tak Wah (resigned on 4 May 2020) EBEELE (RN _EFH AMNBFHIT) A, B
Mr. Cheng Wai Keung (resigned on 6 April 2020) BREBEE(RZZE_ZFMHANBEEE) B
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (appointed on 18 March 2020) AL A

(R—ZE-ZF=A+\HEZD) N/ATjiE R
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie PR AR S A B
Mr. Lai Kin Keung (appointed on 6 April 2020) ESEr Tt

(RZZE=ZFANHEZRE) A, B
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (appointed on 6 April 2020) BEERE

(R-ZE-ZTFMARNAEERE) A, B
Mr. Chan Tsz Kit (resigned on 6 April 2020) l@%{%‘ai(ﬁ/\f&ff ZEPY HSBEHUE) A, B
Mr. Wang Li (resigned on 6 April 2020) THSE (R -ZF //XHEIT) B

A:  Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or talks

B: Reading updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and other B:

relevant legal and regulatory requirements

A HIEHEIER S
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BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee (collectively
“Board Committees”), with defined written terms of reference which are
in line with the code provisions of the CG Code describing their respective
authority and duties and for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are set out in
the websites of the Company www.gci.com.hk and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk). All the members of the Board committees are INEDs.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
Minutes of the Board Committees meetings recorded sufficient detail of
matters and the decisions reached were kept by the company secretary and
available for inspection by the respective committee members.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy, determining the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management as well as making recommendations
to the Board the remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives of the Board. No Director takes part in
any discussion on his/her own remuneration. As at the date of this report,
members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Mr. Chan Yim Por
Bonnie (Chairman), Mr. Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi Wai, all of whom
are INEDs. Mr. Chan Tsz Kit and Mr. Wang Li resigned as the member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 6 April 2020.

Mr. Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi Wai has been appointed as the
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 6 April 2020.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year and has
determined the remuneration packages of Mr. Lo Tsz Fung Philip as the
executive director, the company secretary, the authorised representative and
the chief financial officer of the Company and Mr. Pan Jibiao as the executive
director and chairman of the Company. The attendance record is set out
below:

RAFE  FTHZEEERIT=ZREH  UEX
ARBHATESE  REWE  BRARFERY
BEEFERERRNRRNITESRIFEREY
SEERFBNTE - MR LTI

Attendance/
Number of Remuneration
Committee Meetings

FTHMEESER
Name of Directors EEnE HEERRE
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie (Chairman) BRI Se A (F ) 3/3
Mr. Lai Kin Keung (appointed on 6 April 2020) s LSt
(R=Z-_TFMOANAEERE) 1”1
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (appointed on 6 April 2020) BERELE
(RZZE_ZFMARNBEEE) 1/1
Mr. Chan Tsz Kit (resigned on 6 April 2020) FBRFEEE A (R - —TF N A/NBET) 2/2
Mr. Wang Li (resigned on 6 April 2020) ITHRAEE(R-_Z-_ZFOARNAEE) 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, taking into account
candidates’ qualifications, in particular any qualifications as required in
the Listing Rules, ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics in considering and recommending to the Board suitable persons for
appointment as Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
to complement the corporate strategy of the Company, and assessing the
independence of the INEDs. As at the date of this report, members of the
Nomination Committee comprise Mr. Lai Kin Keung (Chairman), Mr. Yeung
Chi Wai and Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie, all of whom are INEDs. Mr. Chan
Yim Por Bonnie resigned as the chairman of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 6 April 2020 and Mr. Lai Kin Keung has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 6 April 2020.

Mr. Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi Wai has been appointed as the
member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 6 April 2020.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year and has
determined the suitability and duties and responsibilities of Mr. Lo Tsz Fung
Philip as the executive director, the company secretary, the authorised
representative and the chief financial officer of the Company and Mr.
Pan Jibiao as the executive director and chairman of the Company. The
attendance record is set out below:

SRERRE

RAFE  REZEGEURITMAGHE - UEE
ARBHATESE  REWE  BRARFERY
BEEFERERRNRRNITESRIFEREY
FENAEMERBE - HELEETIAT

Attendance/
Number of Nomination
Committee Meetings

REZEEESR
Name of Directors EEME HEE XY
Mr. Lai Kin Keung (Chairman) (appointed on 6 April 2020) 223854 (£/&)
(RZZE_ZFMARNBEEE) 0/0
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRA R e 4 2/2
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (appointed on 6 April 2020) HEEEE
(RZZB-ZFMANBEERE) 0/0
Mr. Chan Tsz Kit (resigned on 6 April 2020) BRFEEEE(R T -TFMANAEE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Li (resigned on 6 April 2020) ITHRAEL(R-_Z-_ZFOARXAEE) 2/2

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process and
internal control and risk evaluation, overseeing the audit process, and liaison
among shareholder, the Board and the auditor of the Company. No former
partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm acted as a member of the
Audit Committee within one year from ceasing to be a partner or having any
financial interest in the auditing firm. As at the date of this report, members
of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Yim Por Bonnie and Mr. Lai Kin Keung, all of whom are INEDs. Mr. Chan
Tsz Kit and Mr. Wang Li resigned as the chairman and member of the Audit
Committee respectively with effect from 6 April 2020.
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Four meetings were held during the Year. The Audit Committee reviewed
(i) the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and unaudited interim financial statement for the six months ended 30 June
2020 of the Group with recommendation to the Board for approval; (ii) the
accounting policies adopted by the Group and issues related to accounting
practices with the senior management and auditor of the Company, the audit
scope and fees, and qualifications, independence and performance of the
auditor of the Company; and (iii) the financial reporting system and internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. The attendance record is
set out below:

RAFE  FEREZELERITEREH  LOE
MAKBEHZ-Z—hhE+_A=+—HILFE
HREZVBBRERRBE-_E-_EFA=1H
IEARE AR EEZP R BHRE - ERABEE
EEEEREL  (VHEARFSHEREABNZ
HEMR T A EEMEM 2 QT ECR R EEFHE]
MEAZET B HENER  URAQARZH
BRI B B EFRIE « RGiRe AN E 2 B
BREZFURANBEELEREEZS o HE
WLEREHIT

Attendance/
Number of Audit
Committee Meetings

EREESE;

Name of Directors EEMA HEERE
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai(Chairman) (appointed on 6 April 2020) 1B&{E%E(EE)

(RZZ-_TFMANAEEE) 4/4
Mr. Lai Kin Keung (appointed on 6 April 2020) e SEL: S

(R—ZZE-ZFMARNBEERE) 4/4
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRAS IR S 4/4
Mr. Chan Tsz Kit (resigned on 6 April 2020) RFEEEE(R T _FTFMARNBEE) 0/0
Mr. Wang Li (resigned on 6 April 2020) THRELE(R - -TFHANBEEIE) 0/0

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate governance
duties as required under the CG Code:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company. The Group has outsourced the internal control
function. The outsourced internal control adviser reports directly to the Audit
Committee and is responsible for conducting regular reviews on the major
activities of the Group. The objective is to ensure that all important controls,
including financial, operational compliance, and risk management functions
are in place and functioning effectively.

Internal Control

During the Year, the Audit Committee approved the annual internal audit
plan. The plan includes a number of cyclical reviews of key operational
functions to ensures that, while there is focus on areas deemed to be higher
risk, all parts of the business will be covered over a three-year cycle. The
annual internal audit plan will be reviewed at least annually to ensure that
it is adapted as necessary to any changes in the Group’s risk profile and is
considered to be effective and adequate.

The Board has received a report from the outsourced internal control adviser
summarising the reviews concluded in the Year. The report summarised
internal control review findings and any action to be taken by management as
a result. A summary of the internal control review activities during the Year is
as follows:

(@) performed operational review on business units of the Group to ascertain
the adequacy and integrity of their system of internal controls and made
recommendations for improvement where weaknesses were found; and

(b)  conducted follow-up review to determine the adequacy, effectiveness
and timeliness of actions taken by the management on audit
recommendations and provided updates on their status to the Audit
Committee.

After each review, the findings and recommendations for improvement will
be communicated to the respective management for their responses and
corrective actions. The Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and
recommendations made by the outsourced internal control adviser and have
ensured that any issues arising from the review are appropriately resolved by
management in an efficient and timely manner.

It should be recognised that such review can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it is designed
to manage rather than eliminate those risks that may affect the Company in
achieving its business objectives.
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Risk Management

The successful management of risk is essential for the long term growth and
sustainability of the Group’s business. The principal activities of the Group
are the coalbed methane exploration and exploitation in the PRC, sale of
electronic components and treasury which includes securities trading and
money lending. These can only be achievable if certain risks are managed
effectively.

The Board has overall accountability for determining the type and level of risk
it is prepared to take. The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee which
seeks to identify risks for Board’s consideration. Further, the Audit Committee
monitors, and deploys appropriate actions to control or mitigate the risks.
They also assess the likelihood of these risks occurring. Risk mitigation
factors are reviewed and documented based on the level and likelihood of
occurrence. The Audit Committee reviews the risk register and monitors the
implementation of risk mitigation procedures via executive management.

Based on the report from the outsourced internal control adviser, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers them to be adequate and
effective and the Group has complied with the CG Code.

The Company has also developed inside information policy which sets out
guidelines to the employees of the Group to ensure inside information is
to be disseminated to the public in equal, timely and effectively manner in
accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the Listing Rules and
all other applicable rules and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Kin Fai and Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung have been appointed as
the joint company secretaries of the Company to replace Mr. Lo Tsz Fung
Philip on 9 April 2020. The company secretary has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. The company secretary reports to the chairman and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For the Year under
review, the company secretaries have confirmed that they have taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of Mr. Lee Kin Fai and Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung
are set out in the section of biographical details of directors and senior
management of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 December 2020, results and cash flows for the year
then ended and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance;
appropriate accounting policies have been selected, consistently used and
applied, and reasonable judgements and estimates are properly made.

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 89 to 95 of this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the Year, the fees paid to the auditor of the Company comprise
services charges for the following:
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RISER

2020 2019

—BCERF —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Statutory audit EEER 680 630

Review of interim results ERP IS 100 100

Other non-audit services E IR 113 140

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS IR ERAER

Enquiries to the Board MEERELHER

The Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. They may also at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available and make enquiries to the Company with
the contact details provided by post, telephone, fax or email.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

In accordance with sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Ordinance”),
shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general meetings can
send a written request to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company at
45/F, Tower 1, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: info@gci.com.hk). Such
requisition, signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a request (after being verified to be valid) proceed to convene
an EGM on a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the EGM is given, the shareholders concerned, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

To put forward proposals at the shareholders’ meeting, shareholders are
requested to follow sections 580 and 615 of the Ordinance, which a request
in writing must be made by:

(@) shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having the right to vote at the shareholder’s meeting; or

(b) atleast 50 shareholders holding shares of the Company having the right
to vote at the meeting,

to the Company to give to shareholders notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM, or to circulate to
shareholders any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at any general meeting.

The written request must be signed by all the shareholders concerned in one
or more documents in like form and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Upon the request verified to be valid, the Company will give notice of the
resolution or circulate the statement.
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If a shareholder of the Company intends to propose a person other than a
Director for election as a director of the Company at any general meeting, the
shareholder concerned shall lodge with the registered office of the Company
for the attention of the company secretary (i) a written notice of his intention
to propose that person for election as a director of the Company; and (ii) a
notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected together
with the necessary information within the period commencing no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detailed procedures can be found in the following documents which are
available on the website of the Company:

e “Shareholders Communication Policy”
e “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director”

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and, in particular, use AGM or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during the proceedings of
meetings. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange following the general meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The chairman of
all the committees or in the absence of the chairman of such committee,
another member of the committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate,
is available to answer questions at the general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains websites
at www.gci.com.hk, which contains corporation information, interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by the Company as
well as the recent developments of the Company, to enable the shareholders
of the Company to have timely and updated information of the Company.
Shareholders can refer to the “Shareholders Communication Policy” posted
on the website of the Company for more details.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after taking into account the
Group’s results of operation of the business, actual and expected financial
performance, general business conditions and strategies, expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans and other factors as it may
deem relevant at such time. Any proposed distribution of dividends will be
subject to the Company’s constitutional documents and the Companies Law,
including the approval of the Shareholders. Future declarations of dividends
may or may not be reflected from the Company’s historical declarations of
dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 26 March 2021.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

The latest and consolidated version of the Articles is available for inspection
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIS - HERERWE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is mainly engaged in
coalbed methane (“CBM”) business, electronic components business,
financial business, wealth management business, proprietary investment
business, and comprehensive healthcare business. The Group is pleased
to present its fifth Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”). This ESG Report summarises the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the
Group and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach regarding its
ESG issues. The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees and sets out
ESG strategy for the Group. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
mechanisms. To develop a systematic management approach to ESG
issues, the Group has arranged designated personnel to manage the
Group’s ESG matters. The designated personnel are responsible to
collect relevant information on the ESG aspects for the preparation of
the ESG Report. It periodically reports to the Board, assists in identifying
and assessing the Group’s ESG risk, and evaluates the implementation
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. It also
examines and reviews the Group’s ESG performance, including
environmental, labour practices, and other ESG aspects.

Scope of Reporting

This ESG Report generally covers the Group’s ESG performance of the
Hong Kong headquarters and the its major business segment including
(a) CBM business; (b) comprehensive healthcare business; and (c)
electronic components business. The ESG key performance indicator
(“KP1”) data are gathered and are included under the Group’s direct
operational control. The Group will continue to assess the major ESG
aspects of different businesses and to extend the scope of disclosure
when and where applicable.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI HEREBRS

Reporting Framework

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Information relating to the Group’s corporate
governance practices has been set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 28 to 44 of this annual report.

Reporting Period

This ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures
being taken by the Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

Contact Us

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders.
You may provide your comments on the ESG Report or towards
the Group’s performance in respect of sustainability via email to
info@gci.com.hk.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises the responsibility and accountability to all
stakeholders. To understand and address the key concerns of different
stakeholders, the Group has been maintaining close communication
with them. The Group will continue to ensure the involvement of
stakeholders via constructive conversation to chart long term prosperity.
Stakeholders” expectations and requirements have been taken into
consideration by utilising diversified engagement methods and
communications channels as shown below:
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Communication Expectations

Stakeholders channels and equirements Management’s response
BE BERE MERER EEEDRE
Governments/ > Compliance advisors > Compliance with laws and > Uphold integrity and compliance
regulatory bodies > AREM regulations in operations
BT/ B A > Legal advisors > ETREER > REERRFAERER
> AEEM > Fulfilment of tax obligation > Pay tax on time
> EORBAE > IREER
> Establish a comprehensive and
effective internal control system
> RBUZAMAMEHNIEEERS
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Communication Expectations
Stakeholders channels and equirements Management’s response
"rE BERE HERER EEEDRE
Shareholders/investors > Annual general meetings > Investment return > The management has relevant
BRRREE and other general > REMO®R experience and expertise to ensure
meetings > Compliance with relevant sustainability in the businesses
> BREBFAGRHEMRE laws and regulations > EREAFBBLRNMEEDS
N > ETHEEERESR R ER A AL
> Financial reports > Corporate governance > Publish information regularly
> HB®RE system through the Stock Exchange’s and
> Announcements and > DELAEHIE the Company’s websites
circulars > Corporate sustainability > F BT R AVA R AL E A %
> REREHR > REAEHER WA
> Company website > Operating risks > Endeavour to improve internal
> QA management control and risk management
REmmER > ENRENRERNERER
> Information transparency
>  EMERE
Employees > Performance evaluation or > Labour rights > Establish contractual obligations to
BT appraisal > BTz protect labour rights
> BERGTEREERZ > Career development > HIEAHNEENMRES TR
> Employee handbook > FEER > Encourage employees to participate
> [EEFHH > Remuneration and benefit in continuous educational and
> Training programme > ?%@*WEM professional training to enhance
> EIERE > Health and safety competencies
> RERZE > BREETI2ESEHANEXE
> Corporate culture LR Y
>  REXE > Establish a fair, reasonable and

competitive remuneration system

> RBUAT - ABMARFNOZH
BE

> Attach importance to occupational
health and safety

> IBRERRELZE
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Communication Expectations
Stakeholders channels and equirements Management’s response
"rE BERE HERER EEEDRE
Customers > Customer service hotline > High quality products and > Continuously provide high quality
b and email services products and services to meet
>  EFRBRGNER >  BEERERSE customer needs
> Company website > Timely delivery > BERMEEERERBANLE
> DR > RERE Fa%
> Financial reports > Reasonable price > Build an efficient and green supply
> BERE > [ERGHE chain
> Regular customer > Customer privacy > BUsBBZEHtER
meetings protection > Develop a comprehensive quality
> THEFEFH >  REEFILE assurance process and recall
> Compliant operation procedure
> AREE > HlERANEERERENDUIE
> Green supply chain Fr
> REfER > Ensure contractual obligations are
fulfilled
>  HRETAHEL
Suppliers > Site visits > Stable supply > Ensure contractual obligations are
HRRER > FHFHHRG > HERE fulfilled
> Teleconference > Maintaining a good > WBRETEOEE
> EHEgm relationship with the > Develop supply chain management
Company policy and procedure
> HERARFRIER > HIEHERERNHRNEF
> Corporate reputation > Maintain a steady and long term
> REEE collaborative relationship
>  Fairand open tendering >  REFEAERIEESEBRF
> RTRREEE > Strictly select suppliers
> EEMEMER
Community > Company website > Environmental protection > Pay attention to climate change
it > REHh > RERE > BIREEL
> ESG reports > Community involvement > Encourage employees to actively
> R HegkEais > HE2H participate in charity events and
> Financial reports > Economic development voluntary services
> BEwE > RERR > BRETRE2EAZEHNER
> Media PR
> R > Ensure sound financial results and
business growth
> BRRFOPBEEREMEBRLR

The Group is dedicated to working with its stakeholders to improve
the Group’s ESG performance and creating higher value for a larger

community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT . EEMFFE

The Group’s management and staff in major functions are involved in REETFERENEEEREEHZHFH
the preparation of the ESG Report. They have assisted the Group to BE B REBWHE - RECHBAER
review its operations, identify key ESG issues, and assess the importance WA EEE  BRIERERE  HERERE
of those relevant matters to its business and stakeholders. The Group BRTHZENEEFEREERRBOE
has compiled a survey in accordance with the identified material ESG ZEZW - AEBERBEARNERRE i
issues to collect information from relevant departments, business units, & MEREERENS - YAAEEERIE
and stakeholders of the Group The following matrix is a summary of the P9 EBEBELRFOEWEER - U TER
Group’s material ESG issues. PO AR E 2 BT  te REREE -

Materiality Matrix
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CHERERERS

Environmental aspect
1 Air emissions

2 Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
3 Disposal of solid waste

4 Wastewater discharge

5  Water consumption

6  Energy conservation

7 Use of packaging material

Staff aspect
8 Remuneration and benefit

9  Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
10 Health and safety

11 Development and training

12 Labour standards

Operational aspect
13 Supply chain management

14 Cleaner production and green products
15  Protection of customer privacy

16 Customer satisfaction

17 Product quality and safety

18  Anti-corruption

19  Operational compliance

20 Community investment

Enwronmental Soaal and Governance Report

BRERNE
1T EERBER

2 BEREB(BRERE|IHR
3 ETEEMEE
4 BEKEEM

5 JKERER

7 ERERME

BINE
8  HrEHEEAEF

9 ZiE - FERERRER
10 RERLZE

11 FREEE

12 SBTRE

EEAHE
13 {EEEE

14 BFEERGOER

15 REZFILE

20 HEEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirms that it has established RIEHE - AEBRBEREAEHREES e
appropriate and effective management policies and monitoring systems &ﬁ/ EERBVABRBERC EEBRMES
= A4 AL [ NVAN

on ESG issues, and confirms that the disclosures meet the requirements REFG  THERAFEBEFTEERE  dHehEAR
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of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to protect the environment through the
implementation of control activities and monitoring measures in
its business activities and workplace. The Group is committed to
promoting a green environment by introducing environmentally
friendly business practices, educating the employees to raise their
awareness of environmental protection and complying with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with environmental related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes, and the Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong
Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

CBM Business

CBM is a type of high-quality natural gas extracted from coalbed. CBM
is a new type of energy with less pollution and high calorific value.
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is estimated to have the
world’s third-largest CBM resources. CBM is an effective alternative
energy source for the PRC and the development of the CBM business
plays an important role in the national plan to become a low-carbon
economy. According to the 12th Five-Year Plan for Economic and
Social Development of the People’s Republic of China (“12th Five-Year
Plan”), new energy is one of the seven strategic emerging industries,
with its foundation laid out in the 12th Five-Year Plan. The 13th Five-
Year Plan for Economic and Social Development of the PRC (“13th
Five-Year Plan”) further emphasised the support for the development of
related industries.

The Group has developed the CBM business in the PRC since 2008.
The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary called Canada Can-Elite Energy
Limited (“Can-Elite”) runs the CBM business in Anhui Province,
the PRC. The main business activities include CBM exploration,
development and production. During the Reporting Period, the CBM
operation was still in the exploration stage.
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RE HERE

BRE

Electronic Components Business
The Group serves as a distributor of electronic components and is

not involved in production stage, therefore the Group’s electronic

components business has a limited impact on the environment and

natural resources.

Comprehensive Healthcare Business

The Group established medical devices and epidemic-prevention
supplies and products business during September 2020. During the
Reporting Period, there was no production in the manufacturing plant.

Since the business activities are mainly conducted in the office, the

impact on the environment and natural resources is not significant.

1. Management of Emissions

(@

Air Emissions

The Group’s major sources of exhaust gas emissions are
originated from petrol and diesel consumed by company
vehicles. In response to the above-mentioned source, the
Group has actively taken measures to control air emissions.

ETEMHEE
AEBREFENDHE - WEP R EER
B BMARBZEFENEBHRERRA
BRNFERR -

BEARERK
$‘§IEA_7_§¢AHWEX*@ LER M
REDENEERET EHIE - RE
Fﬁ%lﬁﬁi@ ﬁf‘ﬂ%f&é%ﬂix&#ﬂ#"*
EIT HRERAKAREFROFELTEK -

1. HHER
(@ BERHH

$’§IZIEfﬁT3F3&X§ R 8
ji%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁE’Jﬂ,/EE& /Hﬂ
RS LR - REEDER
RERFE SRR SIEER IR - AR

Such measures will be mentioned in the section headed e E A DR E R ASHER & o

“GHG Emissions”.

Summary of exhaust gas emissions performances: FERHEHRIAME -

Types of Exhaust Gas BER R Unit Emissions
B HEE

Nitrogen Oxides (NO ) B NO) kg AT 59.89

Sulphur Oxides (SO,) e t”(so) kg AT 0.14

Particulate Matter (PM) ERIY(PM) kg AT 5.69

CBM is a type of natural gas, which is cleaner than other
fossil fuels. CBM is colourless, smell-less, non-toxic and
with high calorific value. CBM consists mostly of methane,
but may also contain trace amounts of propane, butane,
carbon dioxide and nitrogen, etc. The composition of CBM
slightly varies in different coal seams. During exploration,
CBM is discharged from coal seams through exhaust pipes.
The Group uses some of the CBM for gas equipment at
the well site to avoid wastage, while the rest is emitted
through the combustion process in accordance with national
requirements. The Group ignites methane gas at the exit of
the vents, the gas is transformed into water vapour during the
process. The amount of air pollutants emitted is minimal.

HERA—BRAAR  HERHEM
LA ERRT - BRERAE
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GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions of the Group were
generated from petrol and diesel consumed by company
vehicles and combustion of natural gas at the well site (Scope
1), and purchased electricity (Scope 2).

In response to the above-mentioned source, the Group has
established a management system to strictly control the
use of company vehicles. The operation skills of vehicle
management personnel and drivers have been trained,
and the maintenance and repair of company vehicles have
been carried out to maintain vehicle efficiency. The Group
also minimises the frequency of business car trips, reduces
unnecessary car despatches and encourages the use of public
transports. In addition, the Group actively adopts measures
to reduce energy consumption, and relevant measures will
be mentioned in the section headed “Energy Conservation”.

With these GHG emission reduction measures, the
employee’s awareness of GHG emission reduction has been
raised. The Group total GHG emissions has decreased by
about 9.38% from approximately 1,233.34 tCOe in 2019 to
approximately 1,117.70 tCOse in 2020.

Summary of GHG emissions performances:

(b)

CHERE $ﬁ*‘=

BERBEHY

AEBRERBY NN T 2HR
TYES B AR ER AR UR
RS - LA R A5 B R AR
B (E—) RINEEN(BES) -

HE EMAOR - ARBERYE
BEG  BRERIABRE &
FEE A B R AR RIERMS
B2 WEHEITA R B
RERGEE  AERFBHYCE -
REBNNEERLABRAER
RO TV EIRE - HEFER
DNERBTHE - o AEEE
TR ER AN HE e s A BE RSB FE © M AR
RATE M E A [ B AIREIR | — 87 o

BEZSEAEREBREYER &
BHMNEERERENERMAEFT
Be e AREMREREBHNE
EHZZE—NFHI,23334M =
%MEF?-?E} D41938%E—F

TEL,117.700E — A bt E

E°

RERBHRRAME

Emissions
B2

Unit 2020 2019

Indicator’ g By —E-EE —E—hE
Direct GHG Emissions EEREREHX tCOse

(Scope 1) (FE—) —aftiRgE S 1,046.38 1,145.90
Energy Indirect GHG RERMEEOR E R EEHEAR tCOse

Emissions (Scope 2)? (8E—)2 —StiREE 71.32 87.44
Total GHG Emissions BEREHREE tCO.e

(Scope 1 and Scope 2) (EE— M EE _) —atirg s 1,117.70 1,233.34
The intensity?® of Total RERBHHEETE tCOze/thousand
GHG Emissions revenue (HK$)

W — S LiRE &
Ttz (BTT) 0.02 0.16
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RIR - HERERHE

(©

Notes:

! GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global Warming Potential
Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2015 (AR5),
Sustainability Report 2020 published by the CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited and the HK Electric Investments Sustainability Report 2020
published by the HK Electric.

2 Electricity consumption data of the Hunan office was not available
since electricity consumption was included in the management fee.

3 During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$69,766,000 (2019: HK$7,587,000). This data
will also be used for calculating other intensity data in the Report.

Wastewater Discharge

The presence of groundwater is used to maintain high
pressure in the coalbed so that CBM is stored in coalbed in
the adsorbed state. CBM can be extracted from the coalbed
using hydraulic fracturing technology. CBM is released by
fracturing coal or rock layers by using water pressure. The
process involves the high-pressure injection of fracking
fluid into coal or rock layers. Fracking fluid is primarily
composed of water and a small amount of quartz sand or
other proppants with anti-swelling effect. The purpose of
using fracturing fluid is to dredge the passage in the coalbed
and increase the permeability of the coalbed so that the CBM
is desorbed from the coalbed and released from the well to
the ground. The fracturing fluid drawn from the well may
contain dissolved substances such as potassium, sodium and
other salt substances and will be stored in the reservoir first.
Small grain of crystal will be deposited at the bottom of the
reservoir after evaporation. During the Reporting Period, only
a small amount of fracturing fluid is discharged since the
CBM operation was still in the exploration stage. The Group
continues to control and monitor the wastewater discharge to
ensure quality of wastewater discharged meets the national
standards. During the Reporting Period, the gas mining and
production wells of the Group have discharged on aggregate
approximately 1,420.52 m® of wastewater.

Hrat
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Disposal of Solid Waste

Hazardous Waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, no material hazardous
waste was generated by the Group during the Reporting
Period. Despite the Group did not generate hazardous wastes
during the Reporting Period, we have established guidelines
in governing the management and disposal of hazardous
wastes. In case there is any hazardous waste produced, we
must engage a qualified chemical waste collector to handle
such waste, which complies with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Non-hazardous Waste
Non-hazardous waste generated by office-based operations
was mainly office paper, general waste and plastic waste.

As a responsible corporate, the Group values paper
saving and regularly monitor the effectiveness of policies
implemented in relation to office paper. A paperless office
is promoted to employees by encouraging its employees
to distribute files via electronic means to reduce paper
consumption from photocopying, fax and printing. For
unavoidable paper photocopying and printing, the Group
encourages its employees to use double-sided printing
instead of single-sided printing and reuse single-sided paper
whenever possible. Double-sided used papers are gathered
in a recycling box and collected by qualified recyclers for
their handling.

Moreover, the procurement and disposal of office equipment
and stationery serve as another focus of the Group's efforts in
operating sustainably. The Group encourages its employees
to maximise every stationary lifespan (such as plastic binding
ring, paper clip, etc.) by searching opportunities to reuse
and refurbish them internally whenever feasible. Moreover,
the Group avoids single-use disposable items. For example,
the Group provides reusable cups in the pantry room. In
addition, the Group purchases office equipment with Energy
Efficiency label.

The employees’ awareness of waste management has
been increased through these implementations. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has generated 1.72 tonnes of
office paper, 1.53 tonnes of general waste and 0.84 tonnes of
plastic waste. The total non-hazardous wastes and intensity
were 4.09 tonnes and 0.000059 tonnes per thousand revenue
(HKS$) respectively.

The plastic waste and general waste disposed during the
Reporting Period are mainly due to the relocation and
renovation of the head office of the Company during June
2020.
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Use of Resources

The Group has formulated Regulations on Energy Use
Management 7K ~ & ~ REEIREBEERHTE)) for the production
departments and offices CBM business to ensure that every
employee understands the importance of resource conservation
and make full use of resources to maximise their effectiveness
and prevent wastage. The Group has also issued Notice on
Strengthening Office Environmental Sanitation and Electricity
Management (R MEMAEREFE - BEEENBED) to
its employees working in offices to increase their awareness of
measures on electricity, water and paper conservation.

(@) Energy Conservation

The Group strives to minimise the environmental impacts
resulted from our operations by identifying and adopting
appropriate measures. Energy policies, measures, and
practices have been developed to show the Group’s
commitment on energy efficiency. All employees are
required to adopt such measures and practices and assume
responsibility for the Group’s overall energy efficiency.

(i) Petrol and Diesel
Petrol and diesel are mainly consumed by company
vehicles. The Group has actively adopted measures to
reduce the fuel consumption from company vehicles.
Such measures are mentioned in section head “GHG
Emissions”.

(i) Natural Gas

CBM is a type of natural gas. Since the CBM business
is still in exploration stage, a small portion of CBM is
used for gas equipment on well site, while the rest is
emitted through combustion process in accordance
with national requirements. The Group requires staff at
well site to turn off gas equipment when not in use and
inspect gas pipelines every one to two weeks to prevent
gas leakage, and avoid wastage and safety issues.

During the Reporting Period, the gas mining and
production wells of the Group have produced on
aggregate approximately 483,197 m? of gas.
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(iii) ~ Electricity (iii) &7

The Group has established strict requirements regarding
electricity consumption at well site. The operation
time of electrical equipment at the well site is strictly
controlled. All electrical equipment and electrical
wiring are regularly inspected and maintained in good
condition in order to maximise their energy efficiency.
The Group also keeps the record of inspection and
maintenance. If any problem is found, it should be
repaired or replaced immediately.

Furthermore, the Group encourages employees to
establish energy-saving habits at offices. The Group
has introduced various measures to achieve the goal of
electricity saving and efficient consumption, including:

*  Adopt lighting control based on actual needs;

e Purchase equipment with high energy efficiency
on the replacement of old equipment;

e Encourage employees to turn off idling equipment,
computers and lightings when not in use or after
working hours;

e Utilise natural lightings where possible; and

e Apply optimal temperature setting of air-
conditioning.

With the above energy conservation measures, the
employee’s awareness of energy conservation has
been raised. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
total direct energy consumption is 5,145.93 MWh,
including 32.11 MWh from diesel, 60.12 MWh from
petrol and 5,053.70 MWh from natural gas. As for the
Group’s indirect energy consumption, which accounts
only the 104.17 MWh from purchased electricity. The
total energy consumption and intensity were 5,250.10
MWh and 0.08 MWh per thousand revenue (HK$)
respectively.
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Environmental, Soaal and Governance Report

RIR - HERERTRE

(b)

Water Consumption

The water consumption of the Group is mainly used in
the exploration process of CBM and the daily operation of
offices. The Group has always attached importance to the
efficient use of water resources and formulated different
policies and systems to regulate the water consumption of
different business activities. The Group has educated and
encouraged all employees to develop the habit of water
conservation. The Group has been strengthening its water-
saving promotion, posting water-saving reminders, and
guiding employees to use water reasonably. The following
are some measures we have implemented to improve the
utilisation efficiency of water resources:

e Place posters in toilets and pantries to encourage water
conservation;

e Conduct inspection and maintenance on water tap,
water pipelines, pumps and valves regularly by the
engineering department;

e Fix dripping taps promptly to avoid water leakage and
wastage; and

e Prohibit disposal of rubbish and debris to sewers to
prevent blockage.

The Group’s total water consumption has increased by
about 21.21% from approximately 495.00 m? in 2019 to
approximately 600.00 m* in 2020. The Group will increase
its efforts to implement water-saving measures to reduce
water consumption.
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Summary of water consumption performance: FEOKRBRME -
Consumption
FERE
Unit 2020 2019
Indicator gE By —E-EE —T—
Water consumption* FE7K M7 77K 600.00 495.00
Water consumption intensity FE7/KZ[E m*/thousand
revenue (HK$)
SR Tl
(B7L) 0.01 0.07
Note: Bt
4 Water consumption data of three offices (located in Cheung Sha 4 ARAKDFATEREE - L&

Wan, Causeway Bay, Hunan respectively) was not available since
water usage was included in the management fee.

The water used by the Group is supplied by local
governments. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not have any issue in sourcing water.

(c) Use of Packaging Materials
The Group does not consume a significant amount of
packaging materials for product packaging since the Group
has no industrial production during the Reporting Period.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the impact on the environment and natural resources
during the exploration stages of the CBM business is not
significant, the Group has established Environmental Protection
Management Measures for China Regional Bl X@RIZIREE
#I#%)) and Management Requirements in Well Site Construction
Environment ((#8 #3556 TIRFHE IR Z2K)). The Group has
adopted preventive and remedial measures to minimise its impact
on the on ecology, surface water, noise and solid waste at every
stage of its operations.

To enhance working efficiency, the Group is committed
to providing employees a comfortable and green working
environment. The Group is dedicated to maintaining office order
and environmental sanitation, and keeping the office and public
areas clean and tidy. Once the Group has found problems within
the workplace, precautionary measures will be taken to minimise
the potential harm to employees.

—Fﬁﬁ#“ﬁ( AR RDE - iR
HE - ) RREKEUR o

7 5 B ) A 7K R 30 75 TS (L BE o
RIEMRE - AEBEYEERE
FERKIREERE -

(0 RABEHYH
MAAEBRHEMEALETE
HE SAEBETERERER
FRRAAREREMH -

BERARER
HAKEREBEDRERERERX
RERNTELTEXR - AEBEDHIE
(PEARREREERRE) R(EHF
RS IRENERERR) - AEED
BRANTED) Mg - BEREEEE
BREER YA RE iﬁz@ﬂ&ﬁ\ RN ERE
BEYREE -

BRIERLIERE  AEERNAREER
HEBERZETIERE - XEBEBZIERN
Zﬁhﬂ#/\ﬁﬁf&fﬁiﬁﬁi REFHAD

RABHFTER o INAEEETIES
F)’TW%}EFEJ & BeRIERREERE
RS EEMETIES -

[ 0207 14OdI TVNNNY

—&=

BHLE

U1
Ne)



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

N
-}

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets for building
a sustainable business model for future development. Therefore, a
comprehensive talent management mechanism has been established
to attract and retain talents. The Group is devoted to create a non-
discriminatory, equal, harmonious and safe workplace in order to build
a relationship of mutual respect with employees. The Group provides
commensurate remuneration, personal and career development
training, as well as various fringe benefits, which helps the Group
to create a favourable condition to attract, retain and reward talents.
Employment policies are formally documented in the Employment
Agreement ({{E A ##5%)) and the Staff Code of Conduct (( B T1T/&F
AI)), covering recruitment, promotion, remuneration, dismissal, etc. The
Group periodically reviews existing policies and employment practices
to ensure continuous improvement of its employment standards and
competitiveness among the industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Hong Kong Disability Discrimination Ordinance, and the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China that would have a significant impact on
the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s CBN business, comprehensive
healthcare business and Hong Kong headquarters had 43 employees
and the composition is shown below:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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BREESTESR

REEREREBRAMRL A FHEEBRA
MEREE At - AREERYT —EXE
AT EEEH] - MR RE AT » AEE
HONTEIREAR » FF - MERL 2N TIE
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RERERN - BAKERIER M IRERS -
BEMBRAS - XEBECDHEBBKE
ERCEA ) R(B TITATR)  HMER
BB HH O BES - AREEHRS
BEBRERERTH  UBRHENZEE
BIFERETENEF S

REHRE - AEBLTNANBEERETE
STRABABERERNER - BREIRR
BE(EREERD) - BECRRER G K
(REARANBLEEZE)  MESHAEE
ERERTE -

HE—_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H8 A&£EZ
RERER BEANRREBLEBERE
A3%EE - HAKYIRIAT -

Employees Percentage
=] Bt
By gender R R &5
Male 514 26 60.87%
Female gk 17 39.13%
By age RERED
Under 30 years old 30BRATR 5 10.87%
30-50 years old 302 505% 33 73.91%
Over 50 years old 507 A £ 5 15.22%
By geographical location REeSVES D
The PRC F 13 28.26%
Hong Kong B 30 71.74%
By employment type REBERES
Full-time 28 41 95.65%
Part-time R 2 4.35%
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

Employees are recruited via a robust, transparent and fair recruitment
process. Job applicants are assessed based on their suitability for the
positions and potential to fulfil the Group’s current and future needs,
regardless of their race, gender, religion, physical disability, marital
status, sexual orientation, etc.

The Group offers promotion and development opportunities for
outperforming employees through an open and fair assessment system
so as to explore their capability and contribute the Group’s sustainable
growth. Promotions are subjected to annual performance review.

Besides, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal of employees under
any unreasonable basis. Any termination of employment contract would
be based on reasonable and lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibits
any kinds of unfair or unreasonable dismissal.

Labour Standards

The Group respects human rights and safeguards labour rights and
interests. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by the laws and regulations. The Group
strictly complies with local laws to prohibit any child and forced labour
employment. The Group’s Human Resource Department is responsible
to monitor and ensure compliance with the latest and relevant laws
and regulations that prohibit child labour and forced labour. To combat
against illegal employment of child labour, underage workers and
forced labour, valid identity documents such as physical examination
certificates, academic credentials, and identity cards are collected
by the Group’s human resources staff prior to the confirmation of
employment. The Human Resources Department also ensures identity
documents are carefully checked. If violation is involved, it will be dealt
with in the light of circumstances.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any material non-compliance with child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration system that provides compensation to employees.
The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits, which are
determined by referencing market benchmarks in order to attract high-
calibre candidates. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
policy to ensure its market competitiveness. Employees are recognised
and rewarded according to their individual performances, working
experience, respective responsibilities, merits, qualifications and
competences. The Group will conduct performance appraisal and salary
review regularly to determine any salary adjustments and/or promotion
opportunities.

Basic remuneration packages of employees include salary, bonus
and various subsidies (such as overtime pay, meal allowance,
telecommunication allowance, housing subsidy, holiday allowance and
marriage subsidy, etc.). All employees are entitled to statutory holidays,
including statutory festive holiday, paid annual leave, sick leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and compassionate
leave. The Group also signs and executes labour contracts with all
employees in the PRC in accordance with the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China. The Group pays “five social insurance
and one housing fund” for its employees in the PRC in compliance
with the laws and regulations, namely endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund to ensure employees are covered
by social insurance.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group cares for the well-being of employees and recognises the
importance of work-life balance to the Group. Therefore, the Group
develops basic working hours and overtime system according to
different business needs, with the hope to enable employees to achieve
work-life balance. The Group has formulated policies in determining
the working hours and rest periods for employees following local
employment laws and regulations. The employees working in the
offices work five days a week, while employees working at well site
work in shifts in accordance to the work schedule established by the
respective department head. Employee consent must be obtained
for any necessary overtime arrangement, and the employee must be
compensated in accordance with the laws and regulations to prevent
any forced overtime work.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

The Group recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforce, and
is committed to creating and maintaining an inclusive and collaborative
workplace culture in which all can thrive. The Group is dedicated
to providing equal opportunity in all aspects of employment and
maintaining a workplace that is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual on the basis of race, religion,
colour, gender, physical or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.

The Group has zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination,
harassment or victimisation. Any employee who is intimidated,
humiliated, bullied or harassed may report to the employees’
representative, or file complaints directly to the management
representative. The Group strives to ensure that complaints, grievances
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with promptly and
confidentially.

Development and Training

A high-quality team is vital to the sustainable and long-term
development of the Group. Therefore, the Group has developed a long-
term talent training strategy that focuses on creating values and serving
the needs of its customers, its talents and society. In order to strengthen
employees’ work-related skills and improve operational efficiency,
each business unit of the Group has formulated its training programs
and development opportunities to its employees. During the Reporting
Period, approximately 96.43% of male employees and approximately
88.89% of female employees participated in the training.

The Group provides both internal and external training to staff in
the PRC. Internal training covers professional knowledge, industry
information, management skills, and other knowledge and information
that are of interest to the staff. Internal training is conducted in the form
of lectures, seminars or conference meetings. The staff is encouraged to
express their opinions after the training on various aspects such as the
training content, format and instructor, which form the basis for future
improvement. External training can be divided into (1) practical training
(involves professional technical knowledge, selling skills, management
approach, leadership skills, corporate mission, etc.); (2) senior
management training (including corporate strategies and development,
etc.); and (3) self-enhancement training (such as professional technical
certification, etc.). Technical staff, such as mining staff at well site, are
required to undergo rigorous safety production and knowledge training,
to ensure occupational safety.
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The Group provides on-the-job training for employees in Hong Kong.
The human resources department and relevant department heads
will introduce the corporate culture, industry knowledge, and job
responsibilities to new employees. Directors and professional staff such
as chief financial officer, finance manager, company secretary and
accountant, etc., regularly participate in external training organised
by professional organisations. The training is conducted in the form of
lectures. During the Reporting Period, training topics include corporate
governance, ethical conduct of accountants, merger and acquisition,
anti-money laundering, etc.

Health and Safety

The Group adheres to the principle of “Safety First and Take Good
Precaution” and puts employees’ health and safety in the first place.
The Group has formulated the Management Requirements in Well
Site Construction Environment (($&H# IR 51t TIRIFHEE EK)) to
strengthen the safety management of CBM mining and to prevent fires,
explosions, personal injuries and deaths. The Group also formulated
Safety Management Regulations %24 EE I E ), which sets strict
safety requirements on the layout of CBM field, ground equipment,
electricity current testing, use of vehicles and fire extinguishing system.
Besides, the Group has implemented a safety production responsibility
system to clearly define the safety responsibilities of different positions.

The Group carries out regular inspection and maintenance of critical
equipment, and keeps the maintenance and repair record. The Group
also assigns safety personnel to conduct random inspections at the
well site. If potential safety issues are identified, they will be dealt with
immediately, and contingency plans and solutions will be formulated.

In order to effectively prevent and deal with emergencies at various
construction sites, and to ensure the safety of on-site employees and
equipment, the Group has established the Emergency Response Plan
for Construction Site Safety (it TH 5% 2R ¥ E 4 B RIE TIF
JEZ)). Basic principles include placing personal safety above all else,
and minimising the losses. In case of emergency, on-site staff must
promptly report to the emergency response team and carry out self-
rescue immediately. Each member of the emergency response team is
vigilant at all times, coordinates all communication channels, ensures
adequate emergency vehicles standby, and follows the instructions and
arrangements made by the security and safety department. After the
incident, the emergency response team needs to submit an investigation
report to reflect the problem and suggest measures that can be taken to
avoid further similar incidents.
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The Group believes that safety production training is the first step to
achieve “zero accident”. All the employees working at the well site
need to attend a 3-level of safety training before being assigned to their
work duties. The safety training content includes job-related safety
guidelines, protective measures (work clothes, helmets, etc.) and all
kinds of practical operation training, etc. Employees can only take up
duties after they have passed all the tests on safety production. Safety
personnel will convey safety knowledge to employees on an irregular
basis to remind them of the requirements and importance of safety at
the construction site. Mining personnel is required to undergo more
rigorous safety production training. Special operation personnel who
works at key positions is required to obtain a special operating permit.

The Group provides its staff with a safe and hygienic working
environment that is in line with national regulations and necessary
protective equipment. Clear and visible warning signs such as “Wear
Helmet at all times”, “Wear Protective Clothing at all times”, “No
Fires in the Well”, “Beware of Electric Shock”, “No Entry”, etc are
placed in CBM well site. The Group also arranges annual physical
examination for staff who engages in high-risk works. In addition to
the insurance required by the local laws and regulations, the Group
also purchases accident insurance for staff. Besides, the Group invites
national fire services department to carry out fire safety training for staff
regularly, organises fire drills and regularly checks the status of the fire
extinguisher to ensure fire safety.

For the health and safety management of the offices, the Group
has adopted a comprehensive preventive approach to prevent the
occurrence of illness and injury. The Group provides employees with
a healthy and safe working environment. Working arrangement during
typhoon and rainstorm has been clearly specified by the Group to avoid
any confusion which might lead to safety issue. Fire extinguishers are
strategically placed and fire exits are free from obstruction, and first
aid boxes are available at easily accessible locations in the offices. The
Group also prohibits smoking in the office areas.

In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) pandemic, the Group has taken various actions to
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in the
workplace to ensure the health of its employees and workers. The
Group has strengthened the sanitation of its operations to ensure a
healthy and safe working environment such as providing alcohol-based
hand rub and surgical masks to its employees and applying stringent
temperature screening on employees and customers before entry into
the workplace to ensure a safe working environment. The Group
has also sent out guidelines to employees to advise on the reporting
measures in case of an outbreak of the coronavirus among employees
and related family members.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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During the Reporting Period, there was no significant incident of
safety and work-related fatalities or injuries. The Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety-related laws
and regulations including but not limited to the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases, and
the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China that would
have a significant impact on the Group.

OPERATIONAL PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group understands the importance of supply chain management
in mitigating the indirect environmental and social risks and tries to
engage suppliers to have responsible acts to society and environment in
the view of green supply chain management. All suppliers are evaluated
carefully and are subjected to regular monitoring and assessment.

During the Reporting Period, the CBM business was in the exploration
stage and large-scale production has not yet commenced. Exploration
work is outsourced to contractors. For the electronic component
business, the Group procures electronic components from suppliers and
sale to the customer directly. While for the disposable facemask and
meltblown fabric business, the Group procures raw material such as
polypropylene for production.

In order to ensure that the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors have
met the Group’s requirements regarding quality as well as environmental
and safety standards, the Group has formulated procedures in selecting
suppliers and subcontractors. The Group maintains an internal list of
approved suppliers and contractors. During the selection process, the
Group does not only review their basic information, but also considers
a number of other factors such as pricing, service quality, business
reputation, and compliance to relevant industrial laws, regulations
and standards. Suppliers’ and contractors’ environmental and social
performances are also considered as one of the selection criteria for
establishing long-term relationships. Assessments on performance are
carried out on a regular basis for its suppliers and subcontractors.

The Group has also formulated policies and procedures to ensure that
suppliers could compete in a fair and transparent way in the tender
and procurement process. The procedures would strictly monitor and
prevent all kinds of business bribery and conflict of interest. The Group
also encourages employees, suppliers, customers and other individuals
related to the Group’s business to report any abuse of power that
violates laws and regulations. Any violation of the law and regulations
will be subject to disciplinary sanctions. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not receive any report on any significant violation in this
respect.
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Product Responsibility

The Group is determined to provide the highest quality of product
and service to its customers and to fulfil its responsibility in bringing
customer satisfaction. For the electronic component business, the
Group actively safeguards the quality of the products through a strict
procurement procedure. The CBM and disposable facemask and
meltblown fabric business has not yet commenced production and sales
during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and regulations concerning advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Product Quality and Safety

As a disposable facemask and meltblown fabric manufacturer, the
Group recognises the importance of achieving high product quality
standards. The Group has formulated a Quantity Control Procedures
(CE 22§32 /¥ )) that clearly states the quality control procedures
for the inventory and production process, ensuring the quality of raw
materials and finalised products meets the standard’s requirements. The
Group also formulated a Handling Procedures for Unqualified Products
(&% @ EIEIEF)) to manage any potential recall issues and
define the roles of related personnel and departments during the recall
procedures.

Data Privacy Protection

The Group has formulated policies and procedures for protecting
sensitive customer information, and is available in the Staff Code
of Conduct ({ & I 17 A& =F 8 )). All confidential data related to the
Group’s business and customer information including but not limited
to, customer list, projects, price, sales contracts are securely protected
and only used for internal purposes. Any leakage of confidential
information to third parties is strictly prohibited. Employees are subject
to disciplinary punishment in case of violations.

Customer Service

Feedbacks from customers are welcomed as it is the key to enhancing
the Group’s service. Procedures for handling feedbacks have been set
up. Should the Group receive any complaints, the Group will strive to
act immediately to resolve the issue with effective corrective actions. In
addition, any complaints received are discussed and reviewed by the
management during regular meetings to prevent re-occurrence.
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Anti-corruption

The Group values and upholds integrity, honesty, and fairness, and
strives to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations. The
Group has established the Staff Code of Conduct € & T174A5FRI)) and
the Regulations regarding Anti-Corruption and Staff Probity and Self-
Discipline K IR RER R E TEZEEMTE)), to define appropriate
measures in handling conflict of interests, leakage of confidential
information, embezzlement of the Group’s asset in one’s position, etc.
The Group also provides employees with training on business ethics.
All employees are expected to perform their duties with integrity, to act
fairly and professionally, and to abstain from involving in any bribery
activities or activities that might exploit their positions against the
Group's interests.

The Group encourages its employees to report alleged malpractices
or misconduct through the existing complaint box and hotline. The
management will take immediate action to investigate the issue.
The Group endeavours to protect the whistle-blower from common
concerns such as potential retaliation and is assured that their identity
as a whistle-blower will be kept confidential. The Group has adopted
a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of corruption, including
deception, bribery, forgery, extortion, conspiracy, embezzlement,
money laundering and collusion. Disciplinary actions or even a straight
dismissal will be taken against any kind of misconduct or malpractice.

During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, including but not limited to the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Community Investment

The Group encourages its staff to actively engage in community
participation. During the Reporting Period, the Group donated material
and money to the poor in mountainous areas and left-behind children
in the PRC, and donated surgical masks to people in need during the
COVID-19 epidemic. The Group plans to give back to society through
more active participation in community programmes, which not only
benefit society but also nurture a good corporate culture.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Report of the Directors

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Director(s)”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as International
Standard Resources Holdings Group Limited) (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND STOCK SHORT NAMES

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 February 2020 and the certificate
of change of name issued by the Company Registry in Hong Kong on 18
March 2020, the Company changed its English name and Chinese name
from “International Standard Resources Holdings Limited 1% 2% & JR % ik B
‘A A" to “Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited & & E
ﬁ"“ 2 g & B A BR A &7 with effect from 18 March 2020. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2020 and 26 March 2020
for further details.

In connection with the change of company name, the shares of the Company
have been traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) under the new stock short names of “GOLDEN CEN INTL” in
English and “&EBEBRIZAR” and “£EEFR —ZF—Z" in Chinese, in place
d“WTLﬂDRB”mdﬂNTLHDW&MOMnBthmd%ﬂEﬁﬁT%W

and “REER=ZF—ZF" in Chinese, respectively, with effect from 27 March
2020.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its subsidiary companies are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by business and

geographical segments is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 96.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Directors

E%E}iﬁii

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the businesses of the Group, discussion and analysis of the
performance of the Group during the year and the material factors underlying
its financial performance and financial position as well as the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is set out in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 9
and pages 10 to 22 of this annual report and in note 4 and note 6(2) to
the consolidated financial statements. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the year, as far as the Directors are aware, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the Group'’s business and operations.

Environmental policy

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from its
business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manage
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies, such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs —
“Reduce”, “Recycle” and “Reuse” and enhance environmental sustainability.

Relationships with stakeholders

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. Competitive remuneration packages and a sound performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives are provided and implemented
to attract and motivate employees. In addition, to conform to the market
standard, the Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments. Moreover, the Group
understands the importance of maintaining good relationship with business
partners is vital to achieve its long-term goals. Thus, senior management of
the Group have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them as and when appropriate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 100 and the movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Convertible notes

On 24 August 2018, the Company entered into the convertible notes
restructuring agreement with the noteholder, pursuant to which the
noteholder agreed to a consensual restructuring of its rights and obligations
under the existing convertible notes due 31 December 2018 in the
outstanding principal amount of HK$365,000,000 issued by the Company.
The new HK$365,000,000 2 per cent convertible notes due 31 December
2021 (the “Convertible Notes”) entitling the noteholder to convert up to
an aggregate of 2,281,250,000 shares were issued to the noteholder on 6
November 2018. Since the issue is made pursuant to restructuring, issuance
of the new convertible notes did not raise any new funds for the Company.

TRANSFER OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 30 September 2019, Century Gold Millennium International Holdings
Group Limited (“Century Gold”) as purchaser and New Alexander Limited
(“New Alexander”) as vendor entered into a transfer agreement dated 30
September 2019 (the “CN Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the transfer of
the Convertible Notes, pursuant to which Century Gold conditionally agreed
to acquire and New Alexander conditionally agreed to sell the Convertible
Notes issued by the Company in the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into a total of 3,041,666,666 new
shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$0.12 per shares,
at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.102 per shares of the Company).

As at 14 November 2019, an aggregate amount of HK$90,000,000,
representing approximately 29.01% of the total consideration for the
Convertible Notes, was paid by Century Gold to New Alexander and in
consideration thereof New Alexander transferred the Convertible Notes in the
principal amount of HK$105,000,000, representing approximately 28.77%
of the entire Convertible Notes in the principal amount of HK$365,000,000,
to Century Gold. On 30 June 2020, the Convertible Notes with the principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 were converted into shares and the principal
amount of HK$355,000,000 remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.
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Details of other movements in the convertible notes are set out in note 31 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Share options
Under the terms of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share

Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders on 11 November 2014 (the

“Adoption Date”), the Directors may, at their discretion, offer any eligible

participants (including any Directors) of the Company or of any of its

subsidiaries option(s) to subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Option(s)”)

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the Share Option Scheme. A

summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1)  Purpose

(a)

(b)

To recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants have made or may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the eligible participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the eligible participants to utilise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationship
with the eligible participants whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

(2) Eligible participants

(a)

any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any discretionary trust who discretionary objects include any
Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity;

and for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, the Option may be
granted to any corporation wholly-owned by any person under (a)
above.

AT ARG SRR 2 b
5131 °

HIEHRN A I IREN

R
REARRBRRR-_Z-—MOF+—A+—B (K
B E 2 R B ([RS8 )) 2 (&
R BEFEAREIBRBEREBIFTAZ G EIF
HRARBSEEAMER TZEHAQE/A
E(BEETMNES) X THEREARBEARR
([saeEl) °E%H%ﬁgéféUZZﬁ%§§§H§iﬁﬂT?:

1) A&
@ RBEEFLEXAIEHEAEEELR
BlzaBER2EE -

(b) %k%ﬁﬂhﬁAﬁh/ﬁﬁk1F$
RAEGEAEAEGE ZKE  EAZERT

SR -

(i) ZBEERZ2EE[EAEEDN
e BEREMRREATIE
ME R

(i) HRES MR B o A Ho 77 S+ 4
AEBEZRHUEREAERMEIEF
ZABERSEEAAEENE
RUFRAMR ©

2) BEHSHEL
@ AEEIEAREEBZEMNER(T
WRRITHERITHBIIERTE
%) EBE(TwEBERE)  BE -
A BP o HER - KE - ABA
FRERSANE - K

b) EAZEEFL HE2EEEXZAER
EASRBESEMNREERZERNES
(TR AMITHIFRITRIBILIERITE

%) EBE(TwEBEFR)  BE -
A BP - HER - KE - ABA
SRR A
ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬂﬁ? BRETRTEXS
ATt 2 EM AL 2ERE 2 EME

[



3)

4

(5

(6)

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
the Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as
at Adoption Date, being 406,907,955 shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”).

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2016, an
ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit so
that the Company would be allowed to grant options under the Share
Option Scheme for subscription up to a total of 578,765,179 shares,
representing 10% of the number of shares in issue as at 2 June 2016.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2017, an
ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit so
that the Company would be allowed to grant options under the Share
Option Scheme for subscription up to a total of 479,079,342 shares,
representing 10% of the number of shares in issue as at 7 June 2017.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such
number of shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Options granted to an eligible participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Subject to separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting
with the relevant participant and his associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)) abstaining from voting provided that the Company shall issue
a circular to shareholders before such approval is sought, the Company
may grant a participant options which would exceed this limit.

Option period
The period within which the shares must be taken up under the Option
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant option.

Minimum period for which the Option must be held before it can vest

The minimum period, if any, for which the Option must be held before
it can vest shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion.
The Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding
period.

3)

4

5

(6)
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)

(C))

9)

Payment on acceptance of the Option

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the Option offer. An offer must be accepted within 30 days from the
date of grant.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant but shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; and

(i) the average closing prices of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The life of the Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing on the
Adoption Date and will expire on 10 November 2024.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding share option granted
to the eligible participants. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue upon exercise of share options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme is 47,907,934 shares, being 10% of the number
of shares in issue on 7 June 2017 and adjusted for the effect of the share

consolidation completed on 26 July 2018, representing approximately 5.11%

of the number of shares of the Company in issue.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had no material event after the reporting period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Pan Jibiao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Shao Yanxia (appointed on 6 April 2020)
Cheng Wai Keung (resigned on 6 April 2020)
Lo Tsz Fung Philip (resigned on 1 July 2020)
Tam Tak Wah (resigned on 4 May 2020)

Shiu Shu Ming (appointed on 18 March 2020)
Chan Yim Por Bonnie*

Chan Tsz Kit* (resigned on 6 April 2020)
Wang Li* (resigned on 6 April 2020)

Lai Kin Keung* (appointed on 6 April 2020)
Yeung Chi Wai* (appointed on 6 April 2020)

* independent non-executive Directors
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In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but greater than one-third, shall retire from office. Details of the retiring
Directors shall be set out in the circular, among other things for proposal for
re-election of retiring directors accompanying to the notice of annual general
meeting to be sent to be shareholders in due course.

Pursuant to article 104 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Pan
Jibiao and Mr. Shiu Shui Ming will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All the Directors do not have service contracts with the Company or any of
its subsidiary companies which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Shao Yanxia were also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
included Mr. Chan Chiu Shing, Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Mr. Fung Fai Dennis, Mr.
Chan Shek Chuen, Mr. Lam Ting Fung Andy, Mr. Shi Long, Mr. Cheung Ka
Chi Perry and Mr. Zhou Mingyi.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on the remuneration of senior management of the
Group. Details of the emoluments of each Director and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that meets the requirements specified in
section 469(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) for the
benefits of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

There is no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

EERTRARRAQAREEMAEBE
Bzt - HERD R EER 2 ESR K
B

R-_B-_BF+-RA=+—H JFEFKERQ
TTRBENARE REREEE (E& L E %&Hﬁ
B0 B RAEH ) EXVE) 2B - 18
Bk REEED  BERACHERARFIRER
7 MG RBISE352ETFE 2 BER AT &/A
$ETFH§%>&FﬁLmiEQUFﬁ%ZZTT EFRIHME AR

pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were as follows: NS Pz B s KORBIAT ¢
Long positions in shares of the Company REQXTRBZHFR
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Name of Directors/ Number of Number of capital of
chief executive of ordinary underlying the Company
the Company Nature of interest shares shares Total (Note 1)
EARQEE
BITRAEZ
AATEE BB
THRARESR EENE EEREE HEROEE Bt (Btet1)
Pang Jibiao (Note 2) Through a controlled 547,271,531 2,958,333,333 3,505,604,864 374.06%
corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
BBUER (Hrat2) Py kAL 547,271,531 2,958,333,333  3,505,604,864 374.06%
(Wfat2) (H13E3)
Notes: Wi -

1. Based on 937,172,167 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 December
2020.

2. These 547,271,531 ordinary shares of the Company held by Century Gold Millennium
International Holdings Group Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Pan Jibiao.
Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Pan Jibiao is deemed to be interested in these ordinary shares
of the Company.

3. These 2,958,333,333 underlying shares were conversion shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.12 will be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible notes,
which was issued by the Company and due in December 2021, in an aggregate
outstanding principal amount of HK$355,000,000 as at 31 December 2020.

1. BARRRZ-ZZ-THE+_A=+—HEBTLER
937,172,167%51 & -

2. EFE547271 531 RADREBRABELLELE
BERzHCSEERTRERERATFA - RIFE
HFREEED - BEMEEWEARZSARAER
AR A MR o

3. ZAEERMDABREBEEABBARRABTIER-T
T FHHzBRRER(ENR =S =EF+=A
=+ —HZKREERS 355,000,000/ 7T0) & 12
HIRE0.128 T T R 2 4 3£2,958,333,333 8 K,
B -



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiary companies a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be kept in the register
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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percentage of
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Name of substantial ordinary underlying the Company

Shareholders Nature of interest shares shares Total (Note 1)

HAELTE

BITRAZ

BHABES T

TERRES LB EatE ZEREAE HERDEE #BEt (HaE1)

Century Gold Millennium  Beneficial owner 547,271,531 2,958,333,333 3,505,604,864 374.06%
International Holdings (Note 3)

Group Limited (Note 2)

i SRR AR S E BERBEEA 547,271,531 2,958,333,333  3,505,604,864 374.06%
BRAR(AEE2) (B15£3)

Pang Jibiao (Note 2) Through a controlled 547,271,531 2,958,333,333 3,505,604,864 374.06%
corporation (Note 3)

BRUEZ(HE2) FHRXEEE 547,271,531 2,958,333,333  3,505,604,864 374.06%

(Hiaz3)
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Notes:

1. Based on 937,172,167 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 December
2020.

2. These 547,271,531 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Century Gold
Millennium International Holdings Group Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Pan
Jibiao. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Pan Jibiao is deemed to be interested in these ordinary
shares of the Company.

3. These 2,958,333,333 underlying shares were conversion shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.12 which may be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible
notes, and such conversion shares were issued by the Company and due in December
2021, in an aggregate outstanding principal amount of HK$355,000,000 as at 31
December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company has not
been notified of any other interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company, which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES IN
THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies has purchased or sold any
listed securities of the Company during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue during the Year attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was 95.13% of the Group’s total revenue, of which 39.91% was
made to the largest customer.

The aggregate purchase during the Year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers was 99.82% of the Group’s total purchases, of which
89.88% was made from the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder who to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has an interest in the suppliers or customers disclosed above.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 November 2020, GCINT Wealth Management entered into the
Insurance Brokerage Agreement with Ms. Li Dan (“Ms. Li”), the spouse of
Pan Jibiao, the executive director of the Company pursuant to which GCINT
Wealth Management provided the packaged insurance brokerage services to
Ms. Li for a term of 12 months commencing from 10 November 2020 and
expiring on 9 November 2021.

The principal terms of the Insurance Brokerage Agreement are set out below.
The Insurance Brokerage Agreement

Date: 10 November 2020

Parties: Mes. Li as the client; and

GCINT Wealth Management as the insurance broker
Effective period:

12 months commencing from 10 November 2020 and
expiring on 9 November 2021.

Nature of GCINT Wealth Management assists Ms. Li in

transaction: procuring insurance policies to be taken out with
third party insurer(s) by provision of the packaged

insurance brokerage services.

The provision of insurance brokerage services shall
be subject to the terms and conditions of the standard
client agreement of GCINT Wealth Management
amended or modified from time to time.
Terms: The premium to be made by Ms. Li under the
Insurance Brokerage Agreement comprises (i) the
premium payable to third party insurers set out in the
insurance policies; and (ii) the commission paid by
the third party insurers to GCINT Wealth Management
revenue.

Report of the Directors
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The insurance brokerage income under the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement

According to the relevant insurance policies entered into among GCINT
Wealth Management, the third-party insurer and Ms. Li on 10 November
2020 and 22 December 2020, Ms. Li applied for two insurance policies
and each of them has a term of 5 years. Based on the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement, Ms. Li will pay the third-party insurer a premium in accordance
with the rates set out in the relevant fee schedule, while GCINT Wealth
Management is remunerated for its brokerage service by way of the
commission paid by the third party insurer based on the agreed commission
rates and payment schedule. According to the terms of the signed insurance
policies taken out with the third party insurer, the aggregate commission
to be received by GCINT Wealth Management from the third party insurer
under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement is approximately HK$4,626,000.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 19 February
2021 in relation to, among other things, the Insurance Brokerage Agreement
(the “Announcement”). As further disclosed in the Announcement, the
transactions contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement
constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Board wishes to clarify that the
transaction contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement shall
constitute a major and connected transaction for the Company instead of a
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As Ms. Li is the spouse of Mr. Pan, who is an executive Director, the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company, Ms. Li is an associate
of Mr. Pan and is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Insurance Brokerage Agreement constitute a connected transaction for the
Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the
relevant applicable percentage ratios set out in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the commission income to be received by GCINT Wealth
Management under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement, on an annual basis,
exceeds 5%, the transactions contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement, which are on normal commercial terms, constitute a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
is subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review and Independent
Shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Mr. Pan, being an executive Director and the spouse of Ms. Li, has
abstained from voting on the relevant resolutions of the Company relating
to the Insurance Brokerage Agreement as if he has material interest in the
transaction contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement.
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The Directors (excluding the independent non-executive Directors whose
view will be subject to the advice from an independent financial advisor (the
“Independent Financial Adviser”)) consider that the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement thereof have been entered into/arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations (a) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
GCINT Wealth Management; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its
Independent Shareholders as a whole.

An independent board committee (the “Independent Board Committee”)
has been formed and the Independent Financial Advisor will be appointed
to provide its opinion to the Independent Board Committee and the
independent shareholders (i.e. shareholders of the Company excluding Mr.
Pan and his associates) in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Insurance Brokerage Agreement. A circular containing, among other things
(i) further details of the Insurance Brokerage Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder; (ii) a letter from the Independent Board Committee;
(iii) the recommendations of the Independent Financial Advisor; and (iv) a
notice to convene the EGM to approve, among other things, the Insurance
Brokerage Agreement, will be despatched to the Shareholders. Century Gold
Millennium International Holdings Group Limited shall abstain from voting
at the EGM for approval of the resolutions relating to the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Code
of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the financial year except the deviations set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2019 were audited by HLM CPA Limited (“HLM").

On 4 May 2020, HLM CPA Limited retired as the auditor of the Company.
The Board and the Audit Committee confirm that to the best of their
understanding and knowledge, there are no matters regarding the retirement
of HLM which need to be brought to the attention of the holders of securities
of the Company. HLM has also provided its confirmation to the Board and
the Audit Committee confirming that there are no matters need to be brought
to the attention of the holders of securities of the Company, and Confucius
International CPA Limited (“Confucius”) was appointed to fill the casual
vacancy and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

Confucius will retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Confucius as the auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SAN-CIVA

Confucius

B RBENRES

RRBEREFTENFBH AR

International CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 215, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BREFHLTZB1815 KB RE15#81501-08%
Rooms 1501-08,15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

E i Tel: (852) 3103 6980

{# Fax: (852) 3104 0170
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been prepared assuming that the Group will continue as
a going concern. We draw attention to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicated that the Group incurred a net loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$64,369,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and as at the same date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$369,227,000,
total liabilities exceeded its total assets by approximately HK$383,108,000
and capital deficiency attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$378,259,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. As explained in note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter

MREITER

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBMRES

BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE B NAHRARETIERETERE

Valuation and impairment assessment of intangible assets

BREEZAERBEE

As set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has HK$83,966,000 of intangible assets (related to
production sharing contract) on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020.

Management is required to carry out impairment assessment,
which is judgemental and based on a number of assumptions.

Recoverable amount of the intangible assets is based on
forecasting and discounting future cash flows, which are
inherently judgemental.

The conclusion of the impairment assessment was based on
a value-in-use model that required significant management
estimation with respect to the discount rate and the underlying
projected cash flows.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- detailed testing of directors’ impairment assessment for
the intangible assets;

- reviewing the discounted cash flow models and assessed
the principles and the model adopted;

- critically assessing the Group’s key assumptions for its
cash flow projections, with reference to internally and
externally derived sources and taking into account the
Group's historical forecasting accuracy; and

—  evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

We found the assumptions made by management and
external valuer in arriving at the valuation and impairment
assessment of the intangible assets to be reasonable based on
available evidence. We found the disclosures in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements to be appropriate.

BEZEEFERE

HRERELZBPEERENSEHFRRA |

- REFHERSRERAZ ERA T EPIERA 2 RAIRE
7
- TEME EXERHERSTERAEL ZRERERR - B
h2ZHANERINPEE BUERIR - Ytk EEES
HEIT 2 TRRIERE R
—  FHMEBMIMNEGERMZERES  eHRE#RIMT -

BESEEE  BERATEBERINSHEMPETEREE
HENRETEEMEZBRASE - ESRAGRAVERE
WEE19ZHEABE -

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

Nej
—_—



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

O
N

Independent Auditor’s Report
ZE_UI‘? HERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREITER

RRETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE B NAHRARETERETER

Valuation of convertible notes — embedded derivatives
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As described in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
the embedded derivatives portion of convertible notes amounting
to HK$46,234,000 was recorded at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position and was classified as Level 3
financial instruments in accordance with HKFRS 13.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives portion of convertible
notes is determined based on a valuation performed by an
independent valuer.

We considered this a key audit matter due to the complexity of
the valuation model and because model parameters are inherently
subject to judgement and estimates applied by management and
the independent valuer.
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Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the
convertible notes — embedded derivatives included:

—  obtaining an understanding of the management process
for determining the fair value measurements and the
relevant control;

- assessing whether the valuation methodology used by
management and the external valuer to arrive at the fair
value of convertible notes — embedded derivatives is
appropriate;

- challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions used
in the valuation process;

—  comparing input data to supporting evidence, such as
market indicators and considering the reasonableness of
the data adopted; and

-  evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

Based on available evidence, we found key assumptions used

by the external valuer and management in relation to the

valuation of convertible notes — embedded derivatives to be

reasonable. The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liabilities to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

GEEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Administrative expenses

Amortisation of production sharing contract

Gain on bargain purchase

Impairment loss on production sharing
contract

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment

Profit (loss) from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted (HK$ per share)

Yas
SHERA

EM

HAWA

HAh e KB 1R
TR
EmN KA R #H
EEL L6

EmN KA R ZBERER

W% - ez R RBZRERR

REFB 2B (FE)

BERA

BRBLATE IR
S

FEEIER
FEf -

ZA/NGIE 2PN
SRR

BRER
EARREE(BRET)

2019

—E-NEF

Notes HK$’000
Jiotz3 FAET
7 7,587
(6,747)

840

8 591
9 29,889
(44,521)
19 (15,701)
19 (413,598)
17 (12,461)
(454,961)
10 (50,772)
11 (505,733)
14(a) 108,572
(397,161)
(396,791)
(370)
(397,161)
16 (0.72)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEBEREMEERARE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHET
Loss for the year FEEBE (397,161)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Htp2E () WA
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to Hig B D2 B 2 BA -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BEBINEBEEEREE
operations 3,197
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMEEBIR)IBA
for the year, net of income tax HIBRFTSBE 3,197
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEXHEHBXEARE (393,964)
Attributable to: JEfE
Owners of the Company /NEIEZ ZE N (393,594)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIR =R (370)
(393,964)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEPHRR R

At 31 December 2020 R —E-FF+—-H=+—H

2019
—T-NF
Notes HK$’000
fifat AR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WA R RE 17 71,079
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 1,798
Intangible assets | A E 19 94,751
Financial assets at fair value through BRATHE ABm SREE
profit or loss 22 1,000
Goodwill EES 33 -
Rental deposit HEZE -
168,628
Current assets REBEE
Inventory 7E8 21 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit ~ EAFEFFABRZ SHEE
or loss 22 10,125
Trade and other receivables H 5 R EAM R IE 23 1,692
Cash and bank balances e MIRI TR 25 10,509
Cash held on behalf of clients REFPHEAEZRS 24 -
22,326
Current liabilities RE8E
Borrowings &R 26 25,000
Other borrowing, unsecured HipfER - EIEH 27 11,059
Trade and other payables B 5 M HEMERFRIE 28 38,517
Bonds BEF 29 4,976
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 1,159
Tax payables JERITIA 14(c) 5,328
Contract liabilities aHEE -
Convertible notes — liabilities portion AR RIE — B ERD 31 -
Convertible notes — embedded derivatives — [ ZE - NEHTETA 31 -
86,039
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (63,713)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBAE 104,915




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

At 31 December 2020 R —E-ZF&F1+ - H=+—H

2019
—TNF
Notes HK$'000
Mt FET
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Other payables H b e 1~ 5 E 28 16,342
Bonds &% 29 9,990
Convertible notes — liability portion AR RIE — B ER D 31 268,607
Convertible notes — embedded derivatives — AJ#ARZE - NEPTETA 31 110,348
Lease liabilities HEARE 32 646
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company REBKLIERARZER 30 10,000
Deferred tax liabilities R IR S (& 14(d) 16,716
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party A BIEH T 2 B 30 -
432,649
Net liabilities 8EEH (327,734)
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital & A 34 2,060,115
Reserves & (2,382,945)
Capital deficiency attributable to owners of ~ ZRARIZEE AEIGERE AL
the Company (322,830)
Non-controlling interests FEFER (4,904)
Capital deficiency ERE L (327,734)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 215 were approved ~ BHXFEIHE215 B 2 A BRELCESTHN
and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and are  —ZTZ—F=F Z+XBHEREETIE - W H

signed on its behalf by:

TIESREREE

Pan Jibiao Shao Yanxia
BK AREhEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
- 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRRRE ALY
Total
Special Non- equity/
Share capital Exchange Accumulated controlling (capital
capital reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  deficiency)
RAER EReE/
L wE BB RHER M FERER  (BFEA)

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

THET THET TET TET TET TET TET
(note 41(a))  (note 41(b))
(Wist412)  (Hata1b)

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—HF—H 2,032,322 579,799 146,494 (2,715,644) 42,971 (4,534) 38,437
Loss for the year FEFE - - - (396,791)  (396,791) (3700 (397,161)
Other comprehensive FREEMEZAKA

income for the year - - 3,197 - 3,197 - 3,197
Total comprehensive FREARA(FRX)

income (expense) for the 1B

year - - 3,197 (396,791) (393,594) (370) (393,964)

Issue of shares upon exercise 1712 RRIEE R 1T
of warrants Bdn 44 - - - 441 - 441

Issue of new shares under  IRIEE AR B/ TR -
rights issue, net of MBBRHEITHZ
share issue expenses 27,352 - - - 27,352 - 27,352

At31 December 2019 and R -Z—H%F

1 January 2020 TZA=t-Bk
“Z-ZF—-F—H 2,060,115 579,799 149,691 (3,112,435) (322,830) (4,904) (327,734)
Loss for the year FEFE - - - (64,369) (64,369) (258) (64,627)
Other comprehensive FEEMZERX
expense for the year - - (6,577) - (6,577) - (6,577)
Total comprehensive FRPARAXEHE
expenses for the year - - (6,577) (64,369) (70,946) (258) (71,204)

Issue of shares upon exercise 1712 RRIEERETT

of warrants P in 4,962 - - - 4,962 - 4,962
Conversion of convertible — BRATRRZEARH
notes into shares 10,555 - - - 10,555 - 10,555
Capital injection of subsidiary H{BREFE - - - - - 313 313
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+ZA=1t—4H 2,075,632 579,799 143,114 (3,176,804) (378,259) (4,849) (383,108)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & —E - FF+_H=+—HIFZ

Notes
Hiat
Operating activities R
Loss before tax BRTiRTE R

Adjustments for: EHRENT -
Interest income FSUA 8
Finance costs BB 10
Dividend income BB A 8
Gain on fair value change of convertible ABMEREE-ASTETAZ

notes — embedded derivatives NHEES) 2 W 9
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERAFEAABEZ SR

at fair value through profit or loss BECEE 9
Net loss (gain) on revaluation on financial —~ EfH AT EFABZ 226

assets at fair value through profit or loss BE BB (W) B8 9
Depreciation of property, WE - WERREBITE

plant and equipment 17
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 18
Amortisation of production sharing contract EE D KA [F,2 # 45 19
Impairment loss on production sharing EmaKaR 2 RBERE

contract 19
Impairment loss on property, M - S LR EBRERR

plant and equipment 17
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - M NREZEER

plant and equipment 9
Write-back of other payables (o] 485 B fE A~ 5R0E 9
Write-off of other receivables iEH A R Y IR 9
Write-off of property, plant and equipment i $8¥)% - #33 K8 & 9
Gain on bargain purchase EEWE 2 s
Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary LR — R B A B2 W 9

Operating cash flow before movements

in working capital

Increase in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in inventory

Increase in contract liabilities

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease (increase) in trade and other
payables

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income tax paid
Interest received

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

BEEATBPRZKERERE

BATEF ARG SRAE
Pl

FEEN

EXb=Sre il

H 5 R E AR ERE (R0 R A

5 N B A SRR A (5 00)
REXB(BRELERE

BRSPS

BEHAE

REXB(BR)EEZRETIR

2019
—E—NF
HK$'000
FET
(505,733)
(1)
50,772
(309)
(32,250)
1,245
(941)
9,274
655
15,701
413,598
12,461
54

(3,850)
34

(39,290)

(419)

51,420

(3,914)

7,797
(88)

7,710
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 Z2 —F - FF+ - =1—HIFEF

Notes
Hiat
Investing activities REXEK
(Increase) decrease in restricted bank R EIRITAEEACE )R
balances
Increase in cash held on behalf of clients REFPHAZEHSEM
Decrease in pledge bank deposits EHEARIRITERUR D
Decrease (increase) in cash balance in a EEIRRE DRSS 2R AR
pledged margin account A (48h0)
Dividend received B R
Payment of rental deposit HERSR
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E¥)% - #3832 a8
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HeE MRBASHIE
plant and equipment
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERNHESABRZ SR
through profit or loss BE
Net cash inflow from acquisition WEEMBAREE RSN
of subsidiaries TR
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZEA $f§u‘|')\TEfﬁZ$Eﬂﬁ
fair value through profit or loss EEPTISFUIA
Net cash used in investing activities REEBBRAZRSEHE
Financing activities e
Principal elements of lease payment HENRZ AT S
Proceeds from issue of shares upon ITERRIEE R TR D PI1S
exercise of warrants IR
Repayment of promissory notes H O BIEFTER R
Proceeds from borrowings B RRPTIS IR
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company A BKLIER AT 2 ER
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party RE AR %'J??ZE%
Interest paid EASFE
Repayment of bonds EEEL
Proceeds from issue of new shares under RN E T HT AR BT 1S 5UR
rights issue
Repayment of borrowings ERER
Net cash generated from (used in) financing BMEXKES (BH) 2R FHE
activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & RIR&F(E1E B I INERE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzBRe kRS EEER
of year
Effectyof foreign exchange rate changes HNERE R B 2 &
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZRAESRFALEEER 25
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ~ BE&RBSSEBRLH DT ¢
equivalents:
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHESR 25
Less: Restricted bank balances R ZRREIRITA 25
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 25
Cash balance in a pledged margin EEMRECERFPZHE
account LR 25
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBSRRSEEER

2019
— N5
HK$'000
TAT

(299)

(624)
441
(19,240)
25,000
10,000

(12,225)
(38,000)

27,352

(7,296)

392

6,161
3,835

10,388



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and the principal place of business of the Company has
changed from Unit E, 29/F, Tower B, Billion Centre, No. T Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon to 45th Floor, Tower 1, Times Squares, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong with effect from 15 June 2020.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Century Gold Millennium International
Holdings Group Limited (the “Ultimate Holding Company”), which is
a private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Pan Jibiao (the “Ultimate Controlling
Party”).

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 February 2020 and the
certificate of change of name issued by the Company Registry of Hong
Kong on 18 March 2020, the Company changed its English name and
Chinese name from “International Standard Resources Holdings Limited
ZREEREMR AR AT to “Golden Century International Holdings
Group Limited ©EBIRZREEER AT,

The principal activities of the Group are coalbed methane gas
exploration and exploitation, sale of electronic components, financial
business, wealth management, comprehensive healthcare and
proprietary investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
In addition, the functional currencies of certain group entities that
operate outside Hong Kong are determined based on the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the group entities operate.

—REHR

KRB B—RREBEMRIZBEREETRD
A HROREEHERSMER AR ([H
RETDERET « RAREMREERES
BRI It E AR B IRER T
DBE2VEEEE T AR B RBERNES—
PE45HE - BT ZEF AT HRBBAR -

RRRBERR » ARRZREEBRAR S
WS EBERIEREEER QR ([ RAIER
RA)  ZAR R EREEE L S
FXAL 2 BRABIRAR] » Ea&IRHl T mig i
o ([ SEAEHITT 1) -

BER-_Z_ZTF_ABBBZERR
FERBEBERANAMER-_Z-_ZF=A
TNABEE s AREREEERE - AAF
Z AT E B International Standard
Resources Holdings LimitediZ % & JRIZAE
R A& |2 A& [ Golden Century International
Holdings Group Limited & = BIBR 1% It & &
BRAR]

REBZ XT2EBRKERBENFAR &
FEMHEE  SREYK  WEEE  BEX
REENRBERE -

RaPBREABTT(BIT) 2 LR
RRARRIZNEEER - 1o FTHEEE
MINEZ 2 SEEBER ZIEERIAGHEE
ERIZLHRFACEEHEMEE

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

103



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

104

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all these

new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$64,369,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020, and as at the same date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$369,227,000, total liabilities exceeded its total assets
by approximately HK$383,108,000 and capital deficiency
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$378,259,000.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after taking into
consideration of the followings:

(i)  As at 31 December 2020, the Company has drawn down
loans of HK97,500,000 and undrawn loan facilities of
HK$102,500,000 granted by the Ultimate Holding Company
with interest payables of HK$10,155,000, which are
provided on a subordinated basis. The Ultimate Holding
Company will not demand the Company for repayment of
such loans nor cancel the undrawn loan facilities until all
other liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;

(i) In addition to the above, the Ultimate Controlling Party and
the Ultimate Holding Company have also undertaken to
provide adequate funds to enable the Group to meet in full
its financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(iii) For the loans provided to the Company in principal amount
of RMB54,000,000 (approximately HK$64,133,000)
and interest payables for RMB3,441,000 (approximately
HK$4,087,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Ultimate Controlling Party will not demand for repayment
until all other liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;

(iv) For the convertible notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$355,000,000 held by the Ultimate Holding Company
at 31 December 2020 which will mature on 31 December
2021, the Ultimate Holding Company has undertaken that
will not demand for repayment after maturity until all other
liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;

(v)  The Group will also seek additional financing including
but not limited to open offer, placing of the new shares and
issuance of bonds;

(vi) The directors of the Company will continue to implement
measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including close monitoring of general
administrative expenses and operating costs.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review
of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months
from the reporting date taking into account the impact of above
measures, the directors of the Company believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from the reporting date and, accordingly, are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities to current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

3.

ETEEHBERE)

(b)

REMBRRZRHUEE(E)

FEEARE B (E)

(il pBE=_ZT=_TF+=A=+—
BlEFEERAQGMEERS
A AR ¥ 54,000,000 7T ( 49
64,133,000 8 7L ) 2 E X & J&E
) B A R # 3,441,000 7t (49
4,087,000 7C) M E @ &EZEH
FTAEEXRERZER  HER
SEMBEAEMEEHEES

(ivy MEBRERAFR_ZT_ZTF
+TZA=t+—BEELRSHE
355,000,000 JT 2 7] 1% = &
(BR=—FE=_—F+=-_A=+—H
FIHR) M T - AT AR B
ERTEREBREERERZE
B BEEASEMEEMEEY

BEE

v) AEETHIKEBIIBRE - B
EREREBAMEE  BLEM
Bty REETES

(i) AARESHEEHITIEGIAR
AAEBZEBEARRER
BEBZER — RIS RE
R o

ARAREECHAENAKERZ2HA
HIfEEH R R+ @A ZRERER - &
hEA R LERECFE - ARFES
BE  ARERABRIRSERARE
NEB2®|ABESRE T —BARFE
ZEBESRNEMBREFTE  WHEAMZ
FEKLEEERUGAMBRERA/N

oo

==}

WEANEERELEERSELEELE
E - BHEZELHEABEEBERA
ZHAROISE - ARFBERNARREE
ZBEERRE  URBIERDEER
BEDRNEFNRERDEERARE -
I EBE R B RRRNERA RS
BHRERA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which the
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses
resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other
parties” interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which the
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.

The operation under the production sharing contract as referred to
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements is accounted
for as a joint operation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the statement of consolidated financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
statement of consolidated financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

3. FEERBE#E)

®

HE#E)

FEEEREMA ()

HEEE(E)

WMRGE MAMRER . —  AEEE
HESABETERE(LHERE
REEEFLERRER) :

o THEEBARC HEHBITEE
BEERMEMELRZL
FULBER T - RE#FE B 8E
REER] 2 B R HWEIETT 2 M
ENRBEETRE  UEHHE
2 HERE -

e WHEEKBMEHERERE
o/ REFAKEET 2 EBNR
HAEEMEBHENRBERLE
£ FERBERT - ERRRER
KHEREFT 2 HENRBETR
B NEHMERECHERE -

REBEFAMBHRRPHEERE
FREBZHBLY -

HEE

IRFEFTE AT EYE - REEEH—
BHEERIER—HEBFHHEEETA
BE :

o RIRBMUEBEMER-EXZ
HHEREEZENMEATHE
ZHEE K

o HEZREIZINTE L IR EZ A]
L A ERE MmN 2 B8
EBEREASRRAENZABIBERM
HRERERELZETAEER
BoE-o

R TMER—REBHEETARZHE
S EREERZEMAH - A%
BiREEREEZHER - BBEM
(ERERTREIR R KB AT 2 T E (R
TRE - UEMAERERRE -

ANEEEREARREREEEETIHE
HE - MUBEABEZEMAEETA
fR o HIERRZENBESHER D AR
BSN—MEIA L2 FHESKIFHERE S -
AEEEERHET D 2B EFHER
FOFEE R 2 MEBER - SE
RzBHFZRE EEREHERD 2
] o

%= 10207 LIOdIY IVNNNY

BHLE

115



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss for the year in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the
year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@i

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the mandatory provident fund scheme/state-managed
pension scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident
fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@i

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payments arrangements

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs which
are directly attributable to researching and analysing existing
exploration data; conducting geological studies; exploratory
drilling and sampling; examining and testing extraction and
treatment methods and compiling pre-feasibility and feasibility
studies. Exploration and evaluation expenditure also includes the
costs incurred in acquiring mining rights, the entry premiums paid
to gain access to areas of interest and amounts payable to third
parties to acquire interests in existing projects.

During the initial stage of a project, exploration and evaluation
costs are capitalised as incurred. Expenditure on a project after it
has reached a stage at which there is a high degree of confidence
in its viability is capitalised and transferred to development assets
if the project proceeds. If a project does not prove viable, all
irrecoverable costs associated with the project are expensed in the
profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

3. FEERBE#E)

()

(k)

BERAERAX

BIREFT AR BEUL TR EEE
A - R EAMBREEIRER © #
TTHETT « B ERE S R - ARl 2R
SR BRIETTA - RARETERATIE R AIAT
AT E - BRI S N EHEE
SREBHETEE KA  EABRESE
P HEE S B Rt W RIR 1R B
NE=77BRMELMKA

RIAE I - BRER AR AN B AR
BAE - HAZEDREAITEERE - M
A EAETT - EXHTFAEACILEA
BREE © WEAEE AT - BIE
BHEBAAEZ TAIRERARERA
SRS °

BiIE
S HL R S AR BB 8 BURE IR
ZHEEE

FHIHR

7N B8 A T IR R A F T2 R AR B A A
& o ERBUEFERTIATRS, BB
Rl - it Ty B A R e R 3R] 1
B2 WS TA B LA R EER TR ST BE T
2B TR - AR 2 AR E
BAREEMABEERMZHEAE -

FEEHE

BREIB TSRS SRR ANEER A
ERREE RN B ERTUE N 2 18E
B E 2 B ZFRER - REDIAE
E—RENERRRE R ZRHER -
BIERIRE E — REBLATE A HRE i
ZRRER - WA A BEBUS R T E A
AESHA B A Z AR E R 2 RIR
W E R ZR R T EERTISH -
M EETRN IR T2 EERA
Bz iafER (T REXKEHEL -
AT eRARFELEHAEENAE
HEAN - (i BB R TR AR Z (IR FERR
EL AT gWRAELEREAE -

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

119



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply for the year in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings,
plant and equipment, furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles
and leasehold improvements held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. Details are as follows:

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

20 years
2-4 years or over the terms of
the lease, if higher
Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years
Plant and equipment 3 to 10 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures under
construction, which is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use. No depreciation
is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is
substantially completed and ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Intangible assets

(n)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

The following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised
from the date it is available for use and its estimated remaining
useful life is as follows:

— Production sharing contract 17.9 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
time deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts and bank loans, if any,
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an
enterprise’s cash managements are also included as component of
cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of the parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.

ETEEHBERE)

(s)

®

oEEmE
REDBRRIFEMTERERANZINZ2ED
BREZ2HEEEHMRH T ARERS
TTRERA B ZMEE R HRIHK -
ZEBMDREERNEEEANEERIA
R E KA E AR BB IRER
NMIEAE 2RI

REMBHREM S - FRIEDBEBRELZ
RENBLEEMRRSIEE £ET
FiEE - FPENZESR - BEDBE
mEERRE 2 DEREEREZEE
FTEAM - BREREREE 2B
SARMEE - ERIFFERZEENE

RFTE LMARETEE - QIR T4 6

H -

TRMITA
HEEERR AR ITAA LDBEIHET
W7 MemEENSRBERS T AR
ReoMALENEREEEERERR
HIER R R LR - EREERANE
BRETSEHHIENRRARZNEEN
ETREEERE -

EREENREBBENHARTFEFT
B MHERPANELZEZRYGA
MR B AW B RELERNFE 155 E
BRON o VIIATERET - WRBRBTERE
EREREBBEEEANERZSRAUA
AFEFABRGRZEREERERAE
BANERFBERAREBEEREHE
ERRFER AR » SRR A
AFEFABRGRZEREESSRAE
EENERRZZKA - AR EREARE

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

3.

ETEEHBERE)

®

$WMIAE)
THEEE)
SHEREEEDAMEE ()

FEUTHREZ EREERRRATE
AEAEMBEERAZAGFE

o RZERMEBEERGENNEIANERR
MEMNESREERBNZE
BEATHREA R

o AWMERFREHINEE B HWEER
DRE MEBREREERX

Eone

MR RAEERSFE -

AR EERRRAFEF AR
w2 NGB R ERERE BN

ERRIEN R CMEER
Bl - xS i B WIFRHER & - N3k
WEETEEBM B REERNEIRER
BOHERZEB A HPERZHARK
(B - AIAKEA{EL TR BEAREE
Hit2EWAP 2R ERERZ A

CREEN TIBERDBLFHIEESR :

TERNEHHEMBA & X

« RAAHREARRE-RAER
MERRERTAESE 2 —
5 ABAAEMERHERM
SR

o BRORWEE L A RUE R T
TAZUTETH -

UESh - aRRAHRR SR E R D R R
e - RUZASER BRI VR N AT HUH R0 36 E 15
FRMBHERASIE A HEF AR DR
HEWAGEZ EREERE RIRATE
FTAIREETE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

3. FEERBE#E)

®

$WMIAE)
THEEE)
SHEREEEDAMEE ()

(i)

B SHRAR R R B IRA
HRERRBENATEZSHE
ERERRATFEFAEGCEZE
WA 8 2 BB TR FEWRFKIA
s - MEWATIERERAN X
EHER - MBAREACEER
BEzEmEEAIIZERIAMN
FONRMATIHEREE K
HEARERMERMERTE @ R
BREREEREZSREER
Sh e HERHBREEREZ SR
BEMS  MBWRATEREBT
—ERHEHeREE 2 BHK
AREMBERANEMAER o W3R
EEREBEZeMIAZEERR
BRNE UBREREETHH
REERE  NERARIERE
EREETHEREERER
BERMAMEHEREEZR
HAAERE BRI RER o

BRATEN BN SHAE
SRAE TR R MR
AT AR REMAZ T
R B2 M RTGAEES
5 A TR AR A2 T
f o BIERATEIABRZH
HEHE -

BRAHEFABRZEREET
REZHBPRELTEFE B
REFAFEREREBNER
MER - REBR AR 2 U aEk
BRFETEEREREEMR
BUZ AR B kA S - WAt ATHE
bz REsiE TR A A o

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

129



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —F—-F

3.

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and other
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk
of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 30 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;
. Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises on
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —F—-F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including other borrowing, bonds, promissory
notes and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCl”), unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability
is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in OCI
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they
are transferred to accumulated losses upon derecognition of the
financial liability.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of
the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments are equity instruments. The proceeds received from
the exercise of warrants, net of direct issue costs, are recognised in
share capital.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes containing debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included in
the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

If the notes are converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and debt components are transferred to share capital as
consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of
an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised for the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
for the year of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(@ Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets

The Group tests at least annually whether assets that have
definite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

The estimated recoverable amounts of construction in progress,
plant and equipment in coalbed methane segment (note 17) at the
end of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis of an
independent professional valuation carried out by an independent
firm of professional qualified valuers using cost approach and
market approach valuation methodology, which involves the cash-
generating units that have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations.

As at 31 December 2020, impairment losses of HK$1,946,000
(2019: HK$12,461,000) in respect of these construction in
progress, plant and equipment have been recognised. Details
of the impairment are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b)  Provision for ECL for trade receivables

(©

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement. The Group regularly
monitors and reviews assumptions related to the calculation of
ECL. The above estimation techniques and key assumptions have
not changed significantly in 2020.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast general economic conditions. If the financial condition
of the customers or the forecast economic conditions were to
deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.

Useful life and amortisation of intangible asset -production
sharing contract (“PSC”)

The PSC is amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining
contract terms of 17.9 years to 31 March 2038. Management
determines the estimated useful lives and basis for amortisation
for the PSC taking into account factors including but not limited
to, contractual terms of respective contracts, the expected usage
of the assets by the Group based on past experience, technical
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service
of the assets. The estimation of the useful life and the basis for
amortisation is a matter of judgement based on the experience
of the Group. Management reviews the estimated useful life and
the basis for amortisation of intangible asset annually, and if
expectations are significantly different from previous estimates of
useful economic life, the basis and rates of amortisation for future
periods will be adjusted accordingly.

Had a different amortisation rate been used to calculate the
amortisation of the PSC, the Group’s result of operations and
financial position could be materially different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Estimate for resources and/or reserves of coalbed methane
(“CBM”) under the PSC
Reserves are estimates of the amount of CBM that can be
economically and legally extracted from the designated contract
areas under the PSC (note 19). In order to make an estimate for the
reserves, estimates and assumptions are required about a range of
geological, technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production costs,
transportation costs, commodity demand and commodity prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
information on the size, shape and depth of the coalbeds or fields,
which has to be determined by analysing geological data such as
drilling samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgements and calculations to interpret the data.

The Group estimates its commercial reserves and resources
based on information compiled by appropriately qualified
persons relating to the geological and technical data on the size,
depth, shape and grade of the hydrocarbon body and suitable
production techniques and recovery rates. Commercial reserves
are determined using estimates of CBM in place, recovery factors
and future commodity prices, the latter having an impact on the
total amount of recoverable reserves and the proportion of the
gross reserves under the terms of the PSC. Future development
costs are estimated using assumptions as to the number of wells
required to produce the commercial reserves, the cost of such
wells and associated production facilities, and other capital costs.
The carrying amount of intangible assets relating to the PSC at
31 December 2020 is disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) HETREZETERR(E)
(d) Estimate for resources and/or reserves of coalbed methane d) EmSHKEETEER(EER)ER
(“CBM?”) under the PSC (Continued) B HEEZ i (E)
As the economic assumptions used to estimate resources and/ EREEIRR,SEE TR 2 SBER
P RERE N R BRI M - WA EE
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or reserves may change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, the estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s FEZEYA B R EREAEE
financial results and financial position in a number of ways, WIS EE RSN - HPBETII%
including the following: 1B
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the carrying value of intangible asset relating to the PSC may
be affected due to changes in estimated future cash flows;

depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss may change as
such charges are determined by reference to the units of
production basis or the estimated useful economic lives of
the assets;

provisions for decommissioning site restoration and
environmental provisions may change where changes in
estimated reserves affect expectations about the timing or
cost of these activities; and

the carrying value of deferred tax liabilities may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

®

Impairment of intangible asset — PSC

The estimated recoverable amount of the PSC (note 19) at the
end of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis
of an independent professional valuation carried out by an
independent firm of professional qualified valuers using income
approach valuation methodology, which involves the value-
in-use calculations with reference to the technical assessment
reports issued by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. and
the latest internal reserve assessment. Neither the valuer nor
technical adviser is connected with the Group, while both have
the appropriate qualifications and relevant experience in the
industry. The Group has used estimated future cash flows and
profit forecasts expected to be generated from the PSC as a cash-
generating unit and a risk-adjusted discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group’s CBM business under the
PSC is currently at its early stage of development. The cash flow
and profit forecast projections involve significant judgement and
estimates on the accuracy of the assumptions for the projections
and estimates of, including but not limited to, government policies,
growth rate, the extent of the future market competition, market
demand, and cost structure of CBM products that the Group will
achieve during the forecast period.

Had different parameters and discount rates been used to
determine the estimated recoverable amount of the intangible asset,
the Group's results of operations and financial position could be
materially different.

Exploration and evaluation expenditures

The application of the Group’s accounting policy for the
exploration and evaluation expenditure requires judgement to
determine whether future economic benefits are likely, from either
exploitation or sale, or whether activities have not reached a
stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of
reserves. The determination of reserves and resources is itself an
estimation process that involves varying degrees of uncertainty
depending on how the resources are classified. These estimates
will be directly impacted when the Group defers exploration and
evaluation expenditure. The deferral policy requires management
to make certain estimates and assumptions about future events
and circumstances, in particular, whether an economically viable
extraction operation can be established. Any such estimates and
assumptions may change as new information becomes available.
If, after expenditure is capitalised, information becomes available
suggesting that the recovery of the expenditure is unlikely, the
relevant capitalised amount will be written off in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year when the new information
becomes available.
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@

(b)

(©

Functional currency

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and making
management decisions in Hong Kong, that is, raising finance in
Hong Kong dollars and has significant degree of autonomy from
its foreign subsidiaries in the way its business is managed. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars.

Fair value of embedded derivatives portion of convertible notes
The fair value of the embedded derivatives portion of the
convertible notes that are not traded in active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group estimates the fair value
of the embedded derivatives portion of the convertible notes based
on an independent professional valuation using the binomial
lattice model which requires various sources of information and
assumptions. The carrying amount of the embedded derivatives
portion of the convertible notes as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$46,234,000 (2019: HK$110,348,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on the assumption that the Group will be able
to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable future, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of events
or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors
consider that, after taking into account of all major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business risks, that individually
or collectively may cast significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption as set out in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and

bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

EXRERE

AEBZBEAEERE RARBASE LS
BREEEBERE 2T NRAREREHR
[ - R RELMT0E2FE - WHER
REZEREBAREERKA

REFFABERGERE  AEETESRAE
ARFRKERE 2SR MRRBEZE
A BITHR D S EE ELURIKER

HEMRAEX & AEEMAERLXRESR
HER o i RinRFE R IALE ARG
B FERAREBINIRE MRTTHER - &
BT E R GRS MR RAR)
DFEIR

R-B-BER-FT-NF+-_A=+—H
ZaELENT

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
Tt

Convertible notes AR R
Contract liabilities ERAaE
Bonds EE
Borrowing Bk

Loan from Ultimate Holding Company
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party
Other borrowing

Lease liabilities

Less: Cash and bank balances

KEREIERRRZER

KB REIEHTT 2 ER
HAd &R

HERE

R RIRTTHEER

Total net debt FEIEARR
Capital deficiency BB
Total capital HEXR
Gearing ratio BELE

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subjected to

externally imposed capital requirements.

378,955

14,966
25,000
10,000

11,059
1,805
(10,509)

431,276

(327,734)

103,542

416.52%

AR R R EAEMME QR AR Z
BARBERSI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &RITA
(1) Categories of financial instruments 1 EMITEER
2019
—ZT-NF
HK$’000
FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BHIERATTEC SRMEE 11,778
Financial assets at fair value through profit R AF(EFABRZZ S REE
or loss 11,125
22,903
Financial liabilities SHas
Bonds E% 14,966
Convertible notes — liability portion, AMREER -8R/Hy -
unsecured Fgiigti 268,607
Convertible notes — embedded derivatives, AIMREE -NEITETH -
unsecured Eigiigtii 110,348
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company REBEEIERAT ZER 10,000
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party KB BT 2 B -
Contract liabilities AHERE -
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,805
Other financial liabilities EmeaaE 81,293
487,019
(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies 2 HEREEBEERBEE

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, trade receivables, deposits,
other receivables, cash and bank balances, other borrowings,
bonds, convertible notes, promissory notes, trade payables, other
payables, borrowings, loan from Ultimate Holding Company, loan
from Ultimate Controlling Party, lease liabilities and amounts due
to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (including
foreign currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transaction relates. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States
dollars (“US$”). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB
must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. As
HKS$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not expect any
significant currency risk of US$ position.

Overall, the Group monitors its currency exposure closely
and would consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk from changes
in the Company’s own share price to the extent that the
Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair values
of financial derivatives of the Group. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group is exposed to this risk through
the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes issued
by the Company as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities (note 22).
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments operating in securities and brokerage
industry sectors quoted in the Stock Exchange.

The Group has not hedged its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities. The Group’s securities
investments that are listed on the Stock Exchange are valued
at the quoted market prices at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

6. ERMIBEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Other price risk (Continued)
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower (2019: 10% higher/lower):

e post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$446,000
(2019: decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,013,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of investments in listed equity securities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the bank balances due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rates for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to fair value interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
bank deposits had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s loss for the

if the interest rates on

year would decrease/increase by approximately HK$344,000
(2019: HK$104,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of each class of recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team to compile credit and risk management
policies, to approve credit limits and to determine any
debt recovery action on those delinquent receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model based on provision matrix
or credit impaired. Details of the accounting policy for
impairment of trade receivables has been disclosed in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of trade receivables and, where appropriate, credit
guarantee insurance cover is purchased.

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics and
the days past due to measure ECL. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the expected credit losses rate for customers
of sales of goods is minimal, given there is no history of
significant defaults from customers and insignificant impact
from forward-looking estimates. The assessed ECL for trade
receivables are not material.

6. ERMIBEE)

2 REREEZEEERBEEE)

(d)

FEmERRRETE (F)

RBEERREERE  AEE
EREEABREEBRUEER
BB EIRHE - #IEEERE -
PARORTE Sa2 SRR 2 W
BEMRBRZEHETITH - It
S REBERERPREHNZE
—EWRIBZ AT E S HE - ARE
REL AT E 2 2 BBV H R 5908
BEE - BREME  ARARES
RA/LEEZEFERREKRET
B o tON  AEBERERHAEE
BEEATERBHEEENEE
EEEEITREE - BRAE
ZIEMWGRIA 2 B8 2 | FTBUER R
BERGAMBERRMEIAR

o

BHRYGRERERNER N &
TERBRNES AEESY
BHEPHFBHRRETHERE
Effh - XEEEBRTBER
ERRRR -

REERGTEEBEEBERS
Z2EERRFHELRBBEE -
BE_Z-TF+=-A=+—H
HFE BREPUEEKRER
LHERATEEEF 2 ELTE
E BRESEERPREERPZ
TERE B BB E 85 o 5T
% BHEKFAZEBEEDB
BITEKX -

%= 10207 LIOdIY IVNNNY

BHLE

149



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was
assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly.

The other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective evidence that an
impairment had been incurred but not yet been identified.
For these receivables, the estimated impairment losses were
recognised in a separate provision for impairment. The
Group considered that there was evidence of impairment if
any of the following indicators were present:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

e probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; and

e default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when there
was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

In respect of loan receivables arising from the Group’s
money lending business, all of the loan receivables were
secured by pledged properties or vehicles. The directors of
the Company closely monitor the risk exposure of customers
and collateral and would take appropriate action to ensure
the risk exposure is acceptable.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, including deposits
and other receivables, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised
cost are presented as impairment losses, net of reversal
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 45% (2019: 44%) and 98% (2019: 100%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively. As at
31 December 2020, no provision for expected credit loss
on the trade receivable has been made as these debtors
has no recent history of default and a substantial portion
of the carrying amount is subsequently settled, thus the
management of the Group does not expect any significant
loss from these debtors.

Bank balances and cash in broker accounts are placed
in various authorised institutions and the directors of the
Company consider the credit risk for such institutions is
minimal.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the
“SF(FR)R”), as required. In the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SRIAE
(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 2 REREEEERERE)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) MEMEEEE)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAVNAREEETESREE
maturities at the year end date of the Group’s non-derivative RTESREBENFEB ZF
financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which AHBEHE - FHe OB EE T
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including REHENRRRSRE(BEFNA
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if &R = (i) 2 R 2w AE
floating, based on rates prevailing at the date of the reporting A2 FRGFHE 2 MBS ARA
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to SEATH BNz & A HE
pay: -
2019
ZIE
More than
Weight Total Within -~ More than 2 years
average  contractual Tyear  Tyearbut but less
Carrying interest  undiscounted oron less than than
amount e cashflow demand 2 years 5 years

g ANERR 15RE, EE N
FEE  ¥ONE RERsEE BREX  ERRE  ETRSF

HKS'000 % - HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
i % A Fan Fhn Thn
Borrowings &R 25,000 210% 27,500 27,500 - -
Loan from Ultimate Holding - REFAARAT 285
Company 10,000 24.0% 12353 12353 - -
Loan from Ultimate RESEEHH &R
Controlling Party - - - - - -
Other borrowings EfpfE3 11,059 - 11,059 11,059 - -
Trade and other payables &R AMERFE 45,234 - 45,234 26,892 16,342 -
Bonds B% 14,966 6.7% 16,908 5,764 703 10441
Convertible notes including - TTHERZE(2EAS
embedded derivatives) fiETR) 378,955 20% 379,600 7,300 372,300 -
Lease liabiities HESE 1,805 8.0% 2368 1,369 999 -
Contractliabilities Ahak - - - - - -
447,019 495,02 94,237 390,344 10,441
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

®

Oil and gas price risk

Apart from the financial instruments disclosed above, the
Group's activities expose it to market risk relating to oil and
gas price risk.

The Group is engaged in a wide range of gas related
activities. The global oil and gas market is affected by
international political, economic and global demands for
and supply of oil and gas. A decrease in the world prices of
crude oil and gas could adversely affect the Group’s financial
position. The Group has not used any derivative instruments
to hedge against potential price fluctuations of crude oil and
refined products. Management will consider hedging oil and
gas exposure should the need arise.

(3) Fair value measurement

(@

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement.

2020 —ECEF
Financial assets SREE
— Financial assets at fair value ~ —31Z 2 F(EFTAEBRZ
through profit or loss EREEMZ22)
(note 22)
Financial liabilities ==K
— Convertible notes — — AR =R —
embedded derivatives, NEPTETE -
unsecured AR
(note 31) (Bft31)
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SEZEBERHCAEE AT R

HRERRRARE SRR o

AEBRESRMRAREE -
2HRAMEMRRAT S ERRK
A BB R 2O KRR AR
R - RomRMR 2 2IRER
TR E AR E 2 B AR AR
TR E o REBIAKEREM
PTET A - S Rh RERRE
mZEEEBRKE - HMAEREE
BE&EEBLhRERRR -

3) ATEFE
(@) UELEMHBEEHSZ L FEE

BFrEFHHEERTHMEREZ
AFE
AEENSEREENEREE
TIAE 2R Z A FERE °
TREJNRZHMBAR - BEBEBH
BIRELRE 1R AT EFEH
EENATESEHNEN =A%
B RSB EEN R T ER
EMAKEERTAZAFE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(3) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(@

6.

SRMIAE)

) DFEFEGE)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial (@) UBLREMEEHES L FEL
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring BXEEcHEEREHERZ
basis (Continued) RNFEE(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F1H B2 E3M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHT
2019 —E-hEF
Financial assets SWMEE
— Financial assets at fair value —RAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss DEVEE (HFt22)
(note 22) 10,125 - 1,000
Financial liabilities s@MaE
— Convertible notes — — AR AR I —
embedded derivatives, ANESTET A -
unsecured fmE R
(note 31) (H17E31) - - 110,348

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 1 fair value measurements
The fair value of equity securities classified as Level 1 was
determined by quoted price in active market.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of conversion option embedded in convertible
notes is determined using binomial lattice model and
the significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is credit spread. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the credit spread. As at 31 December
2020, the credit spread used in the valuation is 18.58%
(2019: 20.74%), and it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease of 10% in the
credit spread would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss by approximately HK$4,700,100/HK$4,863,900
(2019: increase/decrease the Group's loss by approximately
HK$36,362,000/HK$46,434,000).

REBEE_ZT-_FTFR_FT—IF
+-A=+t—HBItFE 14k
FRMEz TEAWEE RN NES
MEEAREL c AEEZHKA
RAFESHZEHEEEBEN2
SREARME R AR B -

BE 1R N FEFTEZEH
WABBE VRN A HEBRZ K
REFZAFEDRERT S Z

BRI FEEZ EF
AR EEANES 2B E 2 A F
ENREAZBEAMEEXETE -
mMAFEFEMAZEZATA
HRHABEAEEEEZ -2
FEAEREESZ2IEAEE
ReRNZEZEF+-_A=+—
H HEMBZEEEEZA
18.58%(=F—J1F :20.74%)
MiHpTE Lt E g s~ &
EEEELFA/TRI0EFTS
B E R AL E BN R
1 494,700,100 7T,/ 4,863,900
BRA(ZZE—NF: AEEEB
B, %9 36,362,000 7
7T,/ 46,434,00057T) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(3) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(@

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The movements during the year in the balances of the
Level 3 fair value measurement for the conversion option
embedded in convertible notes are disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements. Fair value loss/gain on
conversion option embedded in convertible notes is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Of the
total gains or losses for the year in the profit or loss, fair value
gain of approximately HK$61,599,000 (2019: fair value gain
of approximately HK$32,250,000) was related to conversion
option embedded in convertible notes for the reporting
period. The fair value of the non-current unlisted financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 22a) was
estimated by the directors of the Company with reference to
the expected value to be realised.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, other borrowing and trade and other payables
approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term
maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of loan receivables which carry fixed
interest rates approximates their fair value.

The fair values of the liability component of convertible notes
and bonds are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

6. ERMIBEE)

) DFEFEGE)

(@

(b)

BRIt EEEG R A FE
BXEETHEERTHBEREZ
RFE(E)

BRE IR FlEFEZ BEF (F)

REZARBREERANE 2 B E
ZEIGNTEFER B ZE

RERE IS REMFE3T AR -
MR RBEAE 2 RRE S AT
BEE WS TALZREE
HRMAN o NEFFTABSE B
W EEES - A FERESL
61,599,000 L (=& — NLF
N FAE U S %932,250,0005% JT )
HR2|MPAZ TRREBERNES
BB o A FER AR
W2 IEREIE LTS RE E (T
22(@) 2 AFETIBRANREES
ZHEE 2 SEGEE -

VHFUREENEEGE S AT
EHELHAERLBARZD
Vi

85 REMEBHE  Re RS
T RAERRE S A
R 3RUR 2 A (B A AR 4
% BRZAERABLFHUE

5o

s & IR E E M R S - HER
EEEQNTFERE -

ABMERREzAER REHFZ
RNFETIREHER A A BB X
ERTER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 Z2 —F - FF+ - =1—HIFEF

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 7. WaRkoBRE
(@) Revenue @@ Wi
The principal activities of the Group are coalbed methane gas REBZ T ZEBRANTRRERER
exploration and exploitation in the PRC, sale of electronic BREFE  EFEMHHE  SRE
components, financial business, wealth management, % HEEE BEAERLEER
comprehensive healthcare and proprietary investment. &
An analysis of the amount of revenue from each category of REEETBREBTRAPIZRGEEES
principal activities during the year is set out below: Wz T -
2019
—hF
HK$’000
THET
Sale of electronic components BFEHHE 7,587
Financial business DRI
— Consultancy and referral income — B R A -
— Brokerage commission income — M2 A -
— Interest income from IPO financing —BHRARAEEREZ
ﬂ%%k -
Wealth management EE
— Commission income from insurance —R M?‘&ZEZﬁillﬁU\
brokerage -
Comprehensive healthcare BREARERE
— Sales of meltblown fabrics and related — SHEETE A LA AR R RR 18 S
equipment and raw material R E -
7587
(b) Segment information b) 7EEHR
The Group manages its business by divisions, which are organised REBRTRASEEEREER 255
by business lines, in a manner consistent with the way in which BREBENE D - HETRERE

information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management, who are also the executive directors
of the Company, for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments. During the year ended 31 December
2020, management has revisited the reportable segments and
the Group’s internal reporting by managing its business. After
considering the future strategic plan and size of the recently
acquired operations, the Group has identified the following six
reportable segments. The corresponding segment information
for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been restated. The
Treasury segment disclosed last year has been restated into
Financial business segment and Proprietary investment segment.

RABRRBAFEAAEE 2 ZHSTTH
EEAB(TAREENTER) N2
BEMITA B - RBE-_T_ZF
TZA=+t—BLFE EEECER
ERHEEBENESI 2RO BRAE
B2 A2k - KEBOBWBES 2
AKRBEREINRIE - REBEEHEE
UATARBERE2HIE - BE-FT—NF
TZA=+t—BLFEZHEEIRER
BETEY - EFRBEBBIEEKE
IIREBMEBIERBEREDE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)

(i)

Electronic components
Coalbed methane

Financial business (i.e. securities brokerage, money lending,
consultancy and referral service)

Wealth management
Proprietary investment (i.e. securities trading)
Comprehensive healthcare

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources to segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets, and
current assets attributable to the segments with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by the segments
and the expenses incurred by the segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to the segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment
result”. Segment result includes the operating profit generated
by the segment and finance costs directly attributable to
the segment, without allocation of head office or corporate
administration costs. Income tax is not allocated to reportable
segment.

7. WERDEHRE(E)

(b) DEERE)

(i)

BT
RER

TR EM(EAFEL  WE - B
A R e S AR % )

MEEE

BEARER

TEEE BERAE

A D BERR IR D ERE DA
BERME  ARBZESTHE
BABRBATERERSERA

EROVBEEZEE  BERA
&:
DREBERENBEREZMESR

WEEREBREEMRBEE
HEEMBDPEEERI - DBEE
BRERBENSEEBZESR
HEMNRALmOBEERERE
ZAEFK e

RS E2ESBEE ZH
EMAXROBREZEERE
FEEAEEZHAXOREEEA

2WMHE -

HEDBENARAZEFTET A
RIDEEE] - " BREEBRRED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERSERE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEERGE)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) FDEEE BEREEE)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2020

REE-_Z-_TFR_FT—NF
+—A=+—HBILFE %Ok
BREFHDBREMREITFA
EESESTHERABZAER
Al EIFHOFEERT ¢

BE-_E-BE+-A=+-8
IEFE

Recognised at a point in time
Recognised over time
Recognised from other source

Reportable segment revenue from
external customers

Reportable segment results

Amortisation of production sharing
contract

Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Gain on fair value change of
convertible notes - embedded
derivatives

Impairment loss on production
sharing contract

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Imputed interest on convertible
notes

Imputed interest on lease liabilities

IPO loan interest expenses

Interest on borrowings
Loss on disposal of financial assets

atfair value through profit or loss

Net loss on revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Other income

Write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on derecognition of
asubsidiary

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment labiliies

B AR
BB RED
BEMRRED

RENREFZTZHR
RN

PESviEtS |

ERARAR B
n% BERRELNE

ERRAELTE
TERES-RlE
TR 0FERE

W
ERARARZREEE
g BERHEZ

R
TAREF(HEHE

HREHRETE

EROFRERES
Bx

Eao7e

HERDTE AR
SHEEIEE

SERATEN Ay
SBAEIFESE

T

HEnE BERAE

- BHEAT IS

T2EHREE

AEEFRENEEEL
e

DE: Vi1




7.

(i)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERDERE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEERE)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () PEEE HEREBEE)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hAF+=A=+—8H
LLFE
Electronic Coalbed Financial Proprietary
components methane business investment Total
EFEH KER TRER BERE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TETL TETL TEL TEL
Recognised at a point in time R—{ERREEHER 7,587 - - - 7,587
Recognised over time BERS TR - _ _ _ _
Recognised from other source SEMFRER - _ _ _ _
Reportable segment revenue from ~ RESREF 228K
external customers 2EkE 7,587 - - - 7,587
Reportable segment results TEHIEEE (1,397) (473,628) 180 (555) (475,400)
Amortisation of production sharing ~ E@mAKE R &
contract - 15,701 - - 15,701
Depreciation on property, plantand 1% « BEREETE
equipment - 8,990 28 - 9,018
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ FFREEEEZITE 147 97 411 - 655
Gain on fair value change of AHRREE-NEITEIA
convertible notes - embedded ZRTEEE 2 s
derivatives - (32,250) - - (32,250)
Impairment loss on production sharing  ERAMK AR ZFHEEE
contract - 413,598 - - 413,598
Impairment loss on property, plantand  #% * & k& RE
equipment 2] - 12,461 - - 12,461
Imputed interest on convertible notes  ATAREE 2 HEFE, - 44,095 - - 44,095
Imputed interest on lease liabilities ~ HER &7 HEF|E 2 15 4 - 79
Interest on borrowings BR2HE - - - 500 500
Loss on disposal of financial assets ~ HEZAFEFARRZ
at fair value through profit or loss CREEZEE - - - 1,245 1,245
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  (HEW% « B k&2
equipment BR - 54 - - 54
Net gain on revaluation of financial ~ Ef4EATFEFABEZ
assets at fair value through profit CREEMGFE
or loss - - - (941) (941)
Other income HABA (18) @ (12) (304) (336)
Write-back of other payables E& AR F0E - - (3,850) - (3,850)
Reportable segment assets T2HIREE 992 166,821 5,964 10,056 183,833
Additions to non-current segment  AEEFFHIEEEY
assets during the year hE 588 1,387 - - 1,975
Reportable segment liabilities TE2RLEEE 22,406 378,960 504 15,200 417,070
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loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment and consolidated
revenue

Profit or loss

Reportable segment results

Other income

Other gains and losses

Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses

Consolidated loss before tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Unallocated head office and corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Tax payables

Unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

BHHER
A2WNBEE

HApr A

HitbWorzs N 18
AN ER R EEFRS

BRBiATAR A 1R

&E
2RO BREE
RAOEBHERNEEEE

mABERE

&fE

AEHNBREE
EREBBRE

e BEIR
AofcamErhoXaE

RERBEReRE

BEREEZHK

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WaERSEREE)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) SEERE)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (i) TE2HHBYH - BFEEE -

2019
—E—NF
HK$’000
Tt

7,587

(475,400)
255
(5,853)

(24,735)

(505,733)

183,833

7,121

190,954

417,070
5,328
16,716

79,574

518,688



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERSERE(E)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(iii) Geographical information

(b) DEERE)

(iii)

In presenting geographical information, revenue is based
on the geographical location of the external customers.
Specified non-current assets, which represent property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, are based
on the geographical location of assets.

HEEH

2R ERE - W IR BN
REPZHMBEMEZS - HEI
mBEE AR - HaE R
BVEE ERBEENRER
FEFABRZEBEE) HIRE
BEREMRY -

2020 —z—=fF
Revenue Wiz
Specified non-current assets EFMBEE
Hong Kong PRC Total
B A #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FET
2019 —T-NEF
Revenue Wz 7,587 - 7,587
Specified non-current assets BEIERDEE 2,155 166,473 168,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. BERSERE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) b) EERE)
(iv) Information about major customers (iv) BETEESZEH
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to DAMEAREE K 10% A F 2
10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out below: FTEZFPWEEIINAT
2019
—E-NF
Percentage
Revenue of revenue
W  WamAok
HK$’000
THETT

Customer A’ PR 4,032 53%

Customer B! BEL 2,609 34%

Customer C? BPR? _ _

Customer D2 BFET? _ _

Customer E? BRI _ _

! Revenue from sale of electronic components. The corresponding ! HEEBTEMH2WE - RZT=
revenue did not contribute over 10% of total revenue of the Group TE - HRESETEEARER
in 2020. Wz 10% A L -

2 Revenue from sale of meltblown fabrics and related equipment and ’ HEBBEARFERER ZEEDIA
raw material in comprehensive healthcare business. KARRAR AR R A 2 e

Save of the above, no other single customers contributed BrLiish RZFZFFRZFT

10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both 2020 and —NEF - HEEME-FFHEX

2019. SEKERT10%A L ©

E 2 i 2 B AR 2 ") | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

7

&

162



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & —E - FF+_H=+—HIFZ

OTHER INCOME

8. HMWA

Bank interest income

Dividend income

Interest income from refundable rental deposit
Sundry income

Rental income

Management fee income

Government subsidy (note (i))

Note:

(i) During the year, the government subsidies of HK$771,000 were granted from (i)
the Employment Support Scheme and Subsidy Scheme of the Securities Industry
under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

RITA B WA

RN

AREREERS ZFBBA
FEEWA

GEEALON

EEBRA

B RERG (AYa2 ()

9. HttERER

Gain on fair value change of convertible notes —
embedded derivatives

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange gain (loss)

Net (loss) gain on revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Write-back of other payables

Write-off of other receivables

Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

AHBERE-ASITETAZ
RN ERE 2 W

HEZAFEFARR 2SR
BEZER

HEWE -« ez Rk 2 Bia

BEE i W (B985 4R

BERAHEFABRZ SR
BEZ (BR) k58

(O] 8 A 8 £ 0R

HsHE M U R IR

R E ARz Was

R - AR R

2019
ZE-NEF
HK$'000
FHET

REAR - ERBUTHRL771,0008 TR B B R
ATTBREBFAZHEREESE T 2[RIE]
stEIREFEEBEE -

2019
—E—NF
HK$'000
FiIT

32,250

(1,245)

(54)
(5,819)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

10. FINANCE COSTS

11.

10. BME KA

Imputed interest on bonds

Imputed interest on convertible notes

Imputed interest on lease liabilities

Interest on borrowings

Interest on loan from Ultimate Holding Company
Interest on promissory notes

IPO interest expense

Interest on loan from Ultimate Controlling Party

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging (crediting):

BEHZEEFE
ARRREZEENE
HERBZHENE
fEFRZ B

KB BAAE R B 2 EFRFE
EITES P ilhs,
BRAHEEN B

R B RAEIEHTT 2 EFFB

11. BRBAIEE

2019
ZE-NEF
HK$'000
FHET

B A B R TR (REA) A T BIBATE

(@) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans

Total staff costs

(b) Other items

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Lease payments for short-term lease not
included in the measurement of lease
liabilities

@ BIRA(BRESHE)
e ITEREMET
FE PR 812 30

BT A42%E

(b) HAtEE

SR B <
—EZRE
—IFEERIE
RRFAXZIFERA

M WS RRBZ
e

ERREEZITE

HEME - HERREZ
B8R

EARFAMEEE
rEhrEHEEY
HEMK

2019
—E—NF
HK$’000
FiBT
15,601

1,060

16,661

630
240
6,747

9,274
655

54

2,257



12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —F _FF+ —H=1—HIFEF

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2020

Executive directors
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Yanxia
(appointed on 6 April 2020)

Lo Tsz Fung Philip
(resigned on 1 July 2020)

Tam Tak Wah
(resigned on 4 May 2020)

Cheng Wai Keung
(resigned on 6 April 2020)

Chief executive
Lyu Guoping

(resigned on 1 September 2020)

Non-Executive director
Shiu Shu Ming
(appointed on 18 March 2020)

Independent non-executive directors

Lai Kin Keung
(appointed on 6 April 2020)

Chan Yim Por Bonnie
Yeung Chi Wai
(appointed on 6 April 2020)

Chan Tsz Kit
(resigned on 6 April 2020)

Wang Li
(resigned on 6 April 2020)

HTER

BT TERITHAE)

fpeaE
(R=F-_FF
P57 HEZ(E)
Bz
(R=F-_FF
+A—HEE)
*E/ﬁaﬁ;:
(R=F-_FF
FAMAGT)
Bz
(R=F-_FF
PIAHEHE)

TBAR

BEY
(R-F_FF
NA—BEHE)

FUTES
ELits
(R-F_FF

;W#W%m

BUFHTES
RER
(R-ZE=FF
PR HEZT)
[‘?%7&’
T
(iA_ F-FF
PA~HEZ(T)
B
(R=F-FF
DA HEHE)
TH
(R=F-FF
DA HEHE)

12. EERTHEAZMNES

@ EBERITHAZNE
IRIBEE B X EEPISE383(1 M&’Aﬂ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —F—-F

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

12. ESERITRARME (&

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) @ ESRTREIMEE)
2019 —T-NF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R RIK
we REVNZ BT BE 5 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET TET FEL FET
Executive directors HITEE
Pan Jibiao (Chairman) BEN(TE)
(appointed on 11 December 2019)  (R=F—/1 %
+ZA+—HEZF) - 4 - - 41
Lo Tsz Fung Philip Efg
(appointed on 11 September 2019)  (R=F—/F
NA+—EEEZT) - 220 - 6 226
Tam Tak Wah HEE - 672 - 18 690
Cheng Wai Keung e - 276 - 14 290
Tsang Ching Man e
(resigned on 11 September 2019) (R=ZF—NF
NA+—HEE) - 577 - 12 589
Chief executive THAR
Lyu Guoping SET - 1,688 60 18 1,766
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES
Chan Yim Por Bonnie AR 100 - - - 100
Albert Saychuan Cheok FER
(resigned on 3 September 2019) (R=FE—NF
NA=AFT) 322 - - - 322
Chan Tsz Kit B4 100 - - - 100
Wang Li T# 100 - - - 100
622 3,474 60 68 4,224
Notes: Hat -
[0} None of the directors or chief executive waived any emoluments during [0} REE-_Z-_TFE-_ZT—-hF+=A4

the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their

(iii)

(iv)

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The chief executive’s emoluments shown above were mainly for his
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

=+—H JJ:iF *E%ﬂ§$&ﬂﬂli@tt

HEEAHE -

FIHITEEME T EFTHEREE
ZEZEFRZF-AFFT-A=1+—
BUEFEEAARARAEBEREBA
VEZ BR7% -

J:?'Jﬁi#ﬁﬂﬁ§$@ﬂfiEE@?T&%
RBE-Z-_ZER-_T—NF+—
=t—RIEFERTAR 7§$2Hﬁ7‘f& °

HITBREEMETEFTRREE=
TEFRZF-NFF+=RAR=+—8
§$§E$Qi&$§§%ﬁ$%%¢
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits
Except for those disclosed above, none of the directors received or
will receive any retirement benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporates and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no loan,
quasi-loan and other dealing arrangement in favour of the
directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities of
such directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2019: Nil).

(b)

(o)

(d

(e)

®

12. EERITRARME(#E)

EERMAER
B EXPIEEIN  RAEE  EE
= B UE Sk i WERE R AR B R (==
—NEE) .

ESRILZEER
MRAFE - BEEECWEEBKEUE
AR IERERMN(ZF—NF ) -

RENES=RBMEE=F AR
&

REE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILF
& - AR EBEHE VR EE = RS M M
ME=ZFXNRE(CZ—NF &) -

BRALUES  SESEZEHNEERE
HERESEZANENR EERERH
3 5K E R

REBEE-_ZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HItF
- BENES  IEETHEE R
METRATTANER EEFRE

MRHLH(ZF—NF : ) °

EERRS  RYASHPZERE
&

W EABARREBMARRERES
— I BARRBEEREPERSEEE
BEARDS AR ANEFFRINANFES
ARBEFENERARS  THEED
(ZF-N&F: |-

1 020Z 14OdIY IVNNNY
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

13. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 13. REFHFMAL
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included REEREBRUSZSHMALTHERALE
two directors and the chief executive (2019: three directors and the ERTREH(ZT—NF : ZUEFRIT
chief executive), details of whose emoluments are set out in note 12 BB - HEZFH R B XM 125 5 -
above. The emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2019: one BT (ZE—AF - —f) AL 2 HBnm

individual) are as follows:

T

2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
BT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind He R NEMEMRGE 1,334
Discretionary bonuses EYIBTEAL -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 18
Number of individuals
A
2019
—T-NEF
Emoluments bands FEiEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,000/8 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7C22,000,000/8 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C£2,500,0007 7T -
1
There was no arrangement under which any of these individuals REE-_ZTE-_ZFE-_ZFE—NLF+=A
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 =t —HIEEE - BEEZEATHRES

December 2020 and 2019.

AEMERERME 2 25 -



14. INCOME TAX

(@

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

e M RRME

14. FAB8

(@ REEEBREMERP ZMERE

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
Tt

Current tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax
Current year

Income tax credit

() Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong tax has
been made as the Group has no assessable profit derived
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2020

and 2019.

REATIR
PRI EMEH
BRMEMR

EIEFRIR
REE

FriSHi e

81

81

(108,653)

(108,572)

() WBEFESBHMARH  BEEKE
[ &= £2 & 2,000,000 7 7T 2 i
12 8.25% T R - M i B
2,000,000 7T 2 i M) 1512 16.5%
TR - TREFISTHRARS
BRZEBER Y 2B HER
16.5%2| — T EHH - ARAE
EREE-_ET-_TER TN
F+-_AZ+—BHLEEIER
BEBZERR S - W&
EBTHIBRHREHE -

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

169



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

14. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Can-Elite
Energy Limited (“Can-Elite”), incorporated under the laws
of British Columbia, Canada, is subject to Income Tax Act
(Canada) at a rate of 28% (2019: 28%).

Pursuant to the tax treaty agreement between the PRC
government and the government of Canada for the avoidance
of double taxation and the prevention of fiscal evasion with
respect to taxes on income, tax payable in the PRC on profits,
income or gains arising in the PRC shall be deducted from
any Canadian tax payable in respect of such profits, income
or gains. No provision for Canadian tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits derived from Canada
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%).

14. FABHL(E)

(@)

(%)
(i)

(iii)

ARARZ2EWMBRBNERE
FELRAR DR ([HRERER D TY
RIEMERELBI B EEER
AT AVAVA/NCIIIV -V ASPIIEWN
FSBUEIR28% 2 X (T — 11
5 28% ) BUINPTSHL

R IR A B BT B N & KT 2 [
TEWABBE 2 HIEME B
e EEHBE IR
BIEDHE - RPELRE R R
2w Ao WA e 2
g o Al nE REME
wmA WA T B ES
MIEBFRMGR - AR AEEREE
TR EFERZTE-NF+ZA
“t+—HLEFEITERE NEX
ZERBORA - MW ERINEX
TRIERTIR A -

REEZHERATEREPHED
EREHHER% (-2 — LE:
25%) 475 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —F _FF+ —H=1—HIFEF

14. INCOME TAX (Continued) 14. FifEH (&)
(b) Income tax credit for the years can be reconciled to the loss before (b) FEMMSHERAIEGEERMERANZ
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: BRI IR S BRIAT
2019
—hF
HK$’000
BT
Loss before tax Mr75i Al ES 1R (505,733)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated M AERZZERE 1668
at the rates applicable in the jurisdictions AENER Z AN EAE
concerned (120,974)
Tax effect of income not taxable of BRBAZ R 8
tax purpose (6,169)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A G2 2 Birg 22
purpose 14,869
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KR A] FUJRE I Z 78 2 TS 2 28
not recognised (46)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RER G EE 2 G 2 3,748
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI AR 2 TRIBEIE
recognised -
Income tax credit Fis B % (108,572)
(c) Current tax on the consolidated statement of financial position: (0 MEREMBMRERZ REATIA
2019
—NEF
HK$’000
BT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B PRIST 4,238
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH 1,090
5,328
z
Z
c
5
g
<]
m
"
I
"
ﬁ
ﬁ
#
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —F—-F

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

14. INCOME TAX (Continued) 14. FifEH (&)

(d) The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised in the (d) E’\Z*/\ﬁﬁfkﬂk/ﬁi’%ﬁﬁu L RIETRIE (B
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements E)BEHND  UARERBE_Z_Z
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as FN-F ﬂi‘?'_ﬂf‘l’ HIEFE
follows: SEFEINT

Fair value
adjustments Fair value
on financial  adjustments
assets at on PSC
fairvalue  arising from  Accelerated
through  the business tax
profitor loss  combination  depreciation Total
HENTHE
FABEZ EBAHER
tREE HERIRA
itz BELHZ InEBIR
AERE  ATERE E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEX TET FAET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—-N¥—F—H (3,805) 131,548 - 127,743
Credit to consolidated statement of REEBRERRTEA
profit or loss (note 14(a)) (Hizt14() (52) (108,601) - (108,653)
Exchange adjustment [ 5 % - (2,374) - (2,374
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+-A=+—HK
1 January 2020 :?:?E*H*H (3,857) 20,573 - 16,716
Acquisition of subsidiary Hﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ% a - - 8 8
Credit to consolidated statement of NGNSt iﬁzi’%* A
profit or loss (note 14(a)) (Wizt14) 3,857 (4,101) (1 (245)
Exchange adjustment EH A% - 1,212 - 1,212
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-A=+—H - 17,684 7 17,691

(e) Deferred tax assets not recognised () AERELHEEE
Deferred tax assets of the Group amounting to HK$22,044,000 REE 2 RIERIRE E 7322,044,0008
(2019: HK$18,537,000), arising from unused tax losses have not JT(ZZF— % : 18,537,000/ T) *

been recognised in the consolidated financial statements due to
the uncertainty as to their future utilisation. The unused tax losses

have no expiry date.

DEAREEEENRARETBA - EAM
RAEEHFAVERRPHEARBDARG
EBRMEL - RBARBERLEDIH
H o
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15. DIVIDEND 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2020, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of reporting period (2019: Nil).

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16.

(@

(b)

Basic loss per share
Calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

RE

RIZB-_ZFUBKNIEZRRMRE -
BEHRMRETEZRRMEMNRE(ZF
—NEFE) -

BRER
@ BREXEE

RARHER AEIESRERERIRE
TOIBERE -

2019
—FNF
HK$'000
FET
Loss for calculation of basic loss per share ;1 E&FKREXEEZEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners of REFARNTHEA AELEE
the Company (396,791)
2019
—T-NEF
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—Hz %@}
at 31 December hniETa 8 554,149,126

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share for
both years as the conversion of convertible notes and exercise of
warrants would result in decrease in loss per share. Accordingly,
the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share.

(b) ESR#HEER
SHEMIEFE 2 S B BRI &
HFEE - EE AT RIR R1TE R R
R EHERERRD - Bt - S
BHERESREAERER -

1 020Z 140d3¥ TVNNNY

—&=
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

17. W2 - WEBERRE

Construction Plant and Furniture Motor Leasehold
in progress equipment and fixtures vehicles  improvements Total
HRIR  HERRE  HAARRE BH  AENREe @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAL TAL TRL TEL
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-F-R 38,160 113317 2378 4,544 828 159,207
Exchange adjustment A% (707) (2,084) (15) (40) - (2,846)
Additions HE 243 - 56 - - 299
Transfer b (188) 188 - - - -
Impairment HiE (5,075) (14,438) - - - (19,513)
Disposals ik - (100) - - - (100)
At31 December 2019 and W-E-NE+-F=1—H
1 January 2020 k=2-Z£-J-A 32,433 96,683 2,419 4,504 628 137,067
Exchange adjustment A% 2,816 6,894 90 126 - 9,926
Addition through acquisition ~ ERWERBAARE
of a subsidiary - - 121 - - 121
Additions RE 14,388 18,474 1473 670 8377 43,382
Transfer 3] (492) 492 - - - -
Impairment HfE (1,946) - - - - (1,946)
Written off A - (128) (1,119) - (705) (1,952)
Disposals e - - 7) (115) - (122)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZFE+ZR=1—H 47,199 122,615 2,977 5,185 8,500 186,476
Accumulated depreciation STERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H - 59,181 2,227 2,790 828 65,026
Exchange adjustment R - (1215) (14) (17) - (1,246)
Impairment B - (7,052) - - - (7,052)
Charge for the year FEXH - 8,803 118 353 - 9,274
Disposals e - (14) - - - (14)
At31 December 2019 and W-E-NE+-F=1-H
1 January 2020 k=2-Z£-A-H - 59,703 2,331 3,126 628 65,988
Exchange adjustment 3 - 411 47 63 - 4221
Addition through acquisition ~ BEKENBLFRE
of a subsidiary - - 82 - - 82
Written off sk - (67) (1,004) - (705) (1,776)
Charge for the year FEXH - 7,295 200 417 1,047 8,959
Disposals e - - 6) (110) - (116)
At 31 December 2020 RZTZZF+-A=1+—H - 71,042 1,650 3,496 1,170 77,358
Carrying amounts fRE(E
At 31 December 2020 RZTZEF+-A=1+—H 47,199 51,573 1,327 1,689 7,330 109,118
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZR=1—H 32,433 37,180 88 1378 - 71,079
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17. M3 - BERREB(E)

HE-_Z-ZF+_-_A=+—HItFE &
ERFREARNEE 2 TR TR NS M
BETES RZIE-_EF+_-_A=+—
H FEIBZAWESEEALKAE -
MEREENIRE LA E R GHEMRETG
BRABAKAE RIS EREE 2 GE
R - Al EREE-_ZE-_TF+-H4
T+ —HEFEZESPERREEBED
1,946,000/ 7T °

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors conducted a
review of the Group’s construction in progress and plant and equipment
during the year. The recoverable amounts of construction in progress
are lower than the carrying amounts as at 31 December 2020 which
is carried at valuation based on both cost approach and market
approach carried out by an independent qualified valuer, Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited. Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately
HK$1,946,000 has been recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

None of property, plant and equipment was pledged as security for RZE_ZEFR_ZF-NF+_A=+—
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. B BEYE  ESENRBERAEEER
B R

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EAREE
Leased
properties
for own use
BRAEEM
HK$’000
FHET
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZT-NF—HA—H 823
Additions NE 1,748
Exchange adjustment M 3 5 2 (17)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE-NF+A=+—HAK
—E-TF—A—H 2,554
Additions NE 40,685
Exchange adjustment T 3 8 258
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—H 43,497
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE
As at 1 January 2019 WZZE—hF—H—H 103
Charge for the year FEXH 655
Exchange adjustment VEE 3 )
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE—NAF+=-—A=+—08k
—Z-_ZF—-H—H 756
Charge for the year FEXH 7,724
Exchange adjustment HE 3, S 101
At 31 December 2020 N_F_FF+A=1—H 8,581 >
Z
c
Carrying amount RREE =
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-TF+-A=+—8 34,916 g
5
At 1 January 2020 R-ZT-ZEF—-—H—H 1,798 g
E
I
For both years, the Group lease various offices for its operation in Hong RWEFE - REBBEE M BN EEE "
Kong and PRC. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years EETHRE - FIUMBESH REEFH il

to 4 years (2019: 2 years).

QEFAF(ZT—NE 1 26F)
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. BLEE

Production
sharing
contract Trading
(“PSC”) right Total
ERAHKER
(TEm
AHEERD) BESk et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hFE—HA—H 3,758,542 - 3,758,542
Exchange adjustment ME 5 AR (69,512) - (69,512)
At 31 December 2019 and R-Z—NF+-_A=1+—8HK
1 January 2020 —E-TF—HF—H 3,689,030 - 3,689,030
Addition through acquisition of FRWENBATIRE
a subsidiary - 1,000 1,000
Exchange adjustment PE H 230,209 - 230,209
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZEHF+_A=+—H 3,919,239 1,000 3,920,239
Accumulated amortisation and R B RRE
impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—H—H 3,232,346 - 3,232,346
Charge for the year FEXH 15,701 - 15,701
Impairment loss BEEE 413,598 - 413,598
Exchange adjustment bE A% (67,366) - (67,366)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=Z+—HK
1 January 2020 —E-EF—-H—H 3,594,279 - 3,594,279
Charge for the year FEXH 5,035 - 5,035
Impairment loss REEE 11,376 - 11,376
Exchange adjustment D 34, e 224,583 - 224,583
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+—A=+—H 3,835,273 - 3,835,273
Carrying amount SREE
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+-H=+—H 83,966 1,000 84,966
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-hFE+H=+—H 94,751 - 94,751
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

()

Through the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Merit First Investments
Limited on 26 November 2008, the Group has obtained the interest in a coalbed
methane PSC which was entered into between Can-Elite, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and China United Coalbed Methane Corporation
Limited (“China United”) on 8 November 2007. The interests of China United
and Can-Elite under the PSC are in the proportion of 30% and 70% respectively,
or in proportion to their participating interests in the development costs.

On 21 March 2008, the PSC was approved by the Ministry of Commerce of
the PRC in respect of (i) the execution and implementation of the PSC; (ii) the
terms of the PSC; and (iii) 70:30 profit sharing ratio between Can-Elite and China
United. Beijing Z&D Law Firm, the legal adviser of the Company as to the PRC
laws of the time, advised that China United and Can-Elite had obtained all
relevant approvals in relation to the execution and implementation of the PSC.

Can-Elite and China United entered into five modification agreements including
but not limited to the amendments of contracted area, the number of wells to be
drilled by Can-Elite and extension of exploration period on 18 February 2009,
29 August 2013, 23 December 2015, 21 August 2017 and 10 August 2020
(the “Fifth Modification Agreement”). All other terms of the PSC shall remain
unchanged.

Pursuant to the Fifth Modification Agreement, the exploration period applied to
Area A shall begin from the date of commencement of the implementation of
the contract, to the date of filing to the relevant authorities under the Chinese
Government for the Overall Development Program. Further, the exploration
period of Area B has been extended for two more years, from the original
expiry date (being 31 March 2020) to 31 March 2022. During the extended
exploration period, at least 17 wells are required to be completed in Area B
with the performance of relevant exploration works such as fracturing, drainage
and extraction. In order to complete the above exploration works Can-Elite is
required to utilize at a minimum of RMB35,000,000 equivalent in US dollars
towards Area B as the expected minimum exploration expenditure amount.

The PSC provides a term of thirty consecutive years commencing 1 April
2008, with a production period of not more than twenty consecutive years
commencing on a date determined by the joint management committee which
is set up by Can-Elite and China United, pursuant to the PSC, to oversee the
operations in the contract area.

Can-Elite and China United shall reimburse the costs incurred during the
development and production periods in the proportion of 70% and 30%
respectively, or in proportion to their participating interests of each coalbed
methane field. Upon extraction of the coalbed methane and liquid hydrocarbons,
the coalbed methane and liquid hydrocarbons products shall be sold by China
United and the proceeds will be deposited into a joint bank account opened by
Can-Elite and China United, and the profits be distributed between the parties
in the proportion of their participating interests in the development costs, or any
other marketing approaches and procedures to be agreed upon between Can-
Elite and China United.

19. B EE(Z

()

BBN_FENF+ AT ARRKEELRR
AERAR 2z 2 HEE  AEBEDBISART
EEMBARREERETHRERARAL
REA(FE DR _FZLF+—ANBRILZ
RERERDKARZER - P REELELIR
REE@D KA R ATEREE LB B B30% K
70% @ HWEFEERFEMARME 22 HBign
Lot -

RZZZNE=ZA-+—B EfRSKARED
OB R ERERDKAR © (NERDKE
FZ 50+ R ZEBEREFEE 270 - 303 F
DELEEPERBBRHBMX - ARAER
ZHRBDEEBREI R RERMEBHASH
TEREEERCHBITRERERDKAR
HMSFHEMRRIL -

RERRATFBRR_TTNF_A+N\R =
T—=fN\A=Z+NB ZF—HF+=A
—+=8 - ZF—+tFN\AZF+—BEZ=T=
TFENATHI LRGSR B - BIEETR
MMERIEHE - WEERE TERZAHEE
RIERSFEB([FERXETHE]) - ERDK
BRZ ARG BT -

REFRXE i ARERHEDHERE
RFIRITE BEF - EERARERETRM
FEEFEENPIEROBE AL - 15 B
EZMFEHEERSZMF - ARAMNIEHAE =
T -TEZAZ+HERE-_T-—F=A
=+—H - RERZHIEHA ' BRAFTHKZ
EHEAZL+EOHF  WETEBRIERSE
BMIRIESE - BT e Ll BN RIS - H3ae
RELBEIEEZE D ARMK35,000,0007TEEH)
ET0 EREEHNSIEREHHFER -

EmOKERFHAE —ET\FOA—RE
BE=TF AEHTEEEE_tF  mE
BRERATHRBERONARNLIEEEE
ReBZEECHMEEEZEGMEEZA
Hpest -

REBER R PR 70% % 30% 2 LB - AR
BREXENSRERB S ERRRILDIE
DRFEBEREEMAMELEZRA - RIERUR
BREBRELZCAME  RERIBELES
ERBETEHE - WHASFRFARE
BERR MR 2B ARITERS - BRIEES
NFRBERRAFTE 2 ERIREL P - I REIRE
TR KM TSI EREF# DT -

%= 10207 LIOdIY IVNNNY
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

For all assistance to be provided by China United, administrative fees in the sum
of US$30,000 and US$50,000 were payable by Can-Elite to China United during
the exploration period and the development and production period, respectively,
as agreed by Can-Elite and China United with reference to the administrative fees
payable by other foreign investors to China United in other production sharing
contracts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the administrative fees
payable by Can-Elite are comparable to those payable by other foreign investors
to China United in other production sharing contracts.

The PSC is amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining contract terms of
17.9 years (2019: 18.9 years) of the PSC.

Impairment test

The recoverable amount of the PSC attributable to the Group has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The valuation was carried out by
Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers not
connected with the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying
amount of intangible assets has been allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit.

For impairment assessment purposes, cash flow projections are prepared on the
following assumptions:

19. B EE(Z

Hiaz - (&)

()

(&)

BRBHER A RME - REALREPE
K2EPBEARLMIINTIREEREMERD K
ARZEMTEERERED B BRI
R RAEEBRREEIRS TR 2T
% F3 £30,0003 7T 250,000 7T ° AR AEH
RA - BEEREMNZITHERELMINGR
BENEMERDKERATENPH 2 EBE
;go

EROKARRBT17.95(ZFE—HF 189
F) 2 BREBR AR GERH -

RERIH

AEEREERDRERZATNESERIES
REEST - AREETHEAEETERHE
BN E R HEMTRERITARARET -
REARANE  BYEEZREEESERE
ERREELEEM -

shEHEREM S - RERTRBTIRETIIRR
(T

2020 2019

—ERCRF —F-NF

Period of cash flow projections B mIB BRI 17 yearsF 18 yearsF
Discount rate (pre-tax) WIRE(HiA0) 22.56% 20.96%
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Impairment test (Continued)

The calculation is based on the pre-tax cash flow projections of the financial
budgets approved by management, which have duly reflected risks specific to
the PSC, assuming that all key information provided by management, which
includes reserve quantity, feasibility of business plan, and exploitation method,
are appropriate and feasible. The cash flow projections are based on budget
sales, expected gross margins and expected capital expenditure determined
based on management’s experience and expectations of market developments in
the coalbed methane industry in the PRC. The CBM reserve quantity used in the
valuation of the PSC as at 31 December 2020 is based on the reports, including
the technical reports issued by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. on 2 March
2011 and 31 October 2008, the technical reports prepared by an integrated
geoscience and engineering consulting company on 23 March 2015 and the
reserve evaluation report prepared in respect of the reserves located in Luling
Block, being part of the contract area, which had been approved by the Office
for Oil and Gas Profession of the Mineral Resources and Reserves Assessment
Centre of the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC and was duly filed
with the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC on 4 June 2014 after the
compliance review. The completion of the approval and filing procedure
signified that the risk assessment stage of Luling Block in the contract area has
come to an end, and the PSC work will proceed to the design and development
stage. Due to the further delay on the implementation and the scaledown of
the business plan for the exploration and exploitation of the CBM and the
continuous low level of domestic natural gas price in the PRC, the carrying
amount of the PSC exceeds its estimated recoverable amount and an impairment
loss of HK$11,376,000 (2019: HK$413,598,000) has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The trading rights are retained for stock trading and stockbroking activities
carried out by GCINT (HK) Limited. The trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash flows of
the Group indefinitely, and are not amortised. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

19. B EE(Z

Hiaz - (&)

(b)

ERE (&)

ULTEFHE R 2 RBIATIR @ 7 E TR TR R4S
BEERE LB RME DD KE RS ERR
ZHBBEEFE  UHEIAEEERH#Z2
BEZEN(BRERE  EBTEATHERRA
WE) REEKAIT - REWBRIATEE 5
& BEHEMNEREHEAHAZIAEE  ME
BEERERNREEB AR REPEEE
AMSERZERMEE - BEERHSKER
RZZEZZEF+-A=+—HAZEERMEA
CRERBEREDREZHBESE - 2F
Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. /A — &
——F=AZBR=ZTT)\FTA=1+—H%
Bz HEMHRE  ZHE—BEEHERERT
REMARR-Z—RAF-A-+=AKEZ
BB EARRENERAZEELS ERER
WimAPEE+ ERBEEERFETEFR O
ABMAAREERAEEE LR LHTPEEH
TERBEAUBEEER T —NFXAMA
EXTUERZFEFERS - TREHLRE
REFZANEAZEERBDLHERTRR
BVER - AT ABE A RAT RIS - ARNE— 2
AR e K 4R R B FE R B R I B R AT B A R AP
BB AR AREBRFERMEKTE  ERDK
ARZEMERNREGFATKRESEE - HER
BE-Z-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHLFEZHEE
Bk ERRERE1,376,000/8 T (=%
— 14 © 413,598,000/ 7T) °

REEREESERRES(BE)ARAFME
THERERERBERELED - AREHARS
HAERAH AR REREFHEFELE
Bl ERSEAAEEREY  BXWEBE -
ZEZ HREGRE R LR AT R AN TR
EITRE R ©

%= 10207 LIOdIY IVNNNY

BHLE

179



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMBATZRE

TREJIFEEMBERARZER - RSB AT
BASI P A 2 it A EEaR o

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of the Group.

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

REEZASL
Place of Group's Held Held Issued and
incorporation/ effective by the by a paidup  Principal
Name of the Company operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
ML FEH A2F —FEMELHE BEITR
NEEHE REH B ES bkl BE BERE FEXH
Ace Elect Investments ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Limited and provision
of consultancy
services
PEKREBR AT EB BT REERREHER
R
Alpha Guidance Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Inactive
Limited
ERSY NN Eid BT EEBLY
Barraza Company Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Provision of
Limited secretarial services
Barraza Company e 28T REMERS
Limited
Canada Can-Elite Canada/PRC 100% - 100% CAD10,000  Coalbed methane gas
Energy Limited exploration and
development and
exploitation
MEREERLR JIEY VAL 10,000MEAT R - FER
BRAT FERRER
Cosmos Guard British Virgin 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI")/
Hong Kong
HFBRAE] EBEMRES 1T REER
([EEERR
BB/ EE
Ever Double BVI/ Hong Kong 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Ever Double HBEARHS 1= REER
Investments Limited BE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

20. RMYBARZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

RAEEEAIL
Place of Group's Held Held Issued and
incorporation/ effective by the by a paidup  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
AV iy 3 | FRE —XMERF BT
NEEHE BB BEER BA ekl BERE FEEHR
Fortune Spring BVI 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
International Limited
BRERARLF REERRES 1= ®REER
GCINT Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100%  HK$15,000,000  Securities brokerage
L REREFERAR &F 15,000,000870  EHLL
GCINT (HK) Limited  Hong Kong 100% - 100%  HK$23,000,000  Securities brokerage
(formerly known as
SD Limited)
SREERES(FB) B 23,000,000/ 87 EHEL
BRA R (AITERKR
AEFHIERR AR
GCINT Asset Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$5,000,000  Asset management
Management
Limited (formerly
known as SD
Asset Management
Limited)
TREEREEEE FB 5,000,00087C EEERE
BRA R (AITEEKR
BEERAR)
GCINT Wealth Hong Kong 90% - 90%  HK$4,300,000 Insurance brokerage
Management
Limited (formerly
known as United
Able International
Limited)
TERERTEEE B 4,300,000 REEL
BR AR (RIS
RBERRA])
Giant Front Limited BVI 100% - 100% US$1  Investment holding
SABIAR A REHERRES 1= REEKR
Goal Reach Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
PHRERR DA EE BT REEKR

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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20. RMYBARZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERADL
Place of Group's Held Held Issued and
incorporation/ effective by the by a paidup  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
AV &M FRE —XMERF BT
NEEHE REWwE BEER BA BE BERE FEEHR
International Standard ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1  Inactive
Resources Financial
Service Limited
BEERTBRS Ei BT BEBED
BRAR
International Standard ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1  Inactive
Resources Holdings
Limited
BEERERBRLIR &R BT BEBED
Magic Chance BVI 100% 100% - US$T  Securities trading
Investments Limited
Magic Chance RBERRES 1%t #EHFEE
Investments Limited
Merit First Investments ~ BVI 100% - 100% US$1  Investment holding
Limited
EERERRADA KBEHRBARE 1%L REER
Nation Rich BVI 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
ERRERRAT KESHRARE 15T REEKR
New Smart Credit Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1  Provision of financing
Service Limited services
BHEEMBERAR FE VBT RHEERS
New Smart Holdings Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Provision of
Limited corporate services
S EEAR LT R 28T RECERS
Powerful Sky BVI 100% - 100% US$T  Investment holding
Investments Limited
NREBEBR AT KESRRARS 1= REER
Profit Giant BVI 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Profit Giant RRERTES 1€ ®EER

Investments Limited
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

20. RMYBARZRE (&)

RAEEEAIL
Place of Group's Held Held Issued and
incorporation/ effective by the by a paidup  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
AV iy 3 | FRE —XMERF BT
NEEHE BB BEER BA ekl BRRE FEXK
Smart Class Investments Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Limited
BERRERRDA B BT ®REER
Strong Way Hong Kong 60% - 60%  HK$5,200,000 Electronic
International Limited components
trading
ERERARAR B30 5200,00087T BFEMHES
U-Cyber (Nominees) Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Inactive
Limited
U-Cyber (Nominees) &8 2T EERER
Limited
U-Cyber Investment Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Inactive
(Nominees) Limited
U-Cyber Investment S 28T BEBEH
(Nominees) Limited
Wisedeal Investments ~ BVI 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
Limited
Wisedeal Investments B4R RS 1% ®EER
Limited
FEgE(R) PRC 100% - 100%  HK$5,000,000  Provision of
REERHN consultancy and
BR2AF](note i) referral services
BESRH(LR) i 5,000,000/87C R K e AR
REBEEEN
BRAR(Hti)
AMBEZEREM  PRC 100% - 100%  RMB6,905,777  Provision of
BIRAE (note i) technology
services for CBM
development and
utilisation
ANTAERIRRM  H ARE REHEEERZENA
BRAR(KEI) 6,905,7777C BIEABMARES
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

20. RMYBARZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERREIL
Place of Group's Held Held Issued and
incorporation/ effective by the by a paidup  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
HEMRL iy 5 | ENE —ZMELE BETR
NEER BE B BRER o] ekl BRRE IEXK
RREERE PRC 100% - 100%  RMB30,000,000  Provision of
BRRF] (note i) consultancy and
referral services
BREERE o ARE R RERRS
BRAR(HaZii) 30,000,0007T
HEAEREER(ZHE) PRC 100% - 100%  HK$2,000,000 Coalbed methane gas
BIRAF (note i) exploration and
development and
exploitation
HEERRER(ZH) +E 2,000,0007C &R - FER
BRAR(Hiztiii) PR E R
SRERREE: PRC 99% - 99%  RMB2,900,000  Provision of
CRINEBRAE] consultancy and
(note iv) referral services
PERBRRE S H ARE  fROUER MEERY
(RIDBERAF] 2,900,000
(Hiztiv)
MERERRIMAL  PRC 100% - 100%  RMB20,000,000  Sales of meltblown
BREMERF (note v) fabrics and related
equipment and raw
material
MERERRAME  PE ARY  HERES RIEH
BREERF(Mitv) 20,000,0007T A REMF
Notes: Hiet
(i) These companies are limited liability companies (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau (i) ZENTARFEK L2 EREEAT (AR
legal person sole investment) established in the PRC. ENBE)
(i) The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC (solely (i) ZARARFEKZZBREEQBIINEGERE
invested by a legal person of a foreign invested enterprise). TBEEABE) -
(i) The company is a limited liability company (solely invested by a foreign legal (i) FRARSRTERILZBERAEAFGINEDEA
person) established in the PRC. BE) -
(iv)  The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC. (iv) ZARRRPEKIZBEREEAF -
(v)  The company is a limited liability company (non-natural person investment or (v)  ZARRRPEKZERETAFIGEERA
holding corporation sole investment) established in the PRC. RESIERAFEE) -
(vi)  The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-controlling interests for (vi)

the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

BHE-_ZT-_TFR-_FT-NFT+=HA=+—H
IEFE - AEEYEES AT RS 2
BAF -
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INVENTORIES

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

Meltblown fabrics related raw material

No inventories of the Group were carried at net realisable value at the

end of both reporting years.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

Non-current
Club debentures at FVTPL (note (a))

Current
Listed investments in Hong Kong at FVTPL
(note (b))

21. &8
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
Tt
FANE AR R R R -
PREREFEER  AEBBEFERE
IFEIER -
22. RAFEFABZZEREE
2019
—ENF
HK$’000
T8t
FFE
BAFEAAERZ
SRTERERE (K@) 1,000
kil
AT EFABREFER
o w2 REWEb) 10,125

Notes: Kzt

(@) The fair value of the club debentures at FVTPL was estimated by the directors of (@ BRAFEHABRZEMEEZEZ AT ES
the Company with reference to the expected value to be realised. KATEELEEEIN  BAEMEEE -

(b)  The fair values of the listed securities are determined by reference to their by FHEEZATFENREERESHPRERE

respective quoted market prices available on the relevant exchange at the end of

the reporting period.

RGPS RS T EEE o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EFREMEKRTE
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2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHET
Trade receivables from: THIEE 2B 5 RIKEIA
Electronic components BFEMH 14,704
Financial business DRI
— Consultancy and referral service — B R AR T
— Referral services —HEERT -
— Securities brokerage — B
— Broker —iR4 -
Wealth management HEER -
Comprehensive healthcare BRARERE -
14,704
Less: Impairment allowance (note (a)) B ORERE (i) (14,472)
232
Financial business DRI
— Securities brokerage — B
— Cash client (note (c)) —BeER (#itc) -
232
Other receivables FOfh R YRR 251
Deposits and prepayments BE RIERFIE 1,209
1,460
1,692
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREHRENITE
Non-current asset ERBEE -
Current asset mENEE 1,692
Total wet 1,692
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

23. BEZRAEMBYRRIAGE)

iz
Impairment allowance @ REEE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's trade receivables of HK$14,472,000 (2019: R-ZZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H ~&EEZE
HK$14,472,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually 2 W TR TE 14,472,000 T (Z T — L F -
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial difficulties 14,472,000/ 7T) E{ERIEE ARE - ERIRE
and management assessed that it is highly unlikely that the receivables can be JEUGRIEER IR RS s R FER - BER
recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivable [& il 5+ B e W IB R AT RE A IR @] » RS
balances. B ERE SENSRESRIE A EAIERS -
Ageing analysis of trade receivables by BIREEGEZBREAT
The ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade receivables of the Group, AEEZBSREGERB(RERAMKEN
based on the dates of the invoices and net of impairment allowance, is as WRERE) 2 SRk DT
follows:
2019
—ENF
HK$'000
FET
0-45 days 0ZF45K 232
46-90 days 46 290K -
91-365 days 91E365K -
Over 365 days HiB365K 14,472
14,704
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (14,472)
232
For trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two days to settle after © BeFFPELAZEWESIRBBRAENESLRD

trade date of securities transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due from
clients are reported as trade receivables from clients.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the Group’s business, therefore, no
ageing analysis is disclosed.

ZRBHAEMABE - ZEHRBEZERE
FEZRIAIREFPEEZ BRE SR

ARBEFRR  EXAKEZEBIEE K
e AT I A ORERIMEE - Bt WERER
DT

1 020Z 140d3¥ TVNNNY
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(d)  Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of approximately HK$460,000 were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default and a substantial portion of the
carrying amount is subsequently settled. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security over these customers. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

3. ESREMBUKEGE)

Hrat - (%)
(d) BEEERKREZESBUEGRIARER

R-ZB-ZTFE+-A=+—R0 BFENKE
#9460,00078 70 3 HRE (M AR B E © 2S5 FEUGR
B REANMEENDHRZBIER A
BHOEEERBEE T/5E -  AEEVERZS
BEHEMTMERRIEAER - DEBEMK
BB E S EUGIERE DT

2020 2019

—EoEE —ZT—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FIT

0-45 days 0E45H 180 -
46-90 days 462908 280 -
460 -

24. CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains separate trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of business. The
Group has classified the clients” monies as cash held on behalf of
customers under current assets and recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients as stipulated under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’” monies to settle its own obligations under the
SFO.

24. REFEHEEZHS

REBRFRIRITRE ERBELRS - A
BEREERGBRETELZEPHIE - RES
BREFLAEERI([EERREERD D28
o AREREFPAORBENERRBEET
REPHEZHAL  ITHRENBBES,Z
HIERF - RIEEHLHAEERD - REBEAT
SYREFPRARBITEESER -
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

25. RERBITHEER

2019
ZE-NEF
HK$’000
FiT

Cash at banks and on hand (note (i))
Less: Cash balance in a pledged margin account A

RITERNTFRIRE (M)
BEARESRFPZREEH

Less: Pledged bank deposits B BHEIRIRITER
Less: Restricted bank balances (note (ii)) B ZBRBISRITEERR (M 22 (i)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

FEER

The cash at banks and on hand included the fixed deposit of HK$120,000 and
approximately HK$4,751,000 (in RMB4,000,000). They carried interest at market
rates 0.55% and 1.76% per annum respectively.

Among the bank balances of the Group, approximately HK$3,175,000
(RMB2,673,000) was restrained from dealing due to the civil actions taken by
the PRC claimant for the default in payment of outstanding fees of components
for production lines of meltblown fabrics at 31 December 2020. Subsequent to
31 December 2020, the Company and the PRC claimant entered into mediation
and the restricted bank balance was released.

Bank balances carry interest ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2019: from 0.01% to
0.3%) per annum. Short-term bank deposits amounting to HK$120,000 (2019:
HK$120,000) carry fixed interest rate of 0.55% (2019: 0.55%) per annum and
are pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SeaRERERPZAE AR

(ii)

(iii)

10,388

SRITIF AR F A € B4EE E1F50120,0007 7T
2 #94,751,0007% 7t ( A R #4,000,0007T) * 5
BIZT S EFIZE0.55% K 1.76%1 B °

R-Z-_ZFE+-A=1+—0B AR E=R
BARBREEMEESRGREEEAM
Rz REFFD  AAKERTEST 8
3,175,000/ 7L ( A R#2,673,0007T) 222 5
Bl e R—ZT-_TFE+-_F=+—H% AR
AP EREAITARE - MXRARITER
B FUARRRR o

SRITERIEN T0.01%20.3%(ZZT—HF : N
F0.01%%0.3%) 2 FFEGH R o BEHRITFR
/120,000 7T ( = ZF— /L4 : 120,000787T)
HEFEEFNE0.55%( ZF—LE : 0.55%) 5t
B WEERF—HERITIEARNEEMERE
TEEZEM -

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY

BHLE

189



SiEEEEREEAR LA | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR
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26.

27.

BORROWINGS 26. f&R
2019
—Tne
HK$’000
BT
Independent third parties: WIE=T7
Borrowing — secured (note(a)) B — BRI (At @) 15,000
Borrowing — unsecured (note(b)) &R — IR (a2 b) 10,000
25,000
Notes: Hist
(@) The amount is secured by a margin account of a regulated securities broker, @ FAEA-EZREBFELEIRESRPIE
repayable within one year and bearing interest at fixed interest rate of 24% ?ﬁﬁ - AR —FRER A IRE E FFK24%5
per annum. At 31 December 2019, this margin account has listed securities of RZE-NF+ZA=+—H ZRED
approximately HK$9,987,000 and cash balances of approximately HK$1,000. EE)E'T_ELFI? B % 499,987,0008 7T MR & 4 Eh
#21,000/87C °
(b)  The amount is unsecured, repayable within one year and bearing interest at fixed (b) ZFEREER AR -—FNEEWIZEEF
interest rate of 24% per annum. FR24%5T 8 °
OTHER BORROWING, UNSECURED 27. HABERR - |

Other borrowing, relating to the CBM business under the PSC (note 19)
and payable to an independent third party, is unsecured, interest free
and with no fixed repayment terms. The movements in other borrowing
during the year are as follows:

BMESSRARMEI)E T2 RERE
BREMT 2B B 52 A ER AR
547 2B RMETERE - BERRA
FE2BBWT

2019
—NEF
HK$'000
TET

|
i

|
m

At 1 January

=
e

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H

11,267
(208)

11,059
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & —E - FF+_H=+—HIFZ

28. ESREMBNRE

Trade payables for:
Electronic components
Wealth management
Financial business
— Securities brokerage
— Clearing house
Comprehensive healthcare

Financial business
— Securities brokerage
— Cash clients (note (a))

Total trade payables

Other payables (note (c))

Amounts due to non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary

Accrued expenses

Total other payables and accruals
Total trade payables, other payables and accruals
Analysed for reporting purpose as:

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHBT
THEEZESREMNFIE
BFEH 1,000
V=R _
SEES
—EHEL
—EEA -
BEEANER _
1,000
CRVET
— BHIEH
—ReEP (Kit(a) -
B S RIEREE 1,000
H A FE (K77 () 27,908
FE— R B A R SR A RS 2
FRIE 16,342
JEETRAX 9,609
EAbE B R ERT B RE5E 53,859
B HEMNFE - B EN AR
EEtE R 54,859
HREBRBHODITA
JEmBAE 16,342
mEAE 38,517
FEry 54,859

1 020Z 140d3¥ TVNNNY
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

()

(b)

Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the monies received
from and repayable to brokerage clients in respect of the trust and separate
bank balances received and held for clients in the course of the conduct of the
Group’s regulated activities.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the Group’s business; therefore, no
ageing analysis is disclosed.

The ageing analysis of the remaining trade balance of payables of the Group,
based on the dates of the invoices, is as follows:

28. BEEREMBNRIAE)

Wit ¢

()

BNERELERP ZESFRERARERE
TEREEDEIETEREREFPFHAEZER
RBIRITEHCRREEE TELEEP 2N
I8 o

ARBEFERR  EXNAEBZEBILE &
BT A RAESMEE - Fit - WERER
DT

AREZBHRNRERBRERAH) 2K
BT

2019
ZT-NF
HK$'000
FAT

B8 ——1{E AR

Current — within T month

More than 1 month but within 3 months BE—{EAENBRE=EA
More than 3 months but within 6 months BB ={EARTBBNEA
More than 6 months Bim 7S 1E A

Other payables included approximately RMB2,448,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,907,000) of engineering fees payable to creditors in the
PRC, approximately RMB4,999,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,937,000)
of amount payable to China United and approximately RMB12,650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,024,000) of amount payable for the
purchase of meltblown production lines for the production of meltblown
materials in comprehensive healthcare business.

HthEMNRIERERMNTEBEEAZTRR
# N R #2,448,000 7T (18 & 7 #92,907,0007%
T0) ~ FERT AR RIE L) AR 4,999,000 (AHE
H#)5,937,00078 7T ) M Bt AR E B R K2R 7%
ZEEAMEREERELEESENTEHAR
#12,650,0007T (1 E 7 415,024,000/ 7T) °
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29. BONDS 29. &%
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
bond bond bond
(“Bond 11”)  (“Bond I11”)  (“Bond 1V”) Total
FEHmESF FLmEH FLmESF
(r&ExnlD)  (&Hml) [EFIV]) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHT FHT
note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(H1i#(a) (Hiatmb)) (Hiatc)
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—NF—A—H 980 10,973 39,489 51,442
Repayment of bonds ERES (1,000) (1,000) (36,000) (38,000)
Interest charge FEHX 85 777 3,705 4,567
Less: Interest paid B BENFE (65) (760) (2,218) (3,043)
At 31 December 2019 and R-E—NFE
1 January 2020 +-A=+—8xXK
—E-FF—HF—H - 9,990 4,976 14,966
Repayment of bonds EREH - - (5,000) (5,000)
Interest charge FEMZ - 707 95 802
Less: Interest paid B BEAAFE - (701) 71) (772)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF
+=—A=+—H - 9,996 - 9,996
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREHRENITE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF
+=ZA=+—8H
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE - 9,996 - 9,996
Current liabilities mENEE - - - -
Total mEt - 9,996 - 9,996
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF
+=ZA=+—8H
Non-current liabilities JEmBIAaE - 9,990 - 9,990
Current liabilities mEAaRE - - 4,976 4,976
Total st - 9,990 4,976 14,966 z
;E
.
m
»
|1
L]
Rl
Rl
&

193



B E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

194

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

29. BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In December 2014, Bond Il with an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000
was issued to a subscriber through a placing agent with an interest rate of 7%
per annum payable annually.

Bond Il would mature and be redeemed by the Company on the fifth anniversary
of the date of issue correspondingly. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
an aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was repaid. There was no
remaining balance of Bond Il as at 31 December 2019.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond Il were calculated using effective interest
method with an effective interest rate of 9.59% (2019: 9.59%) per annum.

In August and November 2016, Bond Ill with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$11,000,000 were issued to individual subscribers with an interest rate of 7%
per annum payable semi-annually.

Bond Il will mature and be redeemed by the Company on the third anniversary
of the date of issue correspondingly.

In March 2019, the maturity date of Bond Ill with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 as extended from the third anniversary in August 2019 to the
sixth anniversary in August 2022 of the date of issue.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond Ill with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,000,000 was calculated using effective interest method with an effective
interest rate of 7.38% (2019: 7.38%) per annum.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond Il with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 was calculated using effective interest method with an effective
interest rate of 7.04% (2019: 7.04%) per annum after extension.

In November and December 2016, Bond IV with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$36,000,000 were issued to subscribers through a placing agent with an
interest rate of 6% per annum payable semi-annually.

In February 2017, Bond IV with an aggregate principal amount of HK$5,000,000
was issued to a subscriber through a placing agent with an interest rate of 6%
per annum payable semi-annually.

Bond IV will mature and be redeemed by the Company on the third anniversary
in February 2020 of the date of issue correspondingly. During the year ended
31 December 2020, an aggregate principal amount of HK$5,000,000 was paid.
There was no remaining balance of Bond IV as at 31 December 2020.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond IV were calculated using effective interest
method with an average effective interest rate of 10.44% (2019: 10.44%) per
annum.

29. B (&

(@)

REZT—NF+=R  CEBRERERARE
ANEEITARE %8 421,000,0008 T2 EHN 0 1%
FRIR7EAE  WEASFEI -

BEHINEARETAHETERRAFIHREAR
AfER - REE=-ZT-NAFE+-_A=+—HL
FE - BEZEARS4%510,000,000/87T c A=
T-AE+ZA=+—8B  EHITERERE
g% °

EHNZ HEF B TR EEFREAETR
FFFEISIE(ZE—NEF : 9.59F)FH -

RZE—RNENART—A  BERZAHERIR
B AT S % A11,000,0008 7T 2 EH
W BEMNE7EE  WASEEX -

BHFNHRETRREFE=BFIHRREAR
REFEE o

RZZE—NF=F A& HEFE 410,000,000
TZEHNZEHBRETERRTE=BF
(RZZE—NFNA)EREFHITABRBHENS
BEWRZZE-__FN\A)-

& 48 EF A1,000,0008 T2 EHNZ HEFE
FX T ERAEE R REAUEBREF K7 38E(Z
T—NF : 738/E)ME -

AN %8 410,000,000 7T 2 fE 3112 B F 8
FX TR RERAEREFREABREF X
7.04FE(ZT—NE : 7.04F)1H -

RZZE—R"F+—AR+=ZA BEEBEER
2% % REAEITAS 2% 336,000,0008
TZEHIV - RFEFRENE  WATEES
fit o

RZZE—tF-F  EEBRERERAREA
BT HEEE /5,000,000 L 2 EHIV © EE
FReE:HE - WAGFFEL -

BEHRIVEERBETAREHE=BF(R=8=F
FZR)EHEAAARER  REE-ZT=F
FH+ZA=+—HILFE - K& 4%5,000,000
BITEXN RZBE_ZBE+-_A=+—8
BEHIVIEF| T -

BEHIV B EF S5 TR E BB F =AU TF
BHERFHNEI1044EB(ZZT—NF : 10.44E)
FTE -
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30. LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND

31.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Ultimate Holding Company granted loan facilities of
HK$200,000,000 and the Company has drawn down loans of
HK$97,500,000 and undrawn loan facilities of HK$102,500,000
granted by Ultimate Holding Company with interest payables of
HK$10,155,000.

The loan from Ultimate Holding Company and Ultimate Controlling
Party was sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest
bearing at 12% to 24% per annum and 12% per annum respectively
and not repayable within one year. The Ultimate Holding Company and
Ultimate Controlling Party have confirmed that they will not demand
the Company for repayment of such loans until all the other liabilities of
the Group had been satisfied.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 6 November 2018, the Company issued unsecured convertible
notes with principal value of HK$365,000,000 (“Convertible Notes”) to
New Alexander Limited (“New Alexander”), which is an independent
third party of the Group.

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Notes was HK$0.16
(subject to adjustments at any time during the period, commencing
from the issue date), the Convertible Notes bear interest at coupon rate
of 2% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 June and
31 December in each year, and will mature on 31 December 2021.
The holder of the Convertible Notes shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date of issue
of the Convertible Notes and 31 December 2021.

The conversion price of Convertible Notes was adjusted to HK$0.14 on
17 August 2019 and to HK$0.12 on 1 October 2019 upon completion
of rights issue and bonus issue of warrants.

The Convertible Notes contain two components, liability and embedded
derivatives. The liability component is classified as non-current
liabilities and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives component is classified as non-
current liabilities and carried at fair value. The effective interest rate of
the liability component for the Convertible Notes is 19.39% per annum.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives portion of the convertible
notes that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation
techniques. The Group estimates the fair value of the embedded
derivatives portion based on an independent professional valuation
using the binomial lattice model, which requires various sources
of information and assumptions. The inputs to this model are taken
from observable markets, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing the fair value.

3&%5%%%&@%&%%EHHZ

31.

BXR

BRI A B3 T B R ELE 200,000,000
JC AR A2 R EUE 5K 97,500,000 7T
FEARRGERERARTR THNERRBRE
102,500,000 7T JA K& &+ %1 £.10,155,000
BT o

A AR B R R AR T 2 ERER
BRENE - SEER - DRRERNE12E
EER12EFBMBER—FAEE - &
BRI AR RRRES TERR - ETEE
RARBMEERZEEN  BEEAEEZIE
EBEET AL

TR RE

RZE—NF+—AXH  ARaRAER
2 ¥ 5 =J7New Alexander Limited([ New
Alexander |) #1778 & %8 4365,000,0007% 7T
ZE AR R ([ AR RE ) -

AR ER 2 PP RRE B0.1678 T (R 8
TR Z B AT AR E A P )
HRBEEERESRGFEE B F
REFNAZ+ER T - A=+—B3HE
SRR T —F+_-_A=+—RH%
H o TRRERIFE ABEN TR ERT
TZBERE_E-_—F+-A=+—HItH
- BERF A TR IR 2 2 E e T E D A
SEHBAARNG LB -

TR R BATAI MR E R % - AR
ERHBREER-_Z-AFENATHAER
—Z-AE+A—BARARE014B TR
0.1287T °

gk REaEemER - BRERAETT
ATH - BEBORBERERBEE A
ERERMNEEILBEHEKATE - AET
ETAMOBERFERBAEG - WIRAFE
JI1E - ATRRERAGERD ZERENES
19.39 -

A SERERT IS EE Z ATBRERM S -
HAEITET R D 2 R HETMERGET
EETE - AEBERBN A AR E
TZEUEXBEBFASOTETAERD
ZnFE BERATERATEER LR
& o WRK 2B ABBRTIREABEMS -
WTEERGABEE - ARNEERHERS
BEH—EIRE Z FIHf -
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 30 September 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company and New
Alexander entered into the Convertible Notes Transfer Agreement,
pursuant to which the Ultimate Holding Company conditionally
agreed to acquire and the New Alexander conditionally agreed to
sell the convertible notes issued by the Company and held by the
New Alexander in the aggregate outstanding principal amount of
HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into a total of 3,041,666,666
new shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$0.12 per
share, at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000.

The aggregate outstanding principal amount of HK$105,000,000
Convertible Notes have been transferred to the Ultimate Holding
Company on 12 November 2019 and the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of HK$260,000,000 Convertible Notes have been
transferred to the Ultimate Holding Company on 1 April 2020.

On 30 June 2020, Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 were converted into 83,333,333 ordinary shares. There
were Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$355,000,000
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

The following key inputs and data were applied to the binomial lattice
model for the derivatives embedded in the convertible notes at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

31. ARBRRE(E)

R-ZE—NAFLA=+H8  SEERAFE
New Alexanders] 37 A] #2i% EE e E 177535 -
Bt RERERARBKEREWE - M
New Alexander& (&1 [F & & A QA 7 AT 2
17X EANew Alexanderi§ B I AJ 1% 0B ®
}%0.1278 TR BA H£3,041,666,666/%
RO 2 T RRER(EREELASBER
365,000,000/ 7T )  #X{& 4310,250,000
PETT

F (BB K & 4% 5105,000,000 7% 7T H A
BREBER=ZT-NF+—A+tZHE=Z
FTHREZERAF  MABEELASHBEA
260,000,000 T AT EBENR —_Z=F
FUA—BERETHRZERAR -

RZZE-_ZTFENAF=+8H AX2EHEAH
10,000,000 /& 7T &) 7] # % 2 & & &
83333333 EBRKR - R BER
355,000,000/ T2 AJ MR BBER T =F

FH—A=t—HRERITHE -

MR B =EFR_E-NF+=-_A=+—
Az aMEEEAS MEIAD D ER —I18
NP E R E R EZ A B R EEN
—Fo

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019

R=Z==F RZZE—NF
tT=A=ft-8 +-A=-t+—H

H

Share price BB
Conversion price HEIE
Risk free rate £ B ) 2
Expected dividend yield FEHIRR B X
Annualised volatility FRILK R

HK$0.29 HK$0.255
0.297%8 7T 0.255%87T
HK$0.12 HK$0.12
0.128 7T 0.12/87T
0.06% 1.74%
Nil Nil

z =z
80.2% 86.9%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 842 —FE _FF+ =1 —HIFE

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 31. TRRERE(E)

The movements of the embedded derivatives portion (at fair value) and ?ﬁkaFZWA PTTET AR EATE
the liability portion (at amortised cost) of the Convertible Notes are as SIME) R BB GREHERASIE) 2 &
follows: T
Convertible Notes due on 31 December 2021 R-BZ-F+ZA=+-HIHzTH
E2-4
Embedded
derivatives Liability
portion portion Total
REITE
IAHS aERD st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FHETT FET
Carrying amount of Convertible Notes RZZ—hF—H—H
(with principal amount of AR 2 BREE (R
HK$365,000,000) as at 1 January 2019 %4/5365,000,00078 7T ) 142,598 231,831 374,429
Imputed interest charged to consolidated ~ FA4REB2ETRz P T2
statement of profit or loss {HER 2 - 44,095 44,095
Decrease in fair value credited to /\\‘zT\/\th, SR EIAZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss N ER D (32,250) - (32,250)
Interest paid ERFLE - (7,319 (7,319)
Carrying amount of convertible notes R-E-NF+-A=+—H
(with principal amount of N—ZE-ZF—-H—H
HK$365,000,000) as at 31 December IR ERE 7 REE(KE
2019 and 1 January 2020 % /365,000,000 7T ) 110,348 268,607 378,955
Imputed interest charged to consolidated BERMRPXHEZ
statement of profit or loss fSMﬂ - 51,478 51,478
Decrease in fair value credited to EAZ*/\TE ERERPEIHAZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss NFEER D (61,599) - (61,599)
Conversion of convertible notes (with BRI SEIR (KSR
principal amount of HK$10,000,000) /10,000,000 7T ) (2,515) (8,040) (10,555)
Interest payable on convertible notes EER AR SRR RN TR
converted - (100) (100)
Carrying amount of convertible notes RZZE_ZFE+_A=+—H
(with principal amount of AR 2 BREAE (K e
HK$355,000,000) as at 31 December %4/5355,000,00078 7T )
2020 46,234 311,945 358,179
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the
group’s lease liabilities: B :

Within 1 year 1R
After 1 year but within 2 years THFRIE2FR
After 2 years but within 5 years 2154 R

Less: total future interest expenses J&, : A2 F| BRI L
Gk

HERBERE

Present value of lease liabilities

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@  On 1 August 2020, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share (a)
capital of Hong Kong GCINT (HK) Limited (formerly known as SD
Limited) and GCINT Asset Management Limited (formerly known
as SD Asset Management Limited) at a total cash consideration of
HK$10,000,000. GCINT (HK) Limited is a corporations licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”)
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (sealing in
futures contracts) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)
and GCINT Asset Management Limited is a corporation licensed
by the SFC to conduct Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5
(advising on futures contracts) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO.

32. HEEE

TRENAEEHEABZREHEHEH

2019
—ZE-NF

Present

value of
the lease Total lease
payments payments
HENFIBRE MHENKERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
1,159 1,258
646 668
646 668
1,805 1,926
(121)
1,805

33. WEEHB AR

RZZE-_ZFNA—B  AEBEKE
S EREES(BH)BRAR (F1E
BAAFHEGRAR) RS ERKE
EEBARAR(AIE: BAXEEAR
RNANEMPEHITRA - BRENEAR
10,000,000/ 7T - £ EEERES(BE)
BRARBERSEFNPESEKER
ZBg([BES DBEREEEEM
FESNEZHFRAEGRA([EFHRAE
BB D) EITE1B(BHERS) RE2E
(REANRS)ZHRETBZEE - T
CERREEEEARARAREES
FEErRIBEE S R EGAETE4E
(MEHREEER) F5BE(RHES
HREER)RFIB(EEERE)ZH
EEEZEE -
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The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GCINT (HK)
Limited and GCINT Asset Management Limited acquired as at its

date of acquisition is as follows:

W BB A R ()

(a)

(%)

P S EERE S (BE)ERAF R
CREREEEEBRARZAIBEANE
ERBERKBRERZAFEDNT

Net assets acquired: FrilsiE 2 BEHE -
HK$’000
T
Intangible assets B EE 1,000
Deposits e 205
Other receivables HAth e Y 7R IE 1,744
Cash held on behalf of clients REFHAEZRE 38
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE R 13,695
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ERFRIE (208)
16,474
Gain on bargain purchase AEWERE (6,474)
10,000
Satisfied by: XA
Cash ke 10,000
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEIREE ZRERAFE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE v e kIReSEER (13,695)
(3,695)

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$6,474,000 in the business combination.

Revenue and net loss of approximately HK$90,000 and
HK$2,445,000, respectively, from GCINT (HK) Limited and
GCINT Asset Management Limited were contributed to the Group
for the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 December 2020.

AEBRERA IR ERE B WK
#76,474,00078 7T °

E-EZ-_TFN\A—HBE_ZE_ZTF
+ZA=+—BHHE 2EHBES
(BB)BRARLESEREREEERES
FRA B9 BRI A5 B B Bl e 18 0F
¥6#790,000/8 7T %2 2,445,000/ 7T °
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

33. WEEHB AR (&)

On 1 September 2020, the Group subscribed 11,700,000 new by RZT-TFAA—B ARFARE
shares, respresenting 90% of the issued share capital of Hong 11,700,000 A58 AR 179 (A8 & 70 & A B B
Kong GCINT Wealth Management Limited (formerly known as MEERARAT (AN : RRERAE
United Able International Limited) at a total cash consideration of PRAF])Z90%EEITHRA) - RS R
HK$3,000,000. GCINT Wealth Management Limited is engaged 873,000,000 T - @ ZHEFEITEE
in the provision of insurance brokerage services. BAR QA ERIRB LR
The goodwill of HK$308,000 arising from the acquisition is WHS S IR E & 2 775 308,00058 7T 3 2R
attributable to the synergy and economics of scale expected BEALNSENSEBRRVEERAR
from combining the operations of the Group and GCINT Wealth N K EBTEREE 2 HRBERIR
Management Limited. A
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows: PR S E #EREEFBOT ¢
HK$’000
THET
Consideration — shares subscription by cash RE - AR REKRD 3,000
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets W PTE R BRI B E R E A THE IR T
acquired — shown below (2,991)
Non-controlling interest R & 299
Goodwill (&S 308



33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)
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33. WEEHB AR (&)

(Continued) by (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GCINT BRI EEEERAAZA
Wealth Management Limited acquired as at its date of acquisition is BRIEENBERWERZ A THENR
as follows: N
Net assets acquired: FrilsiE 2 BEHE -
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEERRE 39
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 182
Deposits ®e 21
Cash and bank balances BE RIRTTHEE 820
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ER IR (892)
Accruals e R=di] (171)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIA G & (8)
Fair value of identifiable net liabilities acquired — RAREESEAXATATIB AT A A EFE 2 A FE
before subscription completion 9)
Cash received upon completion of subscription PRI BB KIS 3,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired FrUiE RI B & B S B2 N A 2,991
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEIREE ZRERAFHE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE v e MIReSEIER (3,820)
(820)
Revenue and net profit of approximately HK$1,523,000 and BE-Z - THENA-BE_Z-FTF
HK$1,038,000, respectively, from GCINT Wealth Management TZA=+—RHHE - 2EREMEE
Limited were contributed to the Group for the period from 1 BAERRRD RIS T B S R4

September 2020 to 31 December 2020.

F#91,523,00078 7T % 1,038,000/ 7T °
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Number of
ordinary Share
shares capital
ZEREE &N
HK$’000
THETT
Issued and fully paid BBITRER
At 1 January 2019 RZZT—NF—HA—H 479,184,617 2,032,322
Issue of new shares under rights issue, net of share ARIEHEAREEITHAZ D » FERARD
issue expenses (note (a)) BITRX (Kit@) 239,592,308 27,352
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrant (note (b)) FATT{ERIAE B R 1T D
(K1zEmb)) 11,015,979 441
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —NF+ZA=+—HK
—E-TE— A0 729,792,904 2,060,115
Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible REEHA AR AR AR 21 TAR 7
notes (note 31) (H4a£31) 83,333,333 10,555
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants (note (b)) RIT{ERIRAEE R EET TR
(B1zEb)) 124,045,930 4,962
At 31 December 2020 RZFZTF+ZA=+—H 937,172,167 2,075,632

Notes:
(@ Issue of new shares under rights issue

In September 2019, the Company allotted 239,592,308 new ordinary shares on
the basis of one rights share for every two shares held at a subscription price of
HK$0.12 per rights share. Net proceeds of approximately HK$27,352,000 were
used for the repayment of unlisted corporate bonds and promissory notes issued
by the Company and as the general working capital of the Group.

(b) Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants

On 16 October 2019, the Company issued a total of 143,755,385 bonus
warrants (“2019 Warrants”) on the basis of one bonus warrant for every five
shares of the Company held by the shareholders on 30 September 2019. The
holders of these 2019 Warrants are entitled to subscribe in cash at any time
during the period commencing from 16 October 2019 to 15 October 2020 (both
dates inclusive) for 143,755,385 new ordinary shares at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.04 per share (subject to adjustment).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 11,015,979 ordinary shares were
issued for cash at the subscription price of HK$0.04 per share pursuant to the
exercise of the 2019 Warrants. At 31 December 2019, the outstanding number
of 2019 Warrants are 132,739,406.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 124,045,930 ordinary shares were
issued for cash at the subscription price of HK$0.04 per share pursuant to the
exercise of the 2019 Warrants. There were no warrants outstanding as at 31
December 2020 as they had lapsed on 15 October 2020.

R HEAR TR

= fhinﬂ~$ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B— IR AR 1D 2 EED RBE SRR
0.1278 7L #£239,592,308 I ¥7 &A% - %%ﬁ
TEF54927,352,000/8 L FAIEEEIE LT
EBEHERAR ﬂ%ﬁZ%i%ﬁu&m¢$%
By —REEES -
T R B R B A TRR D
%:§—n$+ﬂ+ﬁ5~$ﬁﬁ§%$m
—NENLA=Z+BEEREARARRR

1%?—Pﬁﬂwk%*zﬁﬁﬁﬁmA

1437553851\2Iﬂ AR EE (2T —IFR
AeAEeE ) “Z-NERREEZEBA
ﬁ%m:% ﬁ#ﬂ%h\at —T-TF

+ATHEB(RIEEEMB) LY - FEEE
SREEERR0.04BIT(A FHAR)UBRSRE
143,755,385 %57 & i@k o

REBEE_Z-NAF+_A=+—HILFE

11,015,979 R E@BREATE_T—NLFR
&4 8 T 42 R B (B B AR 0.04 78 L 31T DU ER IR
& RZT-AFFT_A=1+—8 ' BKRTE
2B NFRRIEFEE /5132,739,40615 °

REBEE-ZT_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE
124,045,930 R E MR EATE_FT—NFR
[& 1 78 12 RS B T AR0.04 /8 7T 31T LR EUR
¢ BHRERZZZZTFE+ATABRK - &
RZZZZTF+-_A=+—RA¥EHRTEZ
AR -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) approved
by the shareholders on 11 November 2014, under which the directors
of the Company may, at their discretion, offer any eligible participants
(including any directors) of the Company or of any of its subsidiaries
options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated in the Scheme. For each lot of the share options
granted, the participants will pay a nominal consideration of HK$1. The
period within which the shares must be taken up under an option is
determined by the board of directors of the Company from time to time,
except that such period shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
of the options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of
share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange’s closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the grant.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2017,
an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the scheme mandate limit.
The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise
of all share options granted and to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
7 June 2017. This limit can further be refreshed by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant under the Scheme within
any twelve-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

There were no share options granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. There were no share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

35.

e M ISR

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

BT &

RAREE—BLERIR_Z—NF+—A
TRtz BRI ([ 8)) - Rig
Zatdl ARREEARERARRAIEE
M ERRZE A ER2EE (BEEM
EF)REBRENARBARRRD - 1HEA
BIRZ A BIFTHE 2 R R MGk 1 - 2 EEFL
SHERZBRESNEERETET R
BRERERARND ZHEBARRZEER

TEEE @ BRI S BABBER
AEIEE 4 -

BREZTEERESETE - Y TELR0)
ENCIE &) EGE%Hx%%HjEI,HH%EH‘J?QF)’TFME
ZWTHE - RGARARBRMORERE L A H
AP % A R PR AT 2 S EZ
ENSE

—IEEBENEIEERE  ERRAERD
RARBE_ZE—+FNALHETZHRE
AFRE FERBR - RREZTEI TR
SR FERE 2B BERERETER - AQF]
AIBETZRNBERZHERARRRE
—tFRNALBEEITRMHZ10% ° IR
B A] AN RIRR SRAR IR £ T AR Bl 2 A6 S A R
RAREE—FFH - ™A+ @A HRE -
BT EEERSHE ZEBRERNETZ]N
2B R ZARRQRIAMEAI BB BT D
1% &BR o (T {r] 8 18 It PR B8 2 BE AR i ZE 45 %
HRIERAS S I#E— SR T -
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36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The Group
has no other material obligations for the payment of pension benefits
associated with the MPF Scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the local government, whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the pension fund scheme at a certain percentage
of the employees’ relevant basic salaries. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

The Group's contributions to employee retirement benefits for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were HK$1,202,000 (2019: HK$1,060,000).
As at 31 December 2020, there was no material outstanding
contribution to employee retirement benefits.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B4 —FE _FF+ A =1—HIFE

36. EERKEF

AEBRBBERIMEARSRIIAZEE
RIEED 2 AIEEBEMIEM 2B ERLAS
AR B([RESFE ) - BESFE
RRBYSEANER 2 ERHRFURKEE -
RFEESTE  EXREEBHRZESN
¥ © 2 5% A BIF LR - HEEAK
ALA30,000/8 T RIR © [AIFTEI1EH Z HRED
iR o Bk Dl o FEMFRSN  AEELE
H i B2 55 1 2 5 &I AR 2 BARMAE R 5K
BiE-

REBEHERBSE TRARMRY  ARESHE
M7 B R SL 2 E BRI RIRET 8 &
o AEEARREERBEEAF 2 2FTH
DL RRR S EIERHR - mEr 3R Z

R R

REE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HBIFE
AEBERESRKBANFEEL 2HAE
1,202,000 7T ( ZZF — L4 : 1,060,000
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as

BAENRE

RZE_ZEFR-_T—hAF+_A=+—
B KAGRA ISR P EHREE 2 E A%

follows: T
2020 2019
—ETEH —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Production sharing contract: EmaKam :
— Contracted but not provided for —BRTAEREE 16,863 27,068

In addition to the above, Can-Elite entered into the Fifth Modification
Agreement with China United regarding the modified PSC on 10 August
2020. Pursuant to the Fifth Modification Agreement, the exploration
period applied to Area A shall begin from the date of commencement of
the implementation of the contract, to the date of filing to the relevant
authorities under the Chinese Government for the Overall Development
Program. Further, the exploration period of Area B has been extended
for two more years, from the original expiry date (being 31 March 2020)
to 31 March 2022. During the extended exploration period, at least 17
wells are required to be completed in Area B with the performance of
relevant exploration works such as fracturing, drainage and extraction.
In order to complete the above exploration works Can-Elite is required
to utilise at a minimum of HK$41,568,000 (RMB35,000,000) equivalent
in US dollars towards Area B, as the expected minimum exploration
expenditure amount.

B batoh o EWEBEEEN T -TENA+H
HAPBERERDRAERGI M E R XER]
ik o BEBEERXER HE  ARBBRIF
BN ARRABNITE B B8
A RAFEBNAEBIFIEROBEA
IE e toh BRZEFEHEERZME - B
BEAMFHA - Z-_TF=-A=+—HEER
E-E-_FZA=Z+—H  RERZHEKE
HN - BEMBEEN2EHEREZELTHR
o WETEBRREREEBREREEX - AT
SR BN RIER - EBRERTHBRIEE
%041,568,0007%8 7T ( AR #35,000,0007T)
LEMET  EAEBHNRERENEE
)EH °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. CONTINGENCIES 38. WAEE

Environmental contingencies

The Group has not incurred any significant expenditure for environment
remediation and is currently not involved in any environmental
remediation. In addition, the Group has not accrued any amounts for
environmental remediation relating to its operations. Under existing
legislation, management believes that there are no probable liabilities
that will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or
operating results of the Group. The PRC government, however, has
moved and may move further towards more rigorous enforcement
of applicable laws and towards the adoption of more stringent
environmental standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to
considerable uncertainties which affect the Group’s ability to estimate
the ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties include:
(i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination at various sites
including, but not limited to mines, concentrators and smelting plants
irrespective of whether they are operating, closed or sold; (ii) the extent
of required cleanup efforts; (iii) varying costs of alternative remediation
strategies; (iv) changes in environmental remediation requirements;
and (v) the identification of new remediation sites. The amount of such
future costs is not determinable due to such factors as the unknown
magnitude of possible contamination and the unknown timing and
extent of the corrective actions that may be required. Accordingly,
the outcome of environmental liabilities under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot be reasonably estimated at present,
and could be material.

REREEA
AEEZESREARRBPEEEALE
B RITMR 8 2 BT IR B T o teoh -
KEBLAREEBTRRERAEMGES
o IRIBIRITAD - ERERETETER
U ASENBERARKCELEEFSE AT
P2 raldE - A FEBFDEREH
BEEE — PRSI TIE A 2 A D] - WERNE
BEEZIRREE - RRAIAZBEGFLEE
TOTEERAER - ENEBRGTSERR
EIERRERZEN EETHEEREE
() S S - BEETRAEER B
BRME L EMIES - BT & KRBT
SRS MIZE © (VTR ETZE
BTEZIRE (i) SEHBIEIEZ A : (iv)
RIBRMERTZNE  RVERFEHES
o A AIRESS AR E AR R ATR I
MEENRERNEMNEEIRASERE &
EEETEZSARER - Ut - RIBEZE
KRRZIBRREREAEZ RRABERE
EEBRIAIERE - BEAETHEK-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

(A) Transactions with related parties

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

39. BBARS

AREEEKEAR(MNARRZEEB)Z
RSB R HE NG AR HHEH - W&
UK SRR EE - B RN E S E MBI T
Z RN ZFHERT XK

A ERBEZXZ

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties in the normal course of business:

Loan interest payable to ultimate holding
company (note i)

Imputed interest on convertible notes to
Ultimate Holding Company

Loan interest payable to Ultimate
Controlling Party (note (v))

Salaries paid to Ultimate Controlling Party

Commission income by provision of
insurance brokerage service
(note (vii))

FER R A T 2 BT 8
(Hi#ti)

B RAAER A B S 2 AT AR
ZEZEEFE

FER ST 5 2 BRFLS
(BtaEw)
ERSERIZERIAZE S

RERBCAIRFG 2
WA (H i)

RAREE - AEER B EEBBIZHE
BB 2 X500

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
Tt

47

1,460

1,507
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(B) Outstanding balances with related parties

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

RBAX5 (&)
(B) EERAEES 2 EKAREEBELR

2019
ZE-NF
HK$'000
FHET

Loan from Ultimate
Holding Company (note (i))

Loan interest payable to Ultimate
Holding Company (note (ii))

Loan from Ultimate Controlling
Party (note (iv))

Loan interest payable to Ultimate
Controlling Party (note (v))

Commission receivables by
provision of insurance brokerage
service with Ms. Li (note (vii))

Salaries payable to Ultimate
Controlling Party (note (iii))

Amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary (note (vi))

Convertible notes held by Ultimate
Holding Company - liability portion

Convertible notes held by the
Ultimate Holding Company
— embedded derivatives

KEREIEBRRRZER
(Baz)

e B AR R B 2 B A

(H1azii)
BRI 2 ER
(Hizz(iv)
AT B 4T 5 2 B SR B
(KizEwv)
MZE 2 T IR MRS AL R TS
FEUER 2 A< (73 vii)

FE SASYR B T7 2 e (Wt i)

e —FRIR B A R FEAE A e 2

KKz vi)
BRI RIFTRE 2 AT A
EE-AEHD
BRI RIFTF 2 AT HA AR
EE-NETETA

8
=

10,000

47

41

16,342

77,271

31,744

135,445




39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(B) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

©

Notes:

(i) The loans were sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest
bearing at 12% to 24% per annum and not repayable within one year.
The Ultimate Holding Company has confirmed that it will not demand the
Company for repayment of such loans until all the other liabilities of the

Group have been satisfied.

(i)  The interest expenses arose from the loan from Ultimate Holding

Company.

(iii) ~ The Ultimate Controlling Party of the Company is Mr. Pan Jibiao.

(iv)  The loans were sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest
bearing at 1% per month and not repayable within one year. The Ultimate
Controlling Party has confirmed that it will not demand the Company for
repayment of such loans until all the other liabilities of Group have been

satisfied.

(v)  The interest expense arose from the loan from Ultimate Controlling Party.

(vi)  The amounts due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary are unsecured
and interest free. The non-controlling interests of a subsidiary has agreed
not to demand for repayment in the next twelve months from the year end

date.

(vii)  The commission was generated from insurance brokerage services

provided to the spouse of Mr. Pan Jibiao.

Key management personnel compensation

39. BHBARS(E)

(B) EREAMES BRI KREBER(E)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ERBRELE  HAEER  REHN
K1N2EE24EF B RBEAN—FAIE
B RRERQFEHER  ETEEX
ARREEZERER  EEAKEER
HiEBERETAL

FMEHXDELARKIERARZER

AR Z AR T AR HEY SR -

ERBREMLS  EAEER  RAF
R EFF R RBEAR —FREE - KIE
BT EHER - AT EERAREEEX
SEF EEAREMBEMAERHE

=
=5/8

P BRI TIESE B REESIT ZER

e — R B8 A B 2 SFFR AR 2 50 R Ty
EEAREE - MBARZIFERES
BREENFHEBRARRTZEAT
BEREER

MeRaRREYEE ZRBRHEZR
PR AR RS o

©C EEEEEREHRM

Salaries, allowances and

other benefits in kind
Discretionary bonus
Retirement scheme contributions

e RREREMEYNZE

EIBIEAT
RIRET ISR

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 12).

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FIT

4,696
50
65

4,811

wMe e AT B TRAI(ME12) -

1 020Z 140d3¥ TVNNNY

—&=

BHLE

209



SiEEEEREEAR LA | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

210

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

40.

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40. ATEEMBERRE

2019
—ZT-NF
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER e 7
Interest in subsidiaries, net RMTB AR = - T8 11,088
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ IZAF(EFT AB&m 2 SRVEE 1,000
Right-of-use asset EREEE -
Rental deposit HEEe -
12,095
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net R EB A RIFIE - FEE 32,409
Other receivables HAtb U GRIE 157
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 4,042
36,608
Current liabilities REBAE
Bonds BEH 4,976
Borrowing [EE 10,000
Convertible notes AIRAR IR
— liabilities portion —BEHS -
Convertible notes AIRAR g
— embedded derivatives —-NETETA -
Lease liabilities HEBE -
Other payables o R~ R IE 4,552
19,528
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(BB)EERE 17,080
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40. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40.

(Continued)

e M RRME

AR EEMBRRERE)

2019
—E—hF
HK$'000
FiIT

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bonds
Loan from ultimate holding company
Convertible notes unsecured
— liability portion
Convertible notes unsecured
— embedded derivatives
Other payables
Lease liabilities

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Capital deficiency

EERBERRBAE

FRBAE

(CE2

KB REER AR ZER

EEM AR RE
—BESD

EEMATBRERE
—AEITETA

HAG B HR

HERE

BEFH

BERRHE
A
it

BB

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Jibiao
%
DIRECTOR
EFE

29,175

9,990
10,000

268,607

110,348

398,945

(369,770)

2,060,115

(2,429,885)

(369,770)

KRR BERAREEERN T -_—F=
AZ+NBibfERBERE TR THIES
REFEE

Shao Yanxia

ARREER
DIRECTOR

EF

1 020Z 140d3¥ TVNNNY
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40. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 42 = F =L F = A =4+—HIFFE

40. AEIEEMBMRRE(E)

(Continued)
Note: et
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of reserves between ARARRREBIFEHES I RFRFR 2 BB FHH
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: ST
Special Accumulated
capital reserve losses Total
BRIEARE REtER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
(note 40(a))
(Wizt40@))
At 1 January 2019 —hWFE—HA—H 579,799 (2,570,757) (1,990,958)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year FEBEREZEMASEE - (438,927) (438,927)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H
—E-TF—-HF—H 579,799 (3,009,684) (2,429,885)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year FEBEREZERY Q8 - (77,541) (77,541)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZE+-A=+—H 579,799 (3,087,225) (2,507,426)

Pursuant to the reductions in capital of the Company in 2003 (“2003 Capital
Reduction”), 2009 (“2009 Capital Reduction”) and 2012 (“2012 Capital Reduction”),
the Company has undertaken that in the event of its making any future recoveries
in respect of the provisions against certain specific subsidiaries as at 31 December
2002, 2008 and 2011, respectively, all such recoveries up to maximum amounts of
HK$367,938,000 in relation to 2003 Capital Reduction, HK$130,663,000 in relation
to 2009 Capital Reduction and HK$171,025,000 in relation to 2012 Capital Reduction,
will be credited to a special capital reserve of the Company, which shall not be
treated as realised profits for the purpose of section 79B of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) and shall be treated as an un-distributable reserve of
the Company for the purpose of section 79C of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

No credit transfer to this special capital reserve was made by the Company in 2020 and
2019.

IK‘WA:?%—iU*Z?EE%ZJXH\J}FED N

TAF(ZZETAFRAER D E=E—=F([=
gffﬂxzwm)zmm;ﬁz%a% PAN/N TpES
o AR RRRRBERATSRIR =T 77$
S N\ERZE——FF+A=t+—ARETEE
MEARRMEE  BFfEZSHEEE(H-F
T =FRAEIR M E &= /2367,938,0008 7T © H=
TENFRAHIRT S &= 4130,663,0008 7T * 5
ZE - FRAEIRME &= A171,025,000% 7T) #
BAERRRZERERFERN - BRREREBRTEDS
(832F )E7BIEME TEWRACEREF - MA
HRBEE RN RIEHI(FE328 ) E7ICIKIEAR AR ZT
Al IRFEERTE o

REZ-ZER-T-NF  ARAEEEEGERE
BRIBEAGEE -
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41. RESERVES

(@

(b)

(o)

Special capital reserve

Pursuant to 2009 Capital Reduction and 2012 Capital Reduction,
the amounts of HK$492,172,000 and HK$87,627,000 by which
the capital reductions exceed the total accumulated losses of
permanent nature of the Company as at 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2011, have been credited to a special capital
reserve of the Company which shall not be treated as realised
profits for the purpose of section 79B of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) and shall be treated as an
un-distributable reserve of the Company for the purpose of section
79C of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries and foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in note 3(g) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company, as calculated
under the provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622), with reference to section 79B of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) was Nil
(2019: Nil).

41, f#E

(@)

(b)

(o)

BHRIERFE
BEZZTZNFRAGRE -ZF—=F
BRASHIR - BRAER A BB AR TR =
TENFF+ZA=ZF+—BRZZT—F
+Z A=+ —RAZKAME R EEERE
2 8843492,172,0007% 7T % 87,627,000
BITEBARRE ZFRIERFEER
TRRBE SR BUEDI (328 ) B 79BfKM
ETIEHERARER RS - MARRS
BREHEDI (328 ) B7ICIKIERAER
Bl PRI D IREBRIE ©

BE R

R REEEMERESINNEARR
BINETE 2 TR PTEE 2 BN =
# o RBDRBEEMBRERMEQ)
Pl ST IREIE ©

At R
WZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—0 " f@J#tH
KT AR RIEE A2 A RIEH
EBDAUENN(F6228 ) FE68H 2 1§
N2 ERBBRMEH(F32F)F
7IBIGETE) B (ZE—NF - &) -
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42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Convertible ~ Convertible

42.

BMEXEBRELAEZHIR

TRHANAEEREXBMELZAREE
B SRASMFREEY - BEXEBHE
EZBEEZERAEEGARERERT
DEAREEBHAEREZRAESREIARK

HEMRE °

Loan from Loan from

notes - notes - Ultimate Ultimate
Lease Other embedded liabilities ~ Promissory Holding  Controlling Interest
liabilities ~ borrowing Bonds  derivatives portion notes  Borrowings Company Party payable Total
TEREE RERA RERL
-he  WEREE ERAR b
HEER Rt &% IR -BEBS RAEE o ZEX ZER Ef7E &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Fhn FEn Tin T T Fin Fin FEn
(Note 32) (Note 27) (Note 29) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 26) (Note 30)
(izz)  (Wiar)  (Weze) (W) (Wis1) (hite) — (Witzo)
At1 January 2019 719 11,267 51,442 142,598 231,831 19240 - - - - 457,097
New leases entered 1725 - - - - - - - - - 1725
Financing cash flows (624) - (38,000) - - (19,240) 25,000 10,000 - - (22,864)
Interest paid 79 - (3,043) - (7,319) (1,304) - - (480) (12,225)
Inerest expenses ﬂ,m, i 7 - 4567 - 4409 1304 - - - m 50772
Changes in fair value ATEZD - - - (32,250) - - - - - (32,250)
Exchange adjustment EiRE (15) (208) - - - - - - - - (223)
At31 December 2019 RIE-NE
and 1 January 2020 TZA=t-Bk
“3-%5-R-A 1,805 11,059 14,966 110,348 268,607 - 25,000 10,000 - 247 442,032
New leases entered HiHE 37,852 - - - - - - - - - 37,652
Reclassification EFipL - - - - - - 47 - (47) -
Financing cash flows BERNE (5,770) - (5,000} - - - 25,000 87,500 60,676 - 112,406
Interest paid i (2,728) - (772) - - - 2,01 (5,511)
Interest payable IS - - - - (100) - - - - (100)
Interest expenses g 2728 - 802 - 51478 - - 10,108 3,867 1811 70,794
Changes i fair value NTEEY - - - 61,599) - - - - - - (61,59)
Conversion of convertble ~ EATARZE
notes - - - (2,515) 8,040) - - - - (10,555)
Exchange adjustment B A% 195 690 - - - - - - 3,677 - 4562
At31 December 2020 3
T-A=t-H 34,082 11,749 9,99 46,234 311,945 - - 107,655 68,220 - 589,881
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 15 March 2021, the placing agent and the Company entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up
to 149,691,195 shares (the “Placing Share(s)”) at the placing price
of HK$0.20 per Placing Share to not less than six placees, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be third parties independent of
and not connected to, nor acting in concert with, the Company or any
connected persons of the Company (as defined by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange) (the “Placing”). On 25
March 2021, the Placing was completed, net proceeds from the placing
amounted to HK$29,330,000.

43.

ERMREE

RIE—RBRERSHRG
R-ZE-_—F=A+HH EEREBEAQ
RIFI M L E e - B AR RIE A Rt E
ERBARERERBEMEELENREEST
BB E AR ) ([ER & A%t 1) 0.20/ m A 2R
NAERRAEREGREEBSANELES
YRARNBIARRAEBEMNEHEAT(EER
BERFTES ERR) BB SR
ARWIEHBEE -T2 E =) REH
%149,691,195 B H (BEEFIE]) - K=
T_—F=A-+HAB EEFEEZTK
M Ac & %18 AT 15 BB JF 58 429,330,000 %8
T o

&= 10707 L30dIY TVNNNY
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Financial Summary

=

Results E4E
Revenue Wzs

Loss before tax FrER A& 18
Income tax FigS
Loss for the year FEER

Other comprehensive (expenses) /& & A2 H (Fs2)

income for the year WA

Total comprehensive expenses & 2 4858
for the year

Loss for the year attributed to: ~ FE(EFEEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=+—HLFE

Owners of the Company RRAFERA
Non-controlling interests FEIE R S
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERE

(Capital deficiency) total equity (B ZNEAl) Bz

Non-controlling interests Bt £
(Capital deficiency) equity RRRGEE NES
attributable to owners of (EARE#)

the Company

2019 2018 2017 2016
—T-E —FN\F —TtF TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FHET
7,587 9,109 16,669 23,518
(505,733) (657,874) (403,642) (498,325)
108,572 127,083 99,495 113,790
(397,161) (530,791) (304,147) (384,535)
3,197 (33,081) 66,834 (82,841)
(393,964) (563,872) (237,313) (467,376)
(396,791) (530,452) (303,913) (384,448)
(370) (339) (234) (87)
(397,161) (530,791) (304,147) (384,535)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—BHLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
—T-NEFE T N\F T—tF —FTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
190,954 690,821 1,348,896 1,772,588
(518,688) (652,371) (746,669) (1,071,023)
(327,734) 38,450 602,227 701,565
4,904 4,534 4,195 3,961
(322,830) 42,984 606,422 705,526




-
0 R

@ 3M

fiz PRE
Sl

e

.',.::""f; | {
-

s o

3
™R
" "%;r
ek
. =3 Ak
LY i
e
v\..
-
o

=y
P - s |
LI

5 )
A 4

(n

o
™ - = e
k!m ted, .

'a&‘ - . T i
ity X ; n
A -
W h VIR
o

.




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	2020年度大事記
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事局報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益報表
	綜合損益及其他全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

